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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A FBHE

Results
Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross loss
Other revenue
Other net (losses)/gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

Other operating expenses

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Income tax credit

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) for the year

Profit/(loss) per share
(cents)
Basic and diluted

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Net (liabilities)/assets

Total (deficit)/equity
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Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1+-HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-XRE —T-hE —T-mF —T-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FEr FET BT AT
9,028 26,246 39,678 20,901 14,531
(9,246) (42,483) (60,591) (47,066) (54,684)
(218) (16,237) (20,913) (26,165) (40,153)
193,198 98 370 432 846
(8,503) (155) 10,490 44,991 5,733
(226) (952) (5,462) (7,567) 94)
(53,659) (42,325) (39,560) (35,019 (40,728)
(27,819) (45,493) (50,952) (84,145) (82,414)
(60,275) (13,886) (243,810) (345,687) (538,335)
42,498 (118,950) (349.837) (453,154) (695,145)
7,952 565 23,351 40171 30,564
50,450 (118,385) (326,486) (412,983) (664,581)
59,382 (110,997) (279,820) (322,358) (593,133)
(8,932) (7,388) (46,660) (90,625) (71,448)
50,450 (118,385) (326,486) (412,983) (664,581)
1.08 (3.29) (14.27) (22.80) (200.69)
(Restated)

(mE5)

149,094 244,740 295,686 589,058 1,004,176
(204,862) (339,259) (594,739) (793,641) (848,845)
(55,768) (94,519) (299,053) (204,583) 155,331
(55,768) (94,519) (299,053) (204,583) 155,331




On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
"Directors”) of Ding He Mining Holdings Limited ("Ding He" or
the “Company”, together with our subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
am pleased to present to you this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue of the Group
amounted to HK$9,027,978 (2015: HK$26,246,238), representing
a decrease of 65.6% as compared to that of last year. This was
primarily a result of the limited cash resources, the keen
competition of the magnesium market and the uncertainties
arising from the litigation of our subsidiary that forbade the
Group from exploring its mineral resources and operating its
businesses in full scale. Profit for the year of HK$50,450,064
(2015: loss for the year of HK$118,384,897) was mainly
attributable to an exceptional gain of bank loans reduction
amounted to HK$192,992,398 (2015: nil). Taking into account
the impairment tests on the exploration and evaluation assets
conducted on 31 December 2016 by considering the
recoverable amounts, the performance of the respective
business units in the previous years and the valuation reports
prepared by independent valuers, the Directors determined an
impairment 1oss on exploration and evaluation assets of
HK$36,366,175 (2015: HK$3,736,391).

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In 2016, Ding He's business performance continued to endure
the challenges of tight cash flow and keen market competition.
Most of the operations of our core businesses were hampered
due to limited cash resources available and other obstacles that
were yet to resolve. Despite the Group had repaid its secured
bank loan in full this year after the bank loan restructuring and
settled certain outstanding liabilities with our convertible
bondholders, Ding He still exposed to liquidity risk given that the
Group faced rising short-term interest-bearing borrowings by
way of issuance of unsecured bonds and loans from third
parties. As at 31 December 2016, the Group's debt ratio was
1.37 times (2015: 1.39 times) (calculated in terms of total
liabilities over total assets) and current ratio was 0.02 times
(2015: 0.05 times) (calculated in terms of current assets divided
by current liabilities). Furthermore, the volatile stock market had
disrupted the Company'’s plan to raise working capital during
the year.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ER|E

As to dolomite mining and magnesium ingots manufacturing,
the Group continued to confront the difficult operating
environment and face downward pricing pressure during the
year of 2016. For better operational efficiency and cost
effectiveness, this business segment maintained minimal
operating activities and turnover for the year was HK$8,580,874
(2015: HK$25,662,642).

Owing to limited cash resources available for the Group, the
investment plan of a new production line for sparkling water in
Long Chuan is still in abeyance and the factory for the
manufacture of bottled natural mineral water for distribution in
China was operated at a low capacity during the year. Turnover
of extraction and bottling of mineral water was HK$447,104
(2015: HK$583,596).

The exploration of iron ore, coal and manganese continued to
be suspended in 2016 as additional time is required for the
Group to identify suitable candidates to fill the vacancies of
directors and legal representative for our subsidiary in Indonesia
which is a pre-requisite for operation resumption. Accordingly,
no turnover was recorded for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group will focus on debt restructuring,
which will be modified and adjusted strategically in order to
tackle the dynamic global business and capital environment.
The Group will continue to seek new strategic investors, raise
funds at capital market, negotiate with creditors for bonds and
loans restructuring and explore new businesses and markets.
We will strive to leverage our internal and external resources to
improve our efficiency and performance in the longer term.

APPRECIATION
I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
gratitude to my fellow Directors, our staff, shareholders and
other stakeholders for their continuous contributions and
support to the Group.

Du Jian Jun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Ding
He Mining Holdings Limited (“Ding He" or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to
present this Directors’ report in connection with the audited
consolidated financial results for the year ended 31 December
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings.
The Group operates in the State of Perak, Malaysia through its
wholly owned subsidiary CVYM Magnesium Sdn. Bhd. (“CYMSB")
which is the first primary magnesium producer in the South
East Asia. The Group is also engaged in the extraction and
bottling of mineral water in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and the exploration of iron ore, coal and manganese in
the Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”). The principal activities
and other particulars of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to
the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group continued to work with stakeholders:
potential lenders, investors, and professionals with the attempts
to mitigate impacts affected the “Group” getting back to normal
business, in particular the depressed global magnesium price
affected the business in Malaysia, uncertainties in legal
proceedings of the business in Indonesia put a halt to the
business, and unfavorable market conditions for capital raising
activities or continue borrowing money for its operations, all
these conditions have been the major factors affecting the
Group's performance.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group maintained
three major business segments namely, (i) mining of dolomite
and manufacture of magnesium ingots; (ii) extraction and
bottling of mineral water; and (iii) exploration of iron ore, coal
and manganese.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

Mining of Dolomite and Manufacture of
Magnesium Ingots

Given the challenges of keen competition from other
manufacturers and cost-effectiveness of the production
capacity, the smelter plant of the Group which situates in the
State of Perak, Malaysia (the “Smelter”) continued to refrain
from its full-scale operation during the year. Moreover,
extraction of dolomite has been halted since 2012 and
accordingly, there was no dolomite extracted from the dolomite
quarry for the year ended 31 December 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue generated from
this business segment decreased by approximately 66.6% to
HK$8,580,874, as compared to that of HK$25,662,642 for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

On the other hand, the smelter plant has been processing
magnesium ingots instead of mining of dolomite and
manufacturing in 2016. The Company believes that the
processing operation can help to eliminate the cost of mining of
dolomite and minimize the risk of magnesium price in
commodity market. The Company will keep looking for any
business opportunity to utilize the smelter plant to maximize
the revenue such as rent out the whole smelter plant to
investors.

The Company obtained an update valuation dated 21 March
2017 (the "Report”) from Raine & Horne International Zaki +
Partners Sdn. Bhd., an independent firm of chartered surveyors
and registered valuers. In accordance with the Report, the
market value of the leasehold land, building, plant and
machinery in Perak was RM80.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$138.8 million). The valuation adopted (i)
comparison method with reference to recent transactions and
sale evidences and (i) cost method through the summation of
the value components of the land and cost of building. In view
of a moderate increase of 2.5% of house price in Perak in the
third quarter of 2016 as released by Valuation and Property
Services Department (JPPH), the Board considered that there
was no significant deviation in the market situation at 31
December 2016.
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On 15 June 2006, CVMSB entered into an agreement (the
“Mining Agreement”) with Majuperak Energy Resources Sdn.
Bhd. (“MERSB") (formerly known as Harta Perak Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.), a subsidiary of Perak State Development Corporation
("PSDC"), a shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to the
Mining Agreement, CVYMSB has been granted, at no initial cost,
an exclusive right to mine and extract magnesium dolomite
from the dolomite land (the “Dolomite Land”) for a period of
20 years, with an option to renew for a further period of 10
years. The Mining Agreement can be terminated early by the
Group by giving one-month written notice to MERSB. CVMSB is
required to pay royalties to MERSB based on the volume of
dolomite extracted, subject to a monthly minimum payment
(see Note 31(b)). Since the suspension of its production plant in
2012, CVMSB did not extract any dolomite from the Dolomite
Land during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
Mining activities for this dolomite project had been started in
2010 and the amortisation charge relating to the project for the
year was included in "administrative expenses” in the audited
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

Extraction and Bottling of Mineral Water

In 2012, the Group acquired the controlling interests in Victory
Dragon Holdings Limited and its subsidiary, #/)!| FHEElE R AR A
7] (Long Chuan Shen Long Mineral Water Co. Ltd.) (“Long
Chuan”). Long Chuan obtained the mining permit and water
permit of the Longchuan Spring water (“Longchuan Spring”)
located at Longmu Town, Longchuan County, Guangdong
Province, PRC, covering an aggregate mining area of
approximately 0.3956 km2. The principal activities of Long
Chuan are manufacturing, sale and distribution of bottled
mineral water in the PRC. Long Chuan is currently branding and
marketing bottled mineral water in PRC under the brand name
Jenbo.

During the year, the investment plan of Long Chuan in a new
production line for sparkling water was still in abeyance due to
limited cash resources available for the Group. Turnover of this
business segment fell by approximately 23.4% to HK$447,104
(2015: HK$583,596) and segment loss increased by 119.1% to
HK$13,707,065 (2015: HK$6,254,840).

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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At 31 December 2016, the Group reviewed the recoverable
amount of this cash generating unit based on value-in-use
calculation. In consideration of the performance of Long Chuan
since acquisition and with reference to the valuation at 31
December 2016 prepared by GC Appraisals Services Company
Limited ("GC Appraisals”), an independent valuer, the
Directors determined that an impairment loss of HK$17,718,053
(2015: HK$nil) was recognised in the audited consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Exploration for Iron Ore, Coal and Manganese

PT. Laksbang Mediatama (“PTLM"), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company is principally engaged in the
exploration of manganese resources in Yogyakarta Province,
Indonesia. Due to conflicts between its directors and legal
representative, the operation of PTLM (including the exploration
project) has been suspended since 2012. As additional time is
required to identify suitable candidates to fill the vacancies of
directorship and legal representative after a court judgement
granted on November 2014, the operation and exploration
activities of PTLM are yet to be reinstated. Hence, the potential
revenue generating from PTLM was further delayed and the
estimated future cash inflow derived from the exploration
activities of PTLM was deferred.

At 31 December 2016, the Group reviewed the recoverable
amount of this cash generating unit based on value-in-use
calculation. Taking into consideration the abovementioned
uncertainties and making reference to the valuation at 31
December 2016 prepared by GC Appraisals, the Directors
determined that an impairment loss of HK$18,648,122 (2015:
HK$3,736,391) was recognised in the audited consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Exploration, Development and Mining Production
Activities

Geological exploration

The Group has one production operation mining permit right for
manganese covering an area of approximately 195 hectares in
Yogyakarta Province, Indonesia.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not
incur any geological exploration expenditure (2015: HKS$nil).
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Mining of dolomite
At 31 December 2016, the Group did not extract any dolomite
from the dolomite land. Hence, the accumulated dolomite
reserves identified up to 31 December 2016 remained at 19,970
MT (2015: 19,970 MT).

There were no new contracts and commitments relating to
mining of dolomite entered into during the year ended 31
December 2016 other than those that were disclosed in the
Annual Report 2015.

Iron ore, coal and manganese

During the year under review, there were no development or
mining production activities in respect of iron ore and coal
minerals.

Estimated Proved Mineral Reserves

The updated mineral reserves of the Group as at 31 December
2016 and 2015 were as follows:

Location

Minerals

Dolomite Lots: HS (D) 13756, PT 13404
HEA HER

Mukim: Sungai Siput

&3 :

District: Kuala Kangsar

State: Perak

A EREM

Country: Malaysia

Bx : BRAE D

Total area

13 hectares
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RIZE—XNF+-A=+—8B A£EEBELAZER
HWRARERAAER - At BEZZT—<F+=A
=+—0 EHANRFTEAESAEREEERFN19,970 A1
(ZZ—F4F 19,970 208) o

B-T-REFREEEN  ARTRBE-T A
FHoB=t-BULEENERTTABRRAEE
3 49 FURR -

A - BRKE
REIBEFER - I EeLEEA MR RBEYET AR
BRBFLEERD °

A RARERE
REFR - Z—RNEN_FT-—AF+_-_A=+—HBZ
BEMERHWT

Reserves
identified

by JORC standard
(metric tonnes)
as at

31 December
2015 proved
R=-Z—%HF
+=HA=+—H
JORC# &l

DRz EE
(AWE) HR A

19,9700

Reserves
identified

by JORC standard
(metric tonnes)
as at

31 December
2016 proved
R-B—XRE
+=HA=+—H
JORC # 8l
Az RE
(AW #REA

19,9700
13AHE
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Minerals

Manganese®@

ﬁ @

notes:

12

Location

Village:

DK

Subdistrict:

nlE -
Regency:
Province:
4
country:
B :

The average % of Magnesium Oxide (“Mg0”) and Magnesium ("Mg") are M

as follows:

South Hill
[t

Average % of MgO
MgO P E St

Average % of Mg
Mg Tk FHE St

North Hill
bl

Average % of MgO
MgO A a2 L

Average % of Mg
MgFTaE T E St

For the year end 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report, the (2
operations in Yogyakarta, Indonesia, have been hampered due to the
failure to contact the legal representative of PTLM and additional time is

Total area

Jatimulyo 195 hectares
195 A8

Girimulyo

Kulon Progo

Daerah Istimewa Yogyakarta

Indonesia

Efe
(G

Above Ground
i

19.17%

11.50%

Above Ground

.t

20.06%

12.04%

required to nominate and appoint new directors and legal representative.
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Reserves
identified

by JORC standard
(metric tonnes)
as at

31 December
2016 proved
R-EB—RF
+=A=+—8
JORC 2 8

BBl Z &

(AH) ¥R E7
Exploration activities

suspended
BEIE#RES

Reserves
identified

by JORC standard
(metric tonnes)
as at

31 December
2015 proved
R=-TB-HF
+ZA=t-H
JORC 12 8l

BRIz HE
(AWE) HReA

Exploration activities
suspended
BiFIE#IRES

afcs(TMmgo ) ki (TMgl) FriEFHEE DL

Below Ground (30 metres depth)

#T (30 K R)

18.59%

11.15%

Below Ground (30 metres depth)

# T (30 K%)

19.10%

11.46%

BE-Z—R"E+-A=+—HLFERBEARESHH R
ENJE Yogyakarta & 2 3£ 7 [ SRR 48 PTLMOA KR R R RSN
BEREERRENES ARRERMZRAR -



Environmental Policy and Performance

The Group respects the environment and is committed to
minimising its carbon footprints as a socially responsible
enterprise in Hong Kong. Carbon footprint is defined as the total
amount of direct and indirect emissions of Green House Gases
(GHGs) expressed in terms of the equivalent amount of Carbon
Dioxide of (CO2) emission. Non-hazardous wastes produced
from the Group mainly consist of used paper such as office
papers and marketing materials. To minimise the impact of
carbon footprints on the environment, the Group implements
the following practices to use paper efficiently:

o duplex printing is set as the default mode for most
network printers;

o employees are reminded to practice photocopying wisely;
o employees are encouraged to use both sides of paper;

o paper waste is recycled instead of being directly disposed
of in landfills;

J paper is separated from other waste for easier recycling;
and

o boxes and trays are placed beside photocopiers as
containers to collect single-sided paper for reuse purpose.

Electricity consumption is identified as having an adverse
impact on the environment and natural resources. A typical
commercial building uses more energy for lighting than for
other electric equipment. The Group is determined to reduce
energy consumption and implement conservation practices to
reduce the effect of carbon footprint. Air conditioning and light
zone arrangements reduce unnecessary electricity usage;
employees enforce good practices in maintenance of lighting
and electric equipment to ensure they are kept in good and
proper condition to maximise efficiency.

The Group will review its environmental practices periodically
and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of the Group’s businesses.
Further details of the Group’s environmental policy and
performance are disclosed in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report as set out in pages 67 to 84 of this Annual
Report.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations
During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no
evidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have significant impacts on the Group as far as
the Board is aware.
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NS B A T T B ISR A A3

o HARBOWEHREER LRI HER
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o BB TEMAAKRMME :

e TRBEREABRAMIFEERZATHERRZS
o FMREHMBEEVSRUSTERY K

. 0 EVHE 55 T B AR AR S AR AR M R BB AR R DA
BREM -

BIRRAHRERRAERENBEZE - — KA
XBTFHRAREEREMENRERS - AEEH
TR BEIREFE R HEITIRE SR TTE - 1 MIRE AR
RO E - ZRERARL RN B EHFEE
B REABRIEFBZHERANE N REARERE
MR ROFIERIRAE - 4TI ZHEROARLBE ©

AEERTHRTSERRER  THZERANEEE
BEEEEPE—THITREERLESR -BELE
BREBRERADINERAFRETEBLAHIR
5B HekEnaRENRE -

BFHEBEEERRSEDL
REE-Z-R"ET-A=1+—-HILFE B2
THBEBEBER B ENNETHREER MR DIER
HAEBEERTE -
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Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit package, career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual
needs. The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all
employees. No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace
accidents are found during the year under review.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs effectively and efficiently. The
Group's requirements and standards are also well-
communicated to suppliers.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers
through various means and channels, including usage of
business intelligence to understand customer trends and needs
and conduct regular analysis on customer feedback. The Group
also conducts comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that
only quality products and services are offered to the customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no
circumstances of any event between the Group and its
employees, customers and suppliers which would have a
significant impact on the Group's business.

Significant Events after the Reporting Period
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period and up to the
date of this report, the Group had the following material events:

1. On 8 March 2017, the Company and Cheong Lee
Securities Limited (“Cheong Lee") entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”), whereby the
Company agreed to place up to 150,000,000 placing
shares to not less than six independent third parties of
the Group at HK$0.084 per placing share (the “2017
Share Placement”). The maximum net proceeds arising
from the 2017 Share Placement were estimated to be
approximately HK$12.22 million. Completion of the 2017
Share Placement is conditional upon the Stock Exchange
granting the listing of, and permission to deal in, the

14 DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SMig%iERARAT

BES  FFRAHEENERE

AEERFEYVAENBRERBEZ2EBHNGFE - X
BHRESLARE - REBERH] - AEELZE
BERUREREZZTHESH RADEFEA I
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ROBRIAEEXBHREEEFBELTE  AEH
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placing shares to be placed pursuant to the Placing
Agreement on or before 29 March 2017 (or such later
date as the parties thereto may agree in writing) (the
“Long Stop Date”). As the condition precedent of the
Placing Agreement cannot be fulfilled on or before the
Long Stop Date, the Placing Agreement lapsed on 29
March 2017.

2. 0On 24 February 2017, 1 March 2017 and 17 March 2017,
the Company borrowed unsecured loans of HK$2,000,000,
HK$2,000,000 and HK$1,000,000 respectively from
independent third parties at interest rate ranging from 3%
to 5% per month and are repayable within two months
after their respective drawdown dates.

Business Prospect

The Group experienced another challenging year of 2016.
Notwithstanding the current situation of the Group and the
global political and economical uncertainties, the Directors had
successfully mitigated certain liquidity risks of the Group. By
negotiating with the creditors of the Group for loan
restructuring, the secured bank loans were fully settled during
the year. In order to further improve the liquidity of the Group,
the Directors planned to negotiate with other creditors to reach
alternative repayment arrangements.

In recent years, price of magnesium remained low while
competition from other industry players, especially China,
continued to be strong that further suppressed the revenue of
the Group’s mining sector. Having considered the difficulties
facing the mining industry, the Group determined to actively
explore and identify other acquisition, collaboration and
investment opportunities in other industries in an attempt to
diversify its business and broaden its revenue sources.

Going forward, the Company will continue to heighten its efforts
to resolve and leverage the challenges in the current business
units. The Group will take prudent measures to improve its
overall performance efficiency and explore opportunities in
other new business areas with the aim of minimising the risk
and optimising the value of the Group and our shareholders as
awhole.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7% B R

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s turnover #HEZZE—XNF+_A=+—BILFE KAE@LE
decreased by 65.6% to HK$9,027,978 as compared to that of  %8& —ZT— A EF L 65.6% %= 9,027,978 7T » /A Th
2015. The decrease was mainly due to persisting soft market for T ERRETEHEREY  BAEEREEKNIES
magnesium and the limited cash resources for the Group to  &JRB R - AR FHEA A 459,382,332
develop its businesses. Profit attributable to owners of the BT (ZZ—R%F : AR EHEAE AELEE 110,997,358
Company amounted to HK$59,382,332 (2015: loss attributable  B7T) - JylRERE D EREL LT U EFTEL -
to owners of the Company amounted to HK$110,997,358) asa #HE—-Z— ~F+_A=+—BILFEZEKREN A
result of an exceptional gain on loans reduction during the year.  1.088 1l (= — R4 : HREIE3.29/81l) °
Earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 was

HK1.08 cents (2015: loss per share of HK3.29 cents).

Financial Results B

For year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=+t—HLFE

Turnover ) 9,027,978 26,246,238
Cost of sales SHE A (9,245,729) (42,482,963)
Other revenue HAbUA 193,197,915 98,179
Other net loss HAb BT 8 (8,503,141) (155,056)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEEY (225,688) (952,621)
Administrative expenses TR (53,659,252) (42,324,858)
Profit/(loss) from operations LSRR (BR) 130,592,083 (59,571,081)
Finance costs BRVE R A (27,819,101) (45,492,651)
Other operating expenses HAib gAY (60,275,061) (13,886,428)
Income tax credit FrSHiE R 7,952,143 565,263
Profit/(loss) for the year ERERL (BE) 50,450,064 (118,384,897)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners NNEIHEB AN

of the Company w A, (EE) 59,382,332 (110,997,358)
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Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s audited
consolidated turnover decreased by 65.6% to HK$9,027,978
(2015: HK$26,246,238) as compared to that of last year.
Turnover attributable to (i) mining of dolomite and manufacture
of magnesium ingots, (i) extraction and bottling of mineral
water; and (iii) exploration for iron ore, coal and manganese
were 95.0%, 5.0% and 0% respectively (2015: 97.8%, 2.2% and
0% respectively).

During the year, the Group recorded a decrease of turnover by
66.6% to HK$8,580,874 (2015: HK$25,662,642) on sales of mining
of dolomite and manufacture of magnesium ingots as compared
to that of 2015 mainly due to intense market competition and
cost-effectiveness of operations.

In addition, the limited cash resources of the Group to market
the bottled-mineral water business hindered the segment’s
performance and accordingly, sales of bottled mineral water fell
by 23.4% to HK$447,104 (2015: HK$583,596).

Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 of HK$9,245,729 (2015: HK$42,482,963) included mainly
staff costs, manufacturing overheads, depreciation and
amortisation and inventories written-off. The decrease in the
cost of sales was primarily due to the decline in production
activities throughout the year.

Other revenue

The Group received interest income of HK$1,294 (2015:
HK$6,657) from money deposited with approved financial
institutions during the year. The Group also recorded an
exceptional gain on loans reduction of HK$192,992,398 (2015:
HK$nil) as a result of secured bank loan restructuring with Bank
Kerjasama Rakyat Malaysia Berhad (“Bank Rakyat") and
sundry income of HK$204,223 (2015: HK$91,522).

Other net losses

For the year ended 31 December 2016, other net losses
comprised net foreign exchange losses of HK$8,503,141 (2015:
HK$155,056).

Selling and distribution expenses

As a consequence of curtailment of production activities, selling
and distribution expenses of the Group decreased by 76.3% to
HK$225,688 (2015: HK$952,621) for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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HE_Z—X"F+-A=+—HLFE FTEEZL
BB EERREFT R 65.6% 29,027,978 (=
T—HF 126,246,238 7L) - EIE(OAHKBAERA KA
EESESE (N IRE REIMERK - R (i) BHREwE - &
Ntk ¥R E95.0% -~ 5.0% K 0% (—FE—F4F
DRNE97.8% ~ 2.2% 2 0%) °

REAN AEEFRHROEAREEZEESHHEE
BEBR T - AFRER D 66.6% % 8,580,874 7% T
ZE—RF 2566264275 70)  THEZRNEBZE
BN a o

18 z=

MiGHFE L&

BEoh  AEBEEMERRARER 2 RS EREHME
FloMERER - Bt HERERER KR D234%E
A47 104375 (B — R4 : 583,596 7T) ©

SHERAK

BHE-Z—RF+-_A=+—"RHBLEE ~EEHE
BN 9,245,729 70 ( — B — R 4 ¢ 42,482,963 7T) -
FTEEREEIRAN - £EER  MERBHEURES
Wil o HERARLOETZEAREETDNEEAFESR
FITi A AT ER ©

Hibg A
NEFFERNBEFHNRE &RHE 2 17 U 8L
A1,2948 0 (—Z—RF 16,6578 7T) o ANE B FH

Bank Kerjasama Rakyat Malaysia Berhad ([ Bank
Rakyat|) W B EFBTEREEMEF R ER I
LEMRER 192,992,398 B L (ZE—HF : THT) R
AU A 204,223 70 (ZF—F4E : 91,522/87T) ©

HithEsEF8E
HE_ZT—XR"F+_A=+—HLLFE  HitEEF
HEEEE N FB)$%8503 BT (T — R
155,056 38 7T) °

HERDHEX
HEZZ—R"FTA=-+—HLEFE A£B2E
E R D HEAS FR D EEEE MR 76.3% = 225,688
BT (ZT—HF 1 952,621 7T) °
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by 26.8% to
HK$53,659,252 (2015: HK$42,324,858) for the year ended 31
December 2016 as compared to that of 2015.

Finance costs

Finance costs of the Group for the year was HK$27,819,101
(2015: HK$45,492,651), mainly consisted of interest on other
borrowings from third parties of HK$23,763,292 (2015:
HK$1,245,736), default interest of HK$3,234,970 (2015:
HK$11,422,034) for convertible bonds issued by the Company
and interest on bank loans of HK$811,217 (2015:
HK$21,813,102).

Other operating expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2016, other operating
expenses of the Group was HK$60,275,061 (2015:
HK$13,886,428), comprised primarily the impairment of
exploration and evaluation assets of HK$36,366,175 (2015:
HK$3,736,391), the impairment of property, plant and
equipment of HK$9,210,610 (2015: HK$nil) and the impairment
of other receivables and prepayments of HK$1,378,000 (2015:
HK$3,000,000). Besides, property, plant and equipment
amounted to HK$13,131,002 (2015: HK$4,950,550) and no raw
material and finished good (2015: HK$2,199,487) were written
off during the year.

Income tax credit

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded
income tax credit of HK$7,952,143 (2015: HK$565,263) arising
from the reversal of temporary differences.

Profit/Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded
profit before taxation of HK$42,497,921 (2015: loss before
taxation of HK$118,950,160) which was a result of profit from
operations of HK$130,592,083 (2015: loss from operations of
HK$59,571,081), finance costs of HK$27,819,101 (2015:
HK$45,492,651) and other operating expenses of HK$60,275,061
(2015: HK$13,886,428).
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HE-Z—X"FET_A=1+—HIEFE AEBM2TT
B 28 =T — 1 5 A B3 00 26.8% = 53,659,252 8 7T
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Profit from operations was mainly attributable to a gain on bank
loans reduction of HK$192,992,398 recognised during the year
which was one-off and non-recurring in nature. Excluding an
exceptional gain on bank loans reduction, the Group would
have recorded a loss from operations of HK$62,400,315 (2015:
HK$59,571,081) and a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$133,610,066 (2015: HK$110,997,358) for the
year.

Earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
HK1.08 cents (2015: loss per share of HK3.29 cents).

Financial Position

At 31 December
R+t=A=+-—H
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KEEE ST ZEARFAERRTETRD 2 es
192,992,398 B T B — XM RIELLFIE - BRERITEFUA
LZIKERREIN REBFNRBEEEER
62,400,315 7T (ZE— R4 : 59,571,081 70) RARQ
BIYEA A JE (5 B 18133,610,0668 T ( = F — A 4F ¢
110,997,358 8 7T) °

HE_Z-—RF+RA=1+—-HILFENERENE
10881 (=T —R%F : FREE3298() -

BRI

Total assets BEEHAE
Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets EREEE
Total liabilities BEH%E
Current liabilities REAEE
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Net liabilities EEFE
Total deficit EiB4A%E
Share capital f& s
Reserves B
Non-controlling interests SRR R

As at 31 December 2016, total assets of the Group were
HK$149,094,373 (2015: HK$244,740,618), representing a
decrease of 39.1% as compared to that of 2015. In particular,
current assets decreased by 76.3% to HK$3,854,347 (2015:
HK$16,267,813) and non-current assets decreased by 36.4% to
HK$145,240,026 (2015: HK$228,472,805). The significant
decrease in current assets was mainly attributable to limited
cash resources available for operating the Group’s cash
generating units and the repayment of the secured bank loans
to Bank Rakyat during the year that substantially reduced the
cash and cash equivalents of the Company. The decrease in
non-current assets was primarily due to the impairment of
exploration and evaluation assets of HK$36,366,175, write-off of
property, plant and equipment of HK$13,131,002 and
depreciation and amortisation of HK$16,608,135 during the
year.

149,094,373 244,740,618
3,854,347 16,267,813
145,240,026 228,472,805
(204,862,814) (339,259,239)
(204,862,814) (331,256,091)
= (8,003,148)
(55,768,441) (94,518,621)
(55,768,441) (94,518,621)
1,367,875,301 1,367,875,301
(1,412,730,818)  (1,461,719,130)
(10,912,924) (674,792)

RZE—RNF+_A=+—H8 XEENBEEA
149,094,373 7T (Z T — R4 : 244,740,618/ 7T) * 48
b ZE-RFEREML39.1%  HF - FEBEERD
76.3% % 3,854,347 7T ( = & — T 4E : 16,267,813 %
T0)  IERBE E R L 36.4% E 145,240,026 L (=&
— R 2284728058 70) c mEBEEEFENMD T E
EHRFANLAERREERCEAEMNNREERE
4t % @) Bank Rakyat (&2 A EMIBTERRER DA
ANRERBEEEYME - ERDEERLS HEE
A A DR B 5T 1 8 EE R (B 36,366,175 78 7T ~ i 8
Y ¥ BB &R #513,131,00278 T LA K 3T B K 3 8
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Total liabilities as at 31 December 2016 were HK$204,862,814
(2015 HK$339,259,239), representing a decrease of 39.6% as
compared to that of 2015. In particular, current liabilities
decreased by 38.2% to HK$204,862,814 (2015: HK$331,256,091),
which was principally attributable to the settlement of the
secured bank loans and the escalated interest-bearing
borrowings at the end of the reporting date. As at 31 December
2016, the Group had no non-current liabilities (2015:
HK$8,003,148).

As at 31 December 2016, net current liabilities and total deficit
of the Group were HK$201,008,467 (2015: HK$314,988,278) and
HK$55,768,441 (2015: HK$94,518,621) respectively.

Capital Raising Exercise

On 2 March 2016, the Company and Upbest Securities Company
Limited ("Upbest”) entered into a placing agreement, whereby
the Company had conditionally agreed to place, through
Upbest, on a best effort basis, up to 1,101,924,000 placing
shares under the general mandate to not less than six
independent third parties at a placing price of HK$0.1 per
placing share (the “2016 Share Placement”). On 23 March
2016, the Company and Upbest further entered into a
supplemental agreement, pursuant to which the long stop date
of the 2016 Share Placement be extended to 13 April 2016 (or
such later date as both parties may agree in writing) and the
number of placee(s) to be procured by Upbest could be less
than six. In light of the then market circumstances and the
condition precedent of the placing agreement had not been
fulfilled, the Company and Upbest had entered into a deed of
termination and agreed to terminate the 2016 Share Placement
on 13 April 2016.

Secured Bank Loans

Subsequent to the acceptance of the bank loan restructuring
proposal offered by Bank Rakyat, CYMSB, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, had repaid all overdue secured
bank loans to Bank Rakyat during the year and accordingly, the
Group recorded no outstanding secured bank loans as at 31
December 2016 (2015: HK$260,423,032) and gain on loans
reduction of RM99,352,487 (equivalent to approximately
HK$192,992,398) (2015: HKS nil) was recognised in profit or loss.

Details of the Group'’s secured bank loans are set out in Note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Loans from Third Parties

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had outstanding loans
(the “Borrowings”) of HK$107,609,200 (2015: HK$1,800,000)
from independent third parties. The Borrowings carried fixed
interest rates ranging from 10.0% to 12.0% per annum and 2%
to 4% per month and were repayable within two months to one
year after the respective drawdown dates.

Details of the Group's Borrowings are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Convertible Bonds

As at 31 December 2016, the principal amount of the
convertible bonds of the Company (the “Matured Bonds”) in
default was HK$10,000,000 (2015: HK$29,000,000) which were
immediate due for repayment. The default interest thereon was
HK$3,234,970 (2015: interest (including default interest) of
HK$20,667,905). As at the approval date of the consolidated
financial statements, the Company has not yet concluded any
alterations in the terms of the Matured Bonds with the Matured
Bonds holder.

Details of the Group's convertible bonds are set out in Note 24
to the consolidated financial statements.

Unsecured Bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company issued
unsecured bonds in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$30,000,000 (2015: HKS$nil) to independent third parties. The
unsecured bonds are interest bearing at 2.0% per month and
will mature in twelve months after the issuance of the bonds.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2016, net current liabilities of the Group
stood at HK$201,008,467 (2015: HK$314,988,278). Besides, the
Group maintained cash and cash balances of HK$493,462 (2015:
HK$11,964,081). The Group's prepayments, deposits and other
receivables amounted to HK$3,212,239 (2015: HK$3,647,537).
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no outstanding
secured bank loan (2015: HK$260,423,032).

Included in current liabilities were interest-bearing borrowings
from independent third parties and finance lease creditors of
HK$137,658,154 (2015: HK$1,974,814). The Group had negative
gearing ratio of 3.29 times (2015: 3.11 times), which was
calculated on the basis of total finance leases, convertible
bonds and interest-bearing borrowings over total deficit
attributable to owners of the Company.
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The Directors have taken and/or will take the following actions
to mitigate the liquidity issues faced by the Group:

(i) the Directors review the Group's cash position regularly;

(i) the Group explores means to improve its cash flow
through bank or short-term borrowings and fund raising
activities in capital market;

(i) the Group is using its best efforts to (i) arrange to pay the
overdue interest to the holder of the Matured Bonds in
due course and (i) further negotiate with the bondholder
for the extension of maturity dates and proposed
alteration of terms of the Matured Bonds;,

(iv)  the Group is using its best efforts to (i) arrange to pay the
overdue principals and interests in respect of the interest-
bearing loans from independent third parties in due
course and (i) further negotiate with the lenders for the
extension of maturity dates and proposed alteration of
terms of the loans; and

(v)  the Group is seeking investors or strategic partners for the
Group's projects in Hong Kong, the PRC and the rest of
the world.

Details of the actions taken are set out in Note 2(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Charge on Assets

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the overdue secured
bank loans granted to CVYMSB were repaid in full and the
charged properties were discharged by Bank Rakyat and
redeemed by the Group.

On 30 July 2016, the Group obtained an interest-bearing loan
amounting to HK$50,000,000 from an independent third party
which was secured by way of a pledge over the entire issued
capital of CVMSB.

Capital Expenditure and Capital Commitment
The Group had no capital expenditure for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had capital commitments
contracted but not provided for of HK$13,660,426 (2015:
HK$14,244,500) in respect of certain construction, engineering
and management service contracts in Malaysia.
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Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions
and Disposals of Subsidiaries and Associated
Companies, and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

On 7 October 2016, the Directors resolved and established a
subsidiary in the United States of America for the purpose of
exploring and seeking potential business opportunities,
including the properties development and sale of properties,
trading of commodity products and/or new renewable energy
product.

Save for the above-mentioned and those disclosed in Note 17
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report,
there were no other significant investments held, nor were
there any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies, and future plans for material
investments or capital assets during the year ended 31
December 2016.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has issued corporate
guarantees totalling RM133,004 (equivalent to approximately
HK$230,000) (2015: RM133,004 (equivalent to approximately
HK$240,000)) for finance lease creditors in respect of the
purchase of motor vehicles by CVMSB.

The Matured Bonds remained in default and were immediately
due for repayments as at 31 December 2016. Pursuant to the
convertible bonds agreements, at any time after the convertible
bonds have become payable, the respective convertible
bondholders may without further notice institute such
proceedings as it may think fit to enforce payment of the
monies due.

The loans from third parties were defaulted and immediately
due for repayments as at 31 December 2016. Pursuant to the
loan agreements, the principal amount drawn and for the time
being outstanding under the facilities, all interest accrued
thereon and all other monies payable under the agreements to
be forthwith due and payable, the respective lenders may
without further notice institute such proceedings as it may think
fit to enforce payment of the monies due.
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Cash Flow

Year ended
31 December
Bz

+t=A=+—HLEFE

RERE

Net cash used in operating activities KEEEFEANReR=FE (27,736,796) (53,167,421
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing WEEBEL,(E8)

activities KR EREFHE 593,402 (9,943,091)
Net cash generated from financing activities MEEHELNR S RE R 15,664,518 74,704,415
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash ReRREEEWMF

equivalents CR), /1 hnga (11,478,876) 11,593,903

The Group reported net cash outflow in operating activities of
HK$27,736,796 for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$53,167,421), principally reflecting the effect of an accounting
adjustment for the gain on loans reduction of HK$192,992,398
(2015: nil) recorded during the year..

Net cash generated from investing activities was HK$593,402
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: net cash used in
investing activities of HK$9,943,091), mainly attributable to the
improvement works of Long Chuan which were completed this
year and accordingly, the deposits paid in 2015 were transferred
to property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Net cash generated from financing activities for the year was
HK$15,664,518 (2015: HK$74,704,415) as a consequence of
escalating proceeds arrived from interest-bearing borrowings.

Financial Ratios
The following table shows the key financial ratios indicating the
performance of the Group for the last five financial years:
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ZB-RF —T-RHE —T0F —T—=

2016
(times)
(%)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H
Gearing ratio’ (negative) BERABEXR (A8 3.29
Debt ratio? BEKLE? 1.37
Current ratio® TREhL RS 0.02

2015 2014 2013
(times) (times) (times)

= (f%) (f%)

3.1 1.56 2.32
1.39 2.01 1.35
0.05 0.01 0.02

2012

F T —F

(times)
(%)

42.30
0.85
0.05
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notes:

! Gearing ratio = (Obligations under finance lease + convertible bonds + bank
loans + interest-bearing borrowings)/Total deficit
attributable to owners of the Company

2 Debt ratio = Total liabilities/Total assets

3 Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had negative gearing ratio
of 3.29 times (2015: 3.11 times) and had a debt ratio of 1.37
times (2015: 1.39 times). On the other hand, the Group's current
ratio was 0.02 times (2015: 0.05 times). These ratios indicated
that the Group had high level of financial risk and had room to
improve its liquidity level.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to
government policy, relevant regulations and guidelines
established by the regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with
the rules and requirements may lead to penalties, amendments
or suspension of the business operation by the authorities. The
Group closely monitors changes in government policies,
regulations and markets as well as conducting studies to assess
the impact of such changes.

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in
parts of business to improve performance and efficiency of the
Group. While gaining the benefits from external service
providers, the management realizes that such operational
dependency may pose a threat of vulnerability to unexpected
poor or lapses in service including reputation damage, business
disruption and monetary losses. To address such uncertainties,
the Group engages only reputed third-party providers and
closely monitors their performance.
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Concentration Risks

The Group has relied on certain major suppliers and customers
for a significant portion of the purchases and sale. If the major
suppliers failed to make timely delivery of their products and
the Group fails to source from other suppliers in a timely and
cost-effective manner, the operation of the Group could be
delayed. The relationship between the Group and its customers
could also be adversely affected as a result of any such delays,
which could in turn materially and adversely affect the business
operations and financial performance of the Group.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot meet its current
obligations as they fall due. The liquidity of the Group is
primarily dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash
inflow from operations to meet its debt obligations as and when
they fall due and on its ability to obtain external financing for its
committed future capital expenditures. At 31 December 2016,
the Group had net current liabilities of HK$201,008,467 (2015:
HK$314,988,278). The Directors closely monitor the cash flows
of the Group and upon maturity, arrange renewal and
refinancing of the borrowings, as necessary, to enable the
Group to carry on its operations in the foreseeable future.

The Group is committed to monitor and manage its risks in
order to identify and assess risks of major projects and key
businesses at all levels. Through risk reports on weaknesses
and potential risks, the Group supervises and implements risk
management and control measures to improve its
comprehensive risk management practices and initiatives
across the Group.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the largest and top five customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 57% and 100% of the total revenue
of the Group, respectively (2015: 59% and 100% respectively).

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group's largest and top five suppliers were approximately 86%
and 100% of the Group's total purchase respectively (2015: 53%
and 100% respectively).

During the year, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none
of the Directors, senior management or their respective close
associates or any shareholders of the Company who holds
more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company had
any interest in the five largest customers or the five largest
suppliers of the Group.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
page 102.

DIVIDENDS
The Directors did not declare any interim or final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

DONATIONS
The Group did not make any charitable donations during the
year (2015: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and Note 28(a) to the financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves calculated
under the provisions of Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), were represented by accumulated losses
of HK$1,592,807,754 (2015: HK$1,392,423,999). At 31 December
2016 and 2015, there are no distributable reserves available to
owners of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Additions to property, plant and equipment of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to HK$9,274,725
(2015: HK$85,650). Details of the movements in property, plant
and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Du Jian Jun (Chairman)

Mr. Ji Kuang (Co-Vice Chairman)

Mr. Li Po Wai (Co-Vice Chairman)

Mr. Leung Wai Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Fan Weipeng

Mr. Leung Kwok Pang Joseph (appointed on 29 June 2016)
Ms. Meng Xiao Ying

Mr. Yin Shibo

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip

Ms. Li Zhenzhen

Mr. Liu Bo

Mr. Tong Zhu (appointed on 29 June 2016)

Ms. Tian Jinghua (retired on 28 June 2016)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the
section “Board of Directors” of this report.

At the annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM")
held on 28 June 2016, an ordinary resolution to re-elect Ms. Tian
Jinghua (“Ms. Tian") as an independent non-executive Director
was negatived by the shareholders of the Company and
accordingly, Ms. Tian retired as an independent non-executive
Director and ceased to be a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee with effect from the conclusion of the AGM. Ms.
Tian confirmed that she had no disagreement with the Board
and there is no other matter in relation to her retirement that
needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers all such Directors are independent.

28 DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED S MiE%iZRERA =

E=E
RAFERBERREAMIENESNAT

HITES

HEERE(ZE)

MEXE (BFEEEE)
FEERE(HEHLE)

RGBT (TTRABE)

SEEBEE
REBEE(R—F—R"FRAAZTNLBEZRE)
fNERZ L

FORFEE

BYFHTES

BREZEE

FER L

B
RB|EERZE-—R"ERNAZTNAEZE)
AsELE(RZZ—RFRAZTNRHED)

EENBERFBRRNARSE [EEE| -

RARBRRRARAR -ZE—REFNA T NARE
ZHERBFAE(RRBFAE)) LHREEMRE
ZH((ARL ) RBUGFATESEZEBRESR
It ARt REBIFRTES  RARRBFAE
HERETBAEREZES FHZEeMiER%ES
ZHRE - ARTHR RREFSAUESEOL A
WEARELREZEMEMERARBAARKRRE
x e

i 2

ARRERESEILIFATESTRIE LHRANEII3
FELABEBIMENFERRE  RARARRZ
EEEREY -



ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year was
the Company, the Company’s subsidiaries or holding
companies, or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has any existing or proposed service
contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company, or any of its holding Company, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the
Company or his connected entities had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors and their
respective close associates was considered to have any
interests in the businesses which compete or were likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group, other than those businesses where the Directors were
appointed as Directors to represent the interests of the
Company and/or the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUED
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements which were fully exempt from the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, the Group did not enter into any connected or continuing
connected transactions during the year ended 31 December
2016.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the
year or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 14 October 2008. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is (i) to attract and retain the best quality
personnel for the development of the Company’s businesses; (ii)
to provide additional incentives to the employees; (iii) to provide
eligible participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company; and (iv) to promote the long term
financial success of the Company by aligning the interests of
grantees to the Shareholders. Under the Share Option Scheme,
the Board shall be entitled at any time (except for the period as
defined under the Listing Rules whereby price sensitive event or
a price sensitive matter has been the subject of a decision)
within 10 years commencing on the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme to make an offer for the grant of an
option to any employee (including any officer or director,
whether executive or non-executive, of the Company or its
subsidiaries), and any consultant, adviser, supplier, customer or
subcontractor of the Company or any other person determined
by the Board as appropriate.

The shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The
maximum number of shares available for issue under options
which may be granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued shares of the Company. The total number of shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options (whether exercised or outstanding) in any 12-month
period granted to each grantee must not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue, such further grant shall be
subject to separate approval by the Shareholders in general
meeting with the relevant grantee and his associates abstaining
from voting.
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The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall
be such price as the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine at the time of grant of the relevant option but the
subscription price shall not be less than whichever is the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the
Company. An offer shall remain open for acceptance for a
period of 28 days from the date of offer (or such longer period
as the Board may specify in writing). HK$1.00 is payable by the
grantee to the Company on acceptance of the offer of the
option. The period within which the shares of the Company
must be taken up under an option shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such
period must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the
date of its termination on 4 February 2016, no share option has
been granted or agreed to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

New Share Option Scheme

In view of the fact that the existing Share Option Scheme will
expire and the amendments to the relevant Listing Rules since
the adoption of the existing Share Option Scheme, an ordinary
resolution was duly passed in the extraordinary general meeting
held on 4 February 2016 to terminate the existing Share Option
Scheme and adopted a new share option scheme of the
Company (the “New Share Option Scheme”).

The purposes of the New Share Option Scheme are (i) to
motivate the eligible participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (i) attract and retain
or otherwise maintain on-going business relationship with the
eligible participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the long-term growth of the Group. Under the New Share
Option Scheme, the Board shall be entitled at any time (except
for the period as defined under the Listing Rules whereby price
sensitive event or a price sensitive matter has been the subject
of a decision) within 10 years commencing on the date of
adoption of the Scheme to make an offer for the grant of an
option to any employee (including any officer or director,
whether executive or non-executive, of the Company or its
subsidiaries), and any consultant, adviser, supplier, customer or
subcontractor of the Company or any other person determined
by the Board as appropriate.
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Subject to the refreshment of the Scheme Limit, the maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
(including shares in respect of which options, whether exercised
or still outstanding, have already been granted) under the New
Share Option Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of Shares in issue on the adoption date of the
New Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme Limit”), excluding for
this purpose Shares which would have been issuable pursuant
to Options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the New Share Option Scheme (or any other share option
schemes of the Company). The total number of shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
(whether exercised or outstanding) in any 12-month period
granted to each grantee must not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue, such further grant shall be subject to
separate approval by the Shareholders in general meeting with
the relevant grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in
issue from time to time (the “Maximum Limit").

The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall
be such price as the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine at the time of grant of the relevant option but the
subscription price shall not be less than whichever is the higher
of () the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and (ii) the average closing prices of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant. The acceptance date of an offer shall be a date
not later than 30 days after the offer date. HK$1.00 is payable
by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of the offer of
the option. The period within which the shares of the Company
must be taken up under an option shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such
period shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.

On 12 May 2016, a total of 245,178,252 share options were
granted to the eligible persons.
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Details of the movements of the share options granted under
the New Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31

December 2016 are as follows:

Participants

Directors
BF
Du Jian Jun
TtiEE

JiKuang
HE

Leung Wai Kwan
RUEE

Li Po Wai
FEE

Meng Xiao Ying

FRISS

Feng Wei Peng
Bl

Yin Shibo
FHE

Chan Kin Ho
Philip
REx

Tian Jinghua

(note 1)
H&E (1)

Date of grant

12.05.2016
ZE-REF
AA+=H
12.05.2016
—E—RF
HA+Z=H
12.05.2016
—E-REF
AA+=H
12.05.2016
—E—RF
HA+Z=H
12.05.2016
ZE-REF
AA+=H
12.05.2016
—E—RF
HA+Z=H
12.05.2016
—E-REF
AA+=H
12.05.2016

—ZTRF
HA+=H
12.05.2016

—E-RE
HA+=H

Exercise period

12.05.2016 - 12.05.2026
—Z-RNFRATZHE
—E-ARFRA+T=H
12.05.2016 - 12.05.2026
—E-RFRA+ZHE
—ZT-AFRA+Z=AH
12.05.2016 - 12.05.2026
“E-RNFRATZHE
—E-ARFRA+T=H
12.05.2016 - 12.05.2026
—E-RFRA+ZHE
—ZT-AFRA+Z=AH
12.05.2016 - 12.05.2026
—E-RNFRATZHE
ZZRFRA+TZ=AH
12.05.2016 - 12.05.2026
—E-RFRA+ZHZE
—ZT-AFRA+TZ=AH
12.05.2016 - 12.05.2026
“Z-RNFRATZHE
ZERFRA+TZ=AH
12.05.2016 - 12.05.2026

—ET-RERA+=HE
ZEZRFRATZH
12.05.2016 - 12.05.2026

—E-RFRA+=HE
TR FRA+Z=AH

Exercise
price
per share

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10
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T—RFT A=+ —HIEFEREFER
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Number of share options
BREZE
Lapsed/
Granted Exercised Cancelled
during during during
the year the year the year

FRABAXK
s

55,096,239 - -

11,019,247 - -

55,096,239 - -

11,019,247 - -

11,019,247 - -

11,019,247 - -

5,509,623 - -

5,509,623 - -

2,754,811 - _

Balance

as at

31 December
2016
R-B-—X&
+=A
==l
2

55,096,239

11,019,247

55,096,239

11,019,247

11,019,247

11,019,247

5,509,623

5,509,623

2,754,811
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Number of share options
BREZE

Outstanding Lapsed/ Balance

Exercise

as at Granted Exercised Cancelled as at

price 4 February during during during 31 December
Participants Date of grant  Exercise period per share

2016 the year the year the year 2016
R-B-—XE

R-Z—RE t=A

BRITEE

—AmA =t+—-H
i RATHE FRBATE /8 R

Li Zhenzhen 12.05.2016 12.05.2016 — 12.05.2026 0.10 - 2,754,811 - - 2,754,811
ES37 —ZTRF —T-XERA+T=AE
RA+Z=H ZEZAFRATZ=H
Liu Bo 12.05.2016 12.05.2016 — 12.05.2026 0.10 - 2,754,811 - - 2,754,811
2% —E-RE —E-RERA+=HZE
AA+=H —ZE- X FRA+Z=AH
Sub-total /&t - 173,553,145 - - 173,553,145
Employees 12.05.2016 12.05.2016 - 12.05.2026 0.10 - 66115485 - - 66115485
BB —E-RE —Z-XFRATZAE
AA+=H —Z- X FRA+Z=A
Consultants 12.05.2016 12.05.2016 - 12.05.2026 0.10 - 5,509,622 - - 5,509,622
=15 ZERF —ZT—XERA+T=AE
hA+Z=H ZEZRFRA+TZ=H
Total 45t - 245,178,252 - - 245,178,252
note: W
1 Ms. Tian Jinghua (“Ms. Tian") retired as an independent non-executive 1 ARELE (A R-FT—X

Director on 28 June 2016. Pursuant to the terms of the New Share Option
Scheme, Ms. Tian may exercise the share options up to her entitlement
within twelve months from the date of her retirement as an independent
non-executive Director.

The value of the options granted to the eligible participants
during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in Note 29
to the consolidated financial statements.

Convertible Bonds

Details of the convertible bonds of the Company are set out in
the Note 24 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES EENRSF2ER

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of R-ZT—XFE+-A=+—HB KEEZERAQFTETE
each Director and chief executive of the Company in the shares, {THABRAAT R EEREE (F5 RES MPEK
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any I ([# & REEEH ) FEXVED) 2 B&D - BRERD &
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the &5 BB @) DHERARRATREBEESFRREELE
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) (a) as recorded in 35217 & 2 & ot 2 X KA B + sk (b) IR IEZ AT
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or  BIAEM T X MER AR RESH AL ZHBR A A
(b) as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock  ([BZER]) 2z RARMT

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of RAQATRHGREBBEROZFA
the Company

Total number of
ordinary shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage of
shares interested shares of
or deemed the Company
to be interested in issue
AR
REREERZZ HAEAT
TER A ERTREZ
% 17 48 2 BABE D
(note 1)
(BRZE)

Director Capacity

Du Jianjun 2 Beneficial owner 55,096,239 1.00%
HEE E=EAA
JiKuang Beneficial owner 11,019,247 0.20%
HE EmfEA A
Li PO Wai Beneficial owner 11,019,247 0.20%
FER E=EAA
Leung Wai Kwan Beneficial owner 57,191,739 1.04%
RER EmfEA A
Interest of spouse 4,986,750 0.09%
i
Fan Weipeng Beneficial owner 11,019,247 0.20%
SBEN ExnEAA
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Director Capacity

Meng Xiao Ying 2 Beneficial owner
&N EnEA A
Yin Shibo 2 Beneficial owner
FR EmBEAA
Chan Kin Ho Philip 2 Beneficial owner
PRIES EnEA A
Li Zhenzhen 2 Beneficial owner
£33 EmBEAA
Liu Bo 2 Beneficial owner
2 EnEA A
notes:

1. The percentage of share of the Company in issue is based on 5,509,623,921
shares of the Company issued as at 31 December 2016.

2. These figures represent the share options granted to the Directors under
the New Share Option Scheme on 12 May 2016.

3. This figure represents 1,087,500 shares beneficially owned by Mr. Leung
Wai Kwan and 55,096,239 share options granted to him under the New
Share Option Scheme on 12 May 2016. Mr. Leung was also deemed, by
virtue of SFO, to be interested in 4,986,750 shares of the Company in
which his spouse has a long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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underlying percentage of

shares interested shares of

or deemed the Company
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EERERD

REBEERDZ HERAT

TER ERITRGZ

IR 453 48 % BAED

(note 1)

(f4=E1)

11,019,247 0.20%

5,509,623 0.10%

5,509,623 0.10%

2,754,811 0.05%

2,754,811 0.05%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons or entities,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had or
were deemed to have interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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FERRER

RIB-RF+ZA=+—08 TIALTRER(ES
RARNBEBITRABRIN &BRANR AR SHAHR
Betn e A SR BB IRIEE 5 LS (R B % 336 15
CHNARBATIFEZECMZERIOABAT

Total humber of

ordinary shares/
underlying shares
interested

or deemed

to be interested
BERERED
REBEES
ZEBER A

IR 5 48 8,

Substantial shareholder

Capacity

Approximate

percentage of
shares of

the Company
in issue

EEAT
S RITREG
ZHBHN B

Gu Zhuoheng Beneficial owner
AEE EmfEA A

note: The percentage of share of the Company in issue is based on 5,509,623,921
shares of the Company issued as at 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Company
has not been notified by any person or entity who had or was
deemed to have interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of SFO.

DIRECTOR’S AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, no
Directors or controlling shareholder of the Company or their
respective subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group and to which the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
company was a party, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

(note)
(B &E)

332,466,000 6.03%

Mzt : ARFCBTRNVEDLIBRERAATAR-_T - F+=A
=+— BB %175,509,623,921 D EHE -

BREXFEZREN RZTE—R"EF+ZA=+—8"
ARBWEEEMALTRERE NS HBIERARRF
Rt S AR B AL P B R R R o5 S BB 1 1) 56 336
FRERNRAEATFEZECMZERIOXE

EERERBRRRRS - ZHFEHEVNES

BRI MR IBAMIRBESN - B EER A QAR
RIZER S MEES BB RRNART - EMEAR -
) 5 Y /B8 R B Sk B A RIVE AT 4977 FT 22 AT /O (E o] £
AEBEXBAERBEARFERKFEAREMERDE
BHRZ - AN T ERAREREE AR -
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual Report,
the Company maintained a sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company's total issued share capital held by
the public.

SHARE CAPITAL
The share capital of the Company was HK$1,367,875,301 as at
31 December 2016 and 2015.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every
Director shall be indemnified out of the funds of the Company
against all liabilities incurred by him as such Director in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted, or in
connection with any application under the Companies
Ordinance in which relief from liability is granted to him by the
Court. In addition, liability insurance for Directors is maintained
by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain legal
actions against the Directors.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of approximately
80 employees (2015: 80 employees). Total staff costs (including
Directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31 December 2016
were HK$19,016,094 (2015: HK$9,488,466) representing
approximately 30.1% (2015: 11.1%) of the Group’s total cost of
sales, selling and administrative expenses.

Remuneration packages of the Directors are recommended by
the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.
Employee remuneration will be determined by the management
with reference to the performance, experience and industry
practice. Employees are remunerated based on their
performance, experience and industry practice. Bonuses are
rewarded based on individual staff performance and in
accordance with the Group's overall remuneration policies. The
Group’s management reviews the remuneration policies and
packages on a regular basis.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group during the year are set out in
Notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016
have been audited by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited. A
resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Limited as auditors of the Company. There has been no change
in the auditors of the Company in the recent three years.

On behalf of the Board

Ding He Mining Holdings Limited
Du Jian Jun

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017
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The board (the “Board"”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Ding
He Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present the corporate
governance report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to enhancing the corporate
governance and transparency of the Group by applying the
principles in the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
(the “Listing Rules"”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Board reviews its corporate governance practices from
time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of
shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements and to fulfill its commitment to maintain a high
standard of corporate governance. To the best knowledge and
belief of the Directors, the Company has applied the principles
of the CG Code and complied with all applicable code provisions
of the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016,
save and except for the deviations from code provisions A.2.7,
A41,A6.7and C.2.5.

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code provides that the chairman
should at least annually hold meetings with the non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors)
without the executive directors present. Taking into account the
Chairman, Mr. Du Jian Jun is also an executive Director of the
Company (the "Executive Director”), no meeting shall
therefore be held between the chairman (the “Chairman”) and
the non-executive Directors of the Company (the “Non-
executive Directors”) without the Executive Directors
present.

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
("Independent Non-executive Directors”) were not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”).
As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the corporate governance practices
of the Company are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.
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Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. All Independent Non-executive
Directors were unable to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 28 June 2016 due to their other business
engagements.

Code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code provides that an issuer
should have an internal audit function. The Company does not
maintain an internal audit function for the year ended 31
December 2016. Taking into account the size and complexity of
the operations of the Group and the potential costs involved in
setting up an internal audit function, the Company considers
that the existing organisation structure and the close
supervision of the management could provide sufficient risk
management and internal control for the Group. The Board will
review regularly the need to set up an internal audit function or
engage an independent professional service provider to review
the Group's internal control and risk management system.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of practice for carrying out securities transactions by the
Directors. After specific enquiry with all members of the Board,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have fully complied
with the relevant standards stipulated in the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

THE BOARD

The Board guides and monitors the business and affairs of the
Company to enhance long-term shareholders’ value. It is the
responsibility of the Board to determine the appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company’s
circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures are in
place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are held by separate individuals with a view to
maintain effective segregation of duties between the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management of
the Group's business and operations. One of the important
roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board to
assure the Board acting in the best interests of the Group. The
Chairman shall ensure the Board working effectively and fully
discharging its responsibilities, and that every key issue is
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. All Directors have
been consulted about any matters proposed for inclusion in the
agenda. With the support of the Chief Executive Officer and the
company secretary of the Company (the “"Company
Secretary”), the Chairman seeks to ensure all Directors are
properly informed on issues arising at any Board meeting and
have received adequate and reliable information in a timely
manner.

Board Composition

The Board Currently consists of twelve Directors (including the
Chairman), amongst which eight are Executive Directors and
four are Independent Non-executive Directors.

As at 31 December 2016, members of the Board are set out as
below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Du Jian Jun (Chairman)

Mr. Ji Kuang (Co-Vice Chairman)

Mr. Li Po Wai (Co-Vice Chairman)

Mr. Leung Wai Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fan Weipeng

Mr. Leung Kwok Pang Joseph

Ms. Meng Xiao Ying

Mr. Yin Shibo

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip

Ms. Li Zhenzhen

Mr. Liu Bo

Mr. Tong Zhu
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The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure
that it has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience
which can meet the requirements of the business of the
Company. The Board includes four Independent Non-executive
Directors, in which Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip (“Mr. Chan”) is a
certified public accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan possesses
extensive experience in the accountancy profession and has
appropriate accounting and related financial management
expertise. The biographical details of the Directors are set out
under the section “Board of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 61 to 66.

During the year, the Executive Directors and the Independent
Non-executive Directors provided the Group with wide range of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism.
The active participation of the Independent Non-executive
Directors in the Board and committee meetings brought
independent judgement on issues relating to the Group's
strategy, performance and management process, taking into
account the interests of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company. The Board determines the overall strategies,
monitors and controls operating and financial performance,
sets objectives and business development plans and makes key
decisions of the Company. The day-to-day management and
operation are delegated to the Executive Directors and senior
management. The delegated functions are closely supervised
by the Board to ensure effectiveness and alignment with the
overall strategies of the Company. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions to be
entered into by the senior management.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Company as well as the advices
and services of the Company Secretary, if and when required,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed.

There are established procedures for Directors to seek
independent professional advices for them to discharge their
duties and responsibilities, where appropriate at the expenses
of the Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material
relationships among members of the Board.
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Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14 days'
notice of a Board meeting is normally given to all Directors who
are given an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the
agenda. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in
preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors
at least three days before the intended date of a regular Board
meeting (and so far as practicable for such other Board
meetings). All minutes and/or resolutions are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Whereas a substantial Shareholder or Director has conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board and the
Board has determined it is material, such matter will then be
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The
Articles of Association stipulates that save for the exceptions as
provided therein, a Director shall abstain from voting and not be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving any contract
or arrangement in which such Director or any of his associates
have a material interest.

Each Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and
other related materials and have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. The Board and individual
Director also have separate and independent access to the
senior management of the Company. Directors are continuously
updated with the major developments of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements so as to ensure the
Company’s compliance and upkeep good corporate governance
practices. In addition, Directors are allowed to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
for discharging their duties at the expense of the Company.

Major responsibilities of the Board include but not limited to:

o develop and review the corporate governance policies
and practices of the Company;

o review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

o review and monitor the policies and practices of the
Company for the compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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o develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to directors and employees; and

o review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board and the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) have reviewed the independence
of the Independent Non-executive Directors and considered all
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent within
the definition of the Listing Rules.

All Independent Non-executive Directors were not appointed
with specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Accordingly, the
Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure corporate governance practices of the Company are of
no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

Directors Commitments and Continuous
Professional Development

The Company has received confirmation from each Director
that he/she has given sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Directors have disclosed to the Company the number and
nature of offices held in Hong Kong and overseas listed public
companies or organisations.

Each newly appointed Director receives an induction on his/her
appointment to ensure that he/she has proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules, applicable laws and other relevant statutory
requirements. Directors are continually provided with updates
on statutory and regulatory developments, evolution of the
business environment so as to facilitate them to discharge their
duties.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, Directors
received continuous professional development with an
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of being a director
of a listed company in compliance with code provision A.6.5 of
the Code during year ended 31 December 2016:

REARANRE BE_T—R"F+-_HA=1+—H
HEE - EFRETRTAIGRXEALS K EXH
BEXRR ABRETREALTRAESENAEL
BEERBE

Executive Directors BITES
Du Jian Jun MEE

Ji Kuang HE

Li Po Wai TEE
Fan Weipeng B
Leung Wai Kwan RUEE
Leung Kwok Pang Joseph 2E g
Meng Xiao Ying HNE
Yin Shibo FAR

Independent Non-executive BYXHTES
Directors

Chan Kin Ho Philip fRE =

Li Zhenzhen ES732

Liu Bo 2

Tong Zhu (3=

Tian Jinghua M

notes:

1. Mr. Leung Kwok Pang Joseph was appointed as an Executive Director on
29 June 2016.

2. Mr. Tong Zhu was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director on
29 June 2016.

3. Ms. Tian lJinghua retired as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 28
June 2016.

Directors and Officers Policy

During the year ended 31 December 2016, appropriate
insurance coverage on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has
been in force to protect the directors and officers of the Group
from their risk exposure arising from the business of the Group.
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Board Diversity

The Nomination Committee adopted the board diversity policy
of the Company which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company recognises the benefits of
board diversity and endeavours to ensure that the Board has
appropriate balance and level of skills, experience and
perspectives required to support the execution of its business
strategies. The Company seeks to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of various factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be based on the
candidates’ merits and contributions to the Board. The
Nomination Committee reviews the board diversity policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness from time to time. The
Company considers that the current Board composition is
characterised by diversity, whether considered in terms of
gender, professional background, skills and knowledge.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
was established with written terms of reference specifying its
authority and duties which is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. As at 31 December 2016,
the Audit Committee comprises four members who are
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely,

Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip (Chairman)

Ms. Li Zhenzhen

Mr. Liu Bo

Mr. Tong Zhu
The primary terms of the Audit Committee are as follows:
On external audit:

o make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor and
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor;

o review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence
as well as the objectives and effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards;
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o discuss with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations and ensure co-ordination where
more than one audit firm is involved; and

o develop and implement policy on the engagement of the
external auditor to provide non-audit services.

On annual financial results:

o monitor integrity of the interim and annual financial
statements and interim and annual reports and accounts,
and review significant financial reporting judgements
contained therein before submission to the Board;

o review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

o review external auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to the management in
respect of accounting records, financial accounts or
system of control and management response; and

o consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in the interim and annual reports
and accounts and give due consideration to any matters
that have been raised by the Group.

On risk management and internal control systems:

o review the Group’s financial controls and its internal
control and risk management systems;

o discuss with management the systems of risk
management and internal control and ensure that
management has discharged its duty to have effective
systems including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and its
training programmes and budget;

o consider any findings of major investigation of risk
management and internal control matters as delegated by
the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
responses thereto;
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] ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors and that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Group;
and

o report to the Board on the matters raised in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its responsibilities. For the year ended 31 December
2016, the Audit Committee held three meetings to review with
external auditor and senior management the interim and annual
results of the Group as well as the accounting principles and
practices being adopted and financial reporting matters. The
senior management and the external auditor of the Company
attended the meetings to respond to any queries raised by the
Audit Committee.

During the year, the Audit Committee had considered, reviewed
and/or discussed the following matters:

audit and financial reporting matters;

o connected transactions of the Group;

o re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as the
Company’s external auditor for the financial year ended
31 December 2016;

° interim and annual financial results;

o report on the Group's internal audit and audit activity
status; and

J review the financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was established with written
terms of reference specifying its authority and duties which is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Remuneration Committee comprised four
members who are Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely,

o Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip (Chairman)
o Ms. Li Zhenzhen

o Mr. Liu Bo

o Mr. Tong Zhu

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in its terms of reference which are posted on the websites
of Stock Exchange and the Company. Primary terms include:

o make recommendations to the Board on policy and
structure of remuneration of the Directors and senior
management whereby the Board has the final authority to
approve the remuneration of Directors and senior
management;

o determine the remuneration packages of each Director
and member of the senior management by reference to
corporate goals; and

o ensure no Directors or any of their associates are involved
in deciding their own remuneration packages and
objectives and compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors.

The remuneration package of each Director is determined by
reference to the prevailing market conditions, his/her duties
and responsibilities to the Company and the Company’s
remuneration policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration
Committee had held one meeting to discuss the remuneration
policy and review the remuneration of the Board, and make
recommendations to the Board having taken into consideration
of the current situation of the economy and the results of the
Group.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Code, the remuneration
of the members of senior management by band for the year
ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:

Remuneration (by band)
N (iREEE 5)

HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000

Included in the remuneration of the member(s) of senior
management are salary, bonus, equity-settled share-based
payments and retirement scheme contributions. Further
particulars in relation to Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 9 and 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms
of reference specifying its authority and duties which is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Nomination Committee comprised four
members, amongst whom three are Independent Non-
executive Directors and one is Executive Director, namely,

Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip (Chairman)

Ms. Li Zhenzhen

Mr. Liu Bo

Mr. Tong Zhu

With the aim to build up a strong and diverse Board, the
Nomination Committee would identify suitable and qualified
individuals, in particular those who can add value to the
management through their expertise in relevant strategic
business areas, to be the board members, and would
recommend the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors, if necessary.
Details of the procedure for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are outlined in the “Procedure for
Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a Director”
which is available on the website of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee had held one meeting to review the structure and
diversity of the Board, the policies applicable to the Board
composition and nomination, the term of appointment of Non-
executive Directors and to assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors taking into account their experience
and qualifications.

The primary terms of the Nomination Committee include:

o review and supervise the structure, size and composition
of the Board;

o develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the
qualification of and evaluating candidates for directorship;
and

o make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
nominated directorship and matters related to
appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to re-election by the
Shareholders at the next general meeting of the Company after
their appointments, but shall not be taken into account in
determining the Directors who are to retire by rotation at such
meeting. In addition, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by
rotation (but will be eligible for re-election) such that all
Directors should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.
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The Nomination Committee follows a set of procedures when
recommending candidates for the directorship. The primary
criteria of selecting a candidate include assessing his:

J integrity, objectivity, and intelligence of the person, with
reputations for sound judgement and open mind, and a
demonstrated capacity for thoughtful group decision
making;

o qualification and career experience; and
o understanding of the Company and its Group mission.

When a candidate is proposed for a directorship, he/she shall
be evaluated on the basis of the aforementioned criteria.
Selection of the suitable candidate is based on a majority vote
and the view of each committee member will be sought before
voting commences. The chairman of the Nomination Committee
will present the proposal (with the voting results) and
recommendations to the Board.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee had
considered and recommended the following changes to the
Board:

o the appointment of Mr. Leung Kwok Pang Joseph as the
Executive Director; and

o the appointment of Mr. Tong Zhu as the Independent
Non-Executive Director.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company had
held 38 Board meetings, three Audit Committee meetings, one
Nomination Committee meeting, one Remuneration Committee
meeting and one general meeting. The individual attendance
record of each Director at the Board meetings, Board
committees meetings and general meeting during the year is
set out below and is presented by reference to the number of
meetings held during their tenure:

ESENREEEER
BE-T-AF+-A=+BLFE ARALE
T=+N\REFEEH  RERZEEEH - — K

REZEBEEHR  —RFMZBEEERL—AKRAX
T-FN BREFHFEFEESR EFZEEY
@ L BERAGHNERGEERIIMT - DHEEREAES
NFFRITHE R RBM 7 :

Number of meetings attended/held
HE/ BTERNRY
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General

Board Committee Committee Committee meeting

Name of director -

Executive Directors #HT&=

Du Jian Jun HEE 38/38
JiKuang HE 18/38
Li Po Wai FTEE 11/38
Leung Wai Kwan RUEE 33/38
Fan Weipeng SRS 13/38
Leung Kwok Pang 2EE 1 13/23
Joseph
Meng Xiao Ying | 33/38
Yin Shibo FK 5/38
Independent BYKHTES
Non-executive
Directors
ChanKin Ho Philip BEs 20/38
Li Zhenzhen 327 13/38
Liu Bo 2 4/38
Tong Zhu #ig 2 12/23
Tian Jinghua e 3 4/15
notes:
1. Mr. Leung Kwok Pang Joseph was appointed as the Executive Director on
29 June 2016.
2. Mr. Tong Zhu was appointed as the Independent Non-executive Director

on 29 June 2016.

3. Ms. Tian Jinghua retired as Independent Non-executive Director on 28 June
2016.
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Minutes of the Board and Board Committees meetings have
been recorded in sufficient details including any matters
considered in the meetings, decisions reached and concerns or
gueries raised by the Directors or dissenting views expressed.
Draft and final versions of minutes of the Board and Board
committees are sent to all Directors or Committee members for
comments and records respectively within a reasonable time
after the meeting.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Sharon Kwan was appointed as the Company Secretary on
22 May 2015. Pursuant to rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms.
Kwan confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2016. The Company Secretary is responsible to the
Board for ensuring that board procedures are followed and the
Board is fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments and that it has regard to them when
making decisions.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Shareholder(s) representing at
least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having a
right to vote at general meetings may request the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting. The related
requisition must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the meeting and may include the text of a
resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at the meeting. The request(s) must be signed by the
Shareholder(s) who requested to convene the meeting and
deposited at the registered office of the Company or sent to the
Company via email at info@dinghemining.com.hk.
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Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries
and Proposals to the Board

To foster regular and contribute two-way communications
amongst the Company, its Shareholders and potential investors,
the Chief Executive Officer is designated to respond to enquiries
and proposals from Shareholders as well as the public.
Enquiries and concerns of the Shareholders and other
stakeholders can be made in writing to the Chief Executive
Officer via the following contact details:

By mail Flat B, 21st Floor,
Neich Tower,
128 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

By fax (852) 2598 0188

By email info@dinghemining.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Communications with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with Shareholders. Information in relation to the
Group is disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner
through a number of formal channels including interim and
annual reports, announcements and circulars. Such published
documents together with the latest corporate information and
news are also made available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The annual general meeting and extraordinary general meeting
of the Company are valuable platforms for the Board to
communicate directly with the Shareholders. The Chairman
actively participates at annual general meeting(s) and personally
chairs the meeting to answer any question to ensure effective
communication with the Shareholders.

The chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee or in their absence,
another member of the respective committees or failing that
their respective duly appointed delegate, are also available to
answer Shareholders’ queries at annual general meeting(s) and
extraordinary general meeting.
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The chairman of any independent board committee formed as
necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such
chairman is appointed, at least a member of the independent
board committee) will also be available to answer questions at
the general meeting to approve a connected transaction or any
other transactions that are subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval. Separate resolutions are proposed at
the general meetings for each substantial issue, including the
re-election of retiring Directors. The notice to Shareholders is to
be sent in the case of an annual general meeting at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least
10 clear business days before the meeting in the case of all
other general meetings. An explanation on the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll is provided to the
Shareholders at the commencement of the meeting and the
Chairman will answer any questions from Shareholders
concerning poll vote. The poll results are published in the
manner prescribed under the requirements of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no
changes on the Company'’s constitutional documents.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group'’s internal control system
to safeguard the assets of the Group and shareholder
investments. The internal control system of the Group aims to
facilitate effective and efficient operation which in turn
minimises the risks to which the Group is exposed. The system
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
misstatement or losses.

The Board reviews the implemented system and procedures of
the Group annually, covering financial, operational and legal
compliance controls and risk management functions to identify
significant risks, fulfill risk management responsibility, and
organise and formulate major strategies and measures against
significant risks with integration with internal control.
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The Group adopts a risk management framework which
comprises the following processes:

identify significant risk in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks on
the Group's business;

develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and

monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group formulated the policies and procedures of risk
management and internal control as follows:

the Group established an organisational structure with
clear operating and reporting procedures, lines of
responsibility and delegated authority;

each operating subsidiary maintains internal controls and
procedures appropriate to its structure whilst complying
with the Group's policies, standards and guidelines,

relevant Executive Directors have been delegated with
specific accountability for monitoring the performance of
designated business operating units;

a systematic review of the financial and business
processes in order to provide management on the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls. Where
weaknesses are identified in the system of internal
controls, the Executive Directors will evaluate and take
necessary measures to ensure that improvements are
implemented; and

code of conducts are established and adhered to by all
employees to ensure high standards of conduct and
ethical values in all business practices.

The Board is committed to timely, accurately and sufficiently
disclosure of material information about the Group. The
Company adopts policy on inside information disclosure which
sets out the obligations, guidelines and procedures for handling
and disseminating inside information. With those guidelines and
procedures, the Directors ensure potential inside information is
promptly identified, assessed and disclosed in accordance with
the regulatory requirements.

58

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiEX£ZERERAR

0

AEBRARBRERIER  BPBEATRE

—  BRIAREEEERENEANRR
BAKEEBNTE

AFh B

—  HIENLENREE BEZIRR &

— Rk LlEERE AR -

RICEII AR E I E R ERE R kAR ERBOR KR
o

— AFAEBEERIABBMEENAREFARE
ERFERRERNEMIE

— BREMBARERISHEBHANIEZER
B ARNETARENERER  RERES

—  HENRITERDERRE  WRIFKEEMEE
EBNERRABABNE(L
—  HMBEEEBRIETRESEORE - B

EENELERARIEETER - BERBAME
ERGFAERE  BITEEASETIE  LEE
VEERE  BRIEDNRE R

—  HEER2EETNITAER  BREMEER
BRETRMSFENTRREREER -

EEeRIREE BERESHREEHASEN
EZER - ARTARMABEERERE SRR
EREENMEENRS - HIIRERF - *ET)%EZ%TE%I
KigF  BEFERARARBEERTRLRHG - FHE
RBEBEENABES



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In the previous years, the Board engaged independent internal
control consultants to undertake reviews of the internal control
system of the Group. The Board noted the material issues
identified by the independent internal control consultants and
has taken on-going steps to rectify the weaknesses.

Taking into account the scale and complexity of the current
operations of the Group and the potential costs for setting up
an internal audit function, the Company considers that the
existing organisation structure and the close supervision of the
management could provide sufficient risk management and
internal control for the Group and accordingly, the Company did
not maintain an internal audit function or engage an
independent internal control consultant for the year ended 31
December 2016. However, the Board will regularly review the
need to set up an internal audit function or engage an
independent professional service provider to review the Group's
internal control and risk management system.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board reviewed and
evaluated the risk management and internal control system
adopted by the Group and considered it was effective.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration payable to the independent
auditors of the Company to perform audit and non-audit
services for the year ended 31 December 2016 is as follows:

Services rendered Frig At AR %
Audit service ZE R 7%
Non-audit service FEIZEARTE

The non-audit services include professional services in relation
to the Company’s interim results and the related preliminary
announcements.
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For the year ended
31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

2016
—E—AE

2015
—ET-hF

1,211,584
159,110

1,345,778
636,730
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DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Each Director understands and acknowledges his/her
responsibility for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies;, and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. The
statement of auditors about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

DU JIAN JUN, Chairman

Mr. Du Jian Jun ("Mr. DU"), aged 60, was appointed as an
executive director and the chairman of the Company on 16 June
2014. Mr. Du has over 30 years of working experience in
managing various businesses in the PRC. He is also the vice
general manager of Halls China Strategies Company Limited,
which is specialised in the provision of venture capital service.
On 7 April 2014, Mr. Du was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited (“Sing
Pao”), a company previously listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and he has been
redesignated as an executive director since 24 June 2014. Sing
Pao was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the publication of newspapers,
magazines and books; and provisions of advertising and
promotion services, internet content provision and advertising.
On 12 August 2015, the High Court of the Hong Kong SAR has
ordered Sing Pao be wound up (the “Sing Pao Winding Up”).
As at the date of this annual report, Sing Pao is in the process
of winding up and Mr. Du confirmed that he is not in a position
to indicate the outcome or the current position of the Sing Pao
Winding Up.

JI KUANG, Co-Vice Chairman

Mr. Ji Kuang (“Mr. Ji"), aged 56, was appointed as an executive
director and the vice chairman of the Company on 29 June
2015. Mr. Ji was graduated from Nanjing University of Chinese
Medicine with a Bachelor Degree of Chinese medicine in 1989.
Mr. Ji has 20 years of experience in corporate management,
property development, construction management and
marketing. He was the chief manager of Federation of Returned
Overseas Chinese Industry and Trade Group in Wuxi County and
Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese Real Estate
Development Company Limited in Wuxi City during the period
from 1992 to 1999. He was then promoted as the chairman of
Wuxi Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese Real Estate
Development Company Limited* (&5 mEHEERZBRA
A]) during the period from April 1999 to November 2009. He is
currently the chairman of the Wuxi Yugi Datang Real Estate
Company Limited* (E85H EAFEEZ AR 2 5)) Mr. Jiis
also the chairman of presidium of World Chinese-Overseas-
Trade Union General Attestation ("WCUGA") and a minister of
the investment department of WCUGA. WCUGA is founded in
1986, which unites Chinese elites and oversea-Chinese.

*  The English transliteration and translation are for identification purpose only.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

LI PO WALI, Co-Vice Chairman

Mr. Li Po Wai (“Mr. Li"), aged 44, was appointed as an executive
director and the co-vice chairman of the Company on 29 June
2015. Mr. Li possesses extensive experience in managing
financial enterprises in the PRC. He has been working in the
private equity industry and in many well-known investment
institutions. He previously held various important positions in
sizeable state-owned collaboration entities, sino foreign joint
venture companies, investment management enterprises and
professional services institutions. He had participated in and
coordinated the investment operation and management for
various projects and is sophisticated with professional skills and
practical experience in the operation of the capital market,
finance management, merger and acquisition and
reorganisation of enterprises, operational strategic planning
and risk management.

LEUNG WAI KWAN, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Leung Wai Kwan (“Mr. Leung”), aged 52, was appointed as
an executive director and the chief executive officer of the
Company on 7 August 2012. Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’s
Degree of Business Administration in Finance from The Queen’s
University of Brighton, United States of America. Prior to joining
the Company in March 2010, he was a principal of a local audit
firm and the managing director of a consulting firm providing
services of secretarial, taxation and corporate finance
consultancy. Mr. Leung was an executive director of two
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange for
more than seven years until 2004 and 2005 respectively, and
has extensive experience in merger and acquisition activities,
financial management and corporate compliance. Mr. Leung is
currently an independent non-executive director of Yi Hua
Department Store Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2213), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

FAN WEIPENG

Mr. Fan Weipeng (“Mr. Fan”), aged 46, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 16 March 2015. Mr. Fan
was graduated from Guangzhou Normal School* (& ) B &5 £
). He has been the chairman of Guangzhou Luyin Investment
Co., Ltd.* (E M & 4R % & B R 2 7)) and Beijing Zhongcai
Ronghe Culture Media Co., Ltd.* (b AP Ba XL EEER
A @ ) since 2006 and 2010 respectively. Mr. Fan has been
engaged in financial assets and capital management for many
years with extensive experience in corporate restructuring,
merger and acquisition, investment in and financing for initial
public offering projects and leasing of real estate in China.

* The English transliteration and translation are for identification purpose only.

62 DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & Hfi&£ZRBERA R

FEE BEALE

ZFEREE(EERE]D M RZT-HFXA
“HNWBREZRERARBNATEESRBFEILE
FREBESFAETHERSREENLR - RN
ERETEREZRANGRERBIR SEANLE
BERBEM  PIAERR WEBERARRFEEMR
BHREBETEZRM - RESERBEZERENHK
BEEEE ABLABEATSERE BREEE -
EHBEME KERBERILRAREESTANE
EERERBERER -

RUEE - 1THAER

RERFEE(REE]D 2% RZE—Z_FN\AL
HEZITAARRINNITERRITHAE - RELE
ENENZAREERARBEAR  HEIHEER (M
BBRLEMN - R-T-TF=AMARRALZA &
LREMBAMZEEA  LHE—MRHEME RS
Bt RbEEREBBRG ZERRRETESALE -
BEEEMBBMIMER ET AR CATESZLF
ZA DHEE_ZTNFR_TTRFR/IL EH
BEY MBEERARAGRETHERREELR -
REGBREA/BRXMEIM ETARDREAEERAR
NE (R RRSR - 2213) 2B IEAITESF -

SEENE

EEBEE(REE]D 465 R-T—HF=H
TARBRZERARARNAITES - BEEREMED
HEREE - RAZEREFR_ZT-TFEDHIH
TEMBREEFERATDNILRPERE ULERE
RARZESER - BAENEZEREEREAEERES
FORELEXEMA B BRAHBEEZRBER
TEEHEEEEEER -



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

MENG XIAO YING

Ms. Meng Xiao Ying (“Ms. Meng"), aged 47, was appointed as
an executive director of the Company on 26 February 2014. Ms.
Meng is a lawyer and the founding partner of Guangdong
Huishang Law Firm* (5% 3 & 7 12 &0 % %% F7) ("Guangdong
Huishang”). She graduated from the Department of Law of
Xiangtan University in Hunan. She was assigned to work in
Hunan Heshan Justice Bureau in 1990. She was admitted as a
lawyer with excellent results in 1992 and was sent by Justice
Bureau for the formation of Heshan Second Law Firm (% LU [&
% _2BIEEHT) in the same year. Since then, she started her
career as a professional lawyer. Afterwards, she worked as a
professional lawyer in Hunan zhenli Law Firm* (47 B 32 2 Al
= % FT) from 1994 to 2000 and co-founded Guangdong
Huishang in 2000 and founded Guangdong Huanding Law Firm*
(B ® IR & 2 B = 7 F7)in 2014. Her distinct style and
characteristic of effectiveness in case handling has been
established in the practice for law for over 20 years. She has
extensive working experience as a lawyer, and has handled
numerous non-litigation legal affairs, such as economical, civil
and criminal cases and issuance of legal opinion and feasibility
studies reports. Since the practice of law in Shenzhen, she has
assisted in the successful listing of several units who sought for
legal advice and received their appreciations. Ms. Meng was an
independent non-executive director of Sing Pao from 7 April
2014 to 23 June 2014 and has been re-designated as an
executive director since 24 June 2014. As at the date of this
annual report, Ms. Meng confirmed that she is not in a position
to indicate the outcome or current position of the Sing Pao
winding Up.

* The English transliteration and translation are for identification purpose only.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

YIN SHIBO

Mr. Yin Shibo (“Mr. Yin"), aged 42, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 29 June 2015. Mr. Yin
obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from Guizhou
University of Finance and Economics (formerly known as
Guizhou College of Finance and Economics) and a Master
Degree in Business and Administration from Wuhan University.
Mr. Yin has 18 years of extensive experience in finance industry,
in particular, bank financing, project investment analysis and
corporate financial management. He had held various positions
in Agricultural Bank of China during 1997 to 2008 and was last
held as a branch president. Since 2008, he has devoted himself
to the private equity industry and obtained senior management
positions in various renowned investment institutions. From July
2014 to June 2015, Mr. Yin was an executive director of China
Best Group Holding Limited (Stock Code: 370) (“China Best
Group”), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, and he remains as a member of the senior
management of China Best Group after his resignation.

LEUNG KWOK PANG JOSEPH

Mr. Leung Kwok Pang Joseph (“Mr. Leung"), aged 55, was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 29 June
2016. Mr. Leung obtained a Professional diploma in Estate
Management and a Master Degree in International Real Estate
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He became a Chartered
Surveyor in both Hong Kong and United Kingdom in 1993. Mr.
Leung has practiced several disciplines including professional
real estate and assets appraisals consultancy and corporate
funding for over 30 years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
CHAN KIN HO PHILIP

Mr. Chan Kin Ho Philip (“Mr. Chan”), aged 39, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on
22 July 2014. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration in
Accounting and Finance. Mr. Chan is a certified public
accountant under the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan is also a chartered financial
analyst. Mr. Chan has over 15 years of experience in finance,
accounting, external and internal auditing in both Hong Kong
and the PRC. Mr. Chan had worked in the assurance and
advisory department of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited and
KPMG and as a business area controller in the financial
controlling division of Deutsche Bank AG. Mr. Chan was the
group financial controller of Xinhua Sports & Entertainment (HK)
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xinhua Sports &
Entertainment Limited, shares of which are currently traded on
the American over-the-counter (pink sheets) market and was
the vice president — finance for Tiger Media, Incorporation
(formerly known as Search Media Holdings Limited), the shares
of which are listed on the American Stock Exchange. He was
also an independent non-executive director of China Machinery
Engineering Corporation. Mr. Chan is currently an executive
director of Willing International Capital (Shanghai) Company
Limited and company secretary of China Digital Culture (Group)
Limited (Stock Code: 8175), a company listed on the GEM Board
of the Stock Exchange.

LI ZHENZHEN

Ms. Li Zhenzhen (“Ms. Li"), aged 32, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 17 July 2015. Ms. Li
graduated from the University of Guangxi with a bachelor’s
degree. Ms. Li has been working in senior role in listed company
for many years and she has good knowledge of corporate
financing and business operation. Ms. Li is currently the
chairman of board of supervisors of Guanghe Landscape
Culture Communication Co., Ltd, ShanXi (Shanghai stock code:
600234), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and
the chairman and an executive director of Sino Haijing Holdings
Limited (stock code:01106), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

LIU BO

Mr. Liu Bo (“Mr. Liu"), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 14
December 2015. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Computer
Science from University of Science and Technology of China,
and a Master’s of Science Degree from the Institute of Acoustics
of the Chinese Academy of Science. Mr. Liu has many years of
experience in venture capital, private equity investment, fund
management, mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Liu is currently the
chairman of two investment fund management companies in
Shenzhen, China.

TONG ZHU

Mr. Tong Zhu (“Mr. Tong"), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 29 June
2016. Mr. Tong graduated at University of Electronic Science
and Technology in People’s Republic of China. He was assessed
as an economist by Personnel Department of Guangdong
Province (& AZEE) in 2000. He had over 30 years financial
and project management experience. At present, Mr. Tong is
working in a Shenzhen listed company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SHARON KWAN

Ms. Sharon Kwan (“Ms. Kwan"), aged 49, was appointed as the
Company secretary of the Company on 22 May 2015. Ms. Kwan
is @ member of the Hong Kong Institution of Certified Public
Accountants, and a Fellow member of Certified Practising
Accountant of CPA Australia. Ms. Kwan graduated from
University of Technology Sydney, Australia with a Bachelor
Degree in Business, and obtained an Executive Master of
Business Administration Degree. She has many years of
experience as chief financial officer, regional finance director,
financial controller, company secretary, compliance officer, and
head of commercial services in banking and financial services
in listed and unlisted registered funds, asset management and
professional service companies. These roles were in both
private and public listed companies in Australia, United Kingdom
and Hong Kong. From June 2014 to July 2015, Ms. Kwan was an
executive director and company secretary of Sing Pao, a
company previously listed on the Stock Exchange.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to promoting sustainable development,
which is extremely important to create long-term value for the
Group's shareholders, clients, employees, other stakeholders,
as well as general public. The Company cares about the impact
of its daily operation on environment and society, strives to set
a good example for the public, while conducting business
operation, it makes effort to meet the interests of all
stakeholders, economy, environment, society and corporate
governance and does its best to achieve a fine balance.

ENVIRONMENT

A1. Policy on emission of exhaust gas and
greenhouse gas, discharging pollution through
water and land, producing hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes
Protecting environment is one of our key concerns; we
are committed to protecting environment and focusing on
environmental protection in our operation, hoping that
through rigorous supervision and control to reduce our
long-term negative impact on environment.

1. Energy Management

The indirect greenhouse gas emission, which
generated from our daily electricity power
consumption, is the main source of the Group’s
carbon footprint, we will keep monitoring and
disclosing the Company’s carbon footprint to find
out and control the impact of our daily operation on
environment. At the same time, we will implement
the following energy-saving and energy efficiency
measures at various office locations to reduce
greenhouse gas emission:

o

Install high-performance electrical equipments

b. Purchasing department is required to
purchase energy-efficient products

c.  Employ automatic lighting control system

d.  Deploy LED lighting on office floors

e. The employees must turn off light and
unnecessary energy device to reduce energy

consumption and avoid unnecessary waste of
energy

RIB- HERERBE

AEBEBNHPAHEER  UHEZRENASNE
BRR - -FPF BT HthEOE  IHEEAMEE
ERPBERAEE - ARAFRMIBFERERER

HENTE  NRRTEHIRFER  EETER
BENRAE - ShRemBERNE  KE RE 4

EMEERB M - B HETHETE-

B
Al FRBRRABEREHN BRKRLHE
5 AEREEEREVNELESNECR

RERFEDHMERBIZ —  BPEERER
B ERELURRAE  UHAEBBEEERE
G T RERMAEREOREEETZE

1. BERERE
HZMAREEAEEEANEEAZTREY
BEAEERETNEEERR - ®ME
BRFBEER R AMHAD R E PR E
BLEERMOBBEEHRENTE -
R BRI ESHAMEEITUTEE

o)

BNRE & BE TR a5 18 B R (KR Z B HEIN
a. RESUENEREES

b. HEHFILARBRERNEER

c. IRABEBAEHRS
d  WAEERMALEDREMA
e. EBTHMABXNEERABARTIHKE

MFEREERE - URK BEIRAEE Sl
R TBENERRE

ANNUAL REPORT £k 2016 67



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIR - HERERHRE

68

f. Deploy natural light as much as possible on
office floors

g. Install auxiliary electricity meter to monitor
electricity consumption

h.  Other energy-saving and energy efficiency
measures

Our finance department should collect information
about usage of electricity annually for the
management to disclose in their ESG report in the
financial year starts from 1 January 2017 or later.

Waste Management

In order to lighten the load of landfills, we adopt a
responsible waste management policy, including
waste avoidance, reducing waste from its source
and reuse, recycling and responsible disposal of
waste. Our offices should post memos and notices
everywhere, encouraging the employees to reduce
the production of waste. We have introduced waste
separation measures from the start:

a.  Waste paper (excluding paper cup, paper
plate, etc.)

b.  Metal (aluminum can and other metal cans)

c. Plastics (plastic bottle, container and
packaging materials)

d.  Other recyclables (such as old cloth, electrical
appliance, computer, magazine, etc.)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

A2. Policy on effective use of resources (including
energy, water and other raw materials)

1.

Reducing electricity consumption

Comply with the Group's policy on emission of
exhaust gas and greenhouse gas, discharging
pollution through water and land, producing
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes to reduce
electricity consumption.

Paper reduction
In order to reduce waste paper, we have developed
the following measures:

a.  Deploy recycling bins to collect used paper
products such as waste paper, poster, letter
and envelope

b.  Place waste paper recycling bin next to printer
and set aside the papers that already printed
once so that you can choose whether reuse it
or put it into the bin

c.  Saving paper by double-sided printing
d.  Writing on both sides of papers
e.  Bringyour own cup and avoid using paper cup

f. Reuse stationeries such as file folder and
envelope

g.  Reuse packaging box

h.  Other than the waste paper that contains
confidential information, waste paper should
be shipped to paper mill or scrap paper
company so as to be recycled into new paper

Each year, our finance department shall collect
information about the paper products the Company
purchased and the waste paper that shipped to
scrap paper company or paper mill for the
management to disclose in their ESG report in the
financial year starts from 1 January 2017 or later.
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Water conservation

In Hong Kong, fresh water is a precious resource,
we should economize water, try to protect water
resource, and for which we have developed the
following measures:

a.  Repair dripping faucet or hose in a timely
manner

b. Adopt effective water-saving production
methods and instruments

Cc.  Check water consumption regularly
d.  Minimize water pressure

Green procurement

Green procurement is based on reducing
environmental load. Quality, cost, delivery time are
the main focuses when the Company procures
goods or chooses supplier, but other than that, we
give priority to environmentally friendly and energy-
saving products with the following measures:

a.  Give priority to energy-efficient products at
the highest level

b.  Give priority to effective water-saving products

C.  We require the suppliers to reduce packaging
material

d.  Send the message to suppliers that we value
environmental protection, energy saving
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A3. Policy on mitigating the Group’s significant
impact on environment and natural resources
The Group manages and minimizes the impact it may
cause environment, directly or indirectly, through the
following methods:

1. Make sure its business operation comply with the
environmental law in Hong Kong and its operating
locations

2. Establish and improve environmental protection
mechanism to ensure its operation does not pollute
water and land

3. Monitor gas emission and use of resource, establish
emission reduction target

4. Make sure that in our daily business operation, with
all efforts, we conserve energy, water and other raw
materials to reduce direct impact on environment

5. Whenever the Company holds banqguet, shark fin is
out of question and sustainable seafood should be
served. Order reasonable quantity and reduce
waste

6. Urge the employees to reduce paper usage and
adopt other energy-saving measures

7. Cooperate with government agencies and support
environmental organizations’ activities

A3.
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SOCIETY

Employment and Labor convention

Employee is an important asset of the Company, we care about
their well-being, respect their personal traits, make sure that all
employees are subject to legislative protection and have equal
opportunity in their career path, also, we strive to increase their
sense of belonging.

B1.

72

Policy on salary, dismissal, recruitment,
promotion, working hours, day off, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and
other benefits

1.

Salary

We offer competitive pay and benefits to the
employees according to their job requirement and
individual performance. We will annually review the
overall salary and benefits to ensure the Company’s
competitiveness in local market, we even refer to
the relevant industries and similar organizations.
Each year, KPIs will provide direction and guidance
to the employees’ individual work plan. We also
assess the achievements and contributions of the
employees to appraise and reward them.

Dismissal
We ensure that all employees under the
employment protection laws of Hong Kong,
including:

a.  Whenever an employee offers to resign or
being laid off, human resource should
interview him or her before quitting to find out
the reason of quitting;

b.  Itis required to issue employment verification
document to the dismissed employee;

c.  When the employer terminates employment
contract, the dismissed employee shall be
given due notice or wages in lieu of notice,
and the notice should not be given during his
or her annual leave and maternity leave,

d.  An employee cannot be dismissed when she
has been confirmed pregnant or given notice
of pregnancy,
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e.  Anemployee cannot be dismissed when he or
she takes a paid sick leave;

f. An employee cannot be dismissed because
he or she gives evidence or information in any
legal proceeding relating to enforcement of
labor laws, industrial accident or breach of
work safety regulation;

g, An employee cannot be dismissed because
he or she joins in labor union or participates in
labor union activities; and

h. If an employee is injured on duty, if a
compensation agreement has not yet been
reached or the relevant evaluation certificate
has not yet been issued, the employee cannot
be dismissed.

Recruitment and promotion

In the Company, recruitment and promotion should
be fair and open for all employees, and cannot be
affected by age, sex, physical or mental health
status, marital status, family status, race, skin
colour, nationality, religion, political affiliation and
sexual orientation and other factors, the employees
will be recognized and rewarded by their
contribution, work performance and skills, the
Company will do its best to provide them with good
working environment and development opportunity.

Working hours and day-off

The employees shall enjoy deserved days-off under
the laws of Hong Kong or the location they work at
Hong Kong employees are entitled to enjoy the
following days-off:

a.  Each employee can take a day off in every 7
days,

b. If the day-off falls on a statutory holiday,
compensatory time off shall be offered on the
following day;
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C.  Manager can ask employee to work on the
day off, but employee can choose not to. If
the employee agrees, a day off can be
arranged in other time, but the said day off
shall be planned before the scheduled day off
in the same month, or within 30 days after it;

d.  Statutory holidays;

e.  Paid annual leave prescribed by employment
contract;

f. Sick leave;

g, Female employee can take maternity leave so
long as she complies with the continuous
contract to serve the employer and give notice
of pregnancy before the leave; and

h.  Maternity leave cannot be substituted by
wage.

Policy on equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits

Sex Discrimination Ordinance, Disability Discrimination
Ordinance, Family Status Discrimination Ordinance
must be complied with, equal opportunity must be
provided on recruitment, training, promotion,
transfer, remuneration, benefits and termination of
contract. Such opportunities shall not be affected by
factors such as age, gender, physical or mental
health status, marital status, family status, race, skin
colour, nationality, religion, political affiliation and
sexual orientation.
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B2. Policy on safe working environment and
safeguarding the employees from occupational
hazards
We are committed to protecting the health and safety of
the employees and the community, we require all
employees to comply with all relevant occupational health
and safety regulations, and do our utmost to provide
them with safe and healthy working environment, as a
result, we have implemented the following methods:

10.

11.

Develop internal guidelines to ensure that office and
work environment is in line with or higher than the
requirements of relevant laws,

Establish safety procedures for the recognized
dangerous work;

Provide necessary protective equipment and
medical insurance to the employees,

Ensure that office and working environment is
healthy and safe, regularly check machinery and
equipment;

Establish emergency measures such as fire or
explosion emergency plan;

Regularly arrange rescue, fire and evacuation drills;

Establish mechanism to record industrial injury and
analyze the cause;

Provide and maintain an environmental, healthy and
safe working condition;

Unless prior approval, purchasing alcoholic
beverage and illegal drugs is prohibited in the
workplace;

Actively promote environmental protection, health
and safety awareness of the employees, and
support development of environmental protection,
health and safety in the industry; and

Provide all employees with needed job information,
guidance, training and supervision.
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Policy on improving the employees’ knowledge
and skills to perform their responsibilities

Talent development is an important part of our human
resource strategy. We understand that the employees’
knowledge and skills are essential to the Company’s
operation and business growth, good development plan
lays a good foundation for the employees to face business
challenge in the future, it also helps them to grasp
promotion opportunities, fulfill their career aspirations.
We provide the employees with effective training and
develop a clear promotion ladder, ensuring that the
employees have the required skills; we also nurture
outstanding successors for the Group’s and breed
academic atmosphere. The Group conducts performance
evaluation annually, and based on the assessment result
to provide the staff with appropriate training, and offer
job, development and promotion opportunities for
outstanding employees. Under the Group’s Human
Resource Management System requirements, HR
manager is responsible for carrying out related
assessment and training.

Policy on preventing child labor or forced labor
The Group firmly adopts a zero-tolerance policy on child
labor and forced labor, such conduct is prohibited by
international standard and relevant domestic legislation
and shall never be tolerated in here. In any part of the
business process (including our subcontractors or
suppliers), child labor or forced labor is not allowed. We
see child labor or forced labor as a serious crime. The
following is the policy on preventing child labor or forced
labor:

1. Child labor refers to employment of people under
16 years of age, if any country or region in which
the Company or its subsidiary operates has a more
stringent definition of child labor, the definition shall
prevail;

2. Forced labor refers to people who provide labor or
service against their will and under the threat of
punishment;

3. The hired employees must be at least 16 years of
age, the Group shall never recruit child labor and
forced labor, and if it knows child labor or forced
labor exists in its suppliers or subcontractors, the
Group will not conduct business with them
anymore;
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The employees under 18 may not engage in any
possible hazardous work and prohibited to work at
night, because it might affect their education;,

Before hiring any job applicant, HR should take
effective procedures to verify their age. HR should
check documents that prove the age of the
applicant, including government-issued photo
identification and birth certificate, driver's license,
household register, academic certificates or any
other credentials that prove the date of birth. And
HR must ensure that the applicant’s looks is
consistent with the photograph on the ID card;

HR department should carry out prevention training
about child labor and forced labor, especially those
responsible for recruitment;

If employment of child labor under the legal
minimum age is found in the Group, we will see to
the best interests of the child, and take the following
measures in line with relevant legislations:

a. Take the child away from workplace
immediately, ensure the safety of the child;

b.  Immediately notify the person in charge of HR
to verify all relevant information, confirm
whether the child under 16 years of age, sever
labor relations with the child, notify the local
social welfare institution, and take remedial
measures to protect the child’s best interest;

c.  Send the child to a special occupational health
labor inspection institution to do medical
check-up, it is required to confirm the child’s
physical and mental health, and conduct
investigation to fully understand the child’s
situation,

d.  When the child reaches legal minimum age for
employment, we will provide the child with re-
employment opportunity; and

e. Immediately find out the problems exist in the
hiring process of the operating location and
take improvement measures within 90
working days.
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If forced labor is found in the Group, we will take the
following measures in accordance with the
requirements of the relevant legislation:

a. Take the labor away from workplace
immediately, ensure the safety of the labor;

b.  Immediately notify the person in charge of HR
to verify all relevant information, confirm
whether the person is subject to compulsory
labor,

c.  Send the labor to a special occupational health
labor inspection institution to do medical
check-up, it is required to confirm the labor’s
physical and mental health, and conduct
investigation to fully understand the labor’s
situation; and

d. Immediately find out the problems exist in the
hiring process of the operating location and
take improvement measures within 90
working days.

Operating Practice

B5. Policy on controlling environmental and social
risk in supply chain

We attach importance to developing and maintaining
long-term relationships with our suppliers, looking forward
to forming long-term partnerships with them. We will take
a fair and open principle on procurement of materials and
services. We will only cooperate with the suppliers that
share common moral values and standards with us, the
Company also supports and encourages the suppliers to
promote efficient use of resources and environmental
protection and fulfill corporate social responsibility:

78

1.

We advocate the principle of fair and open
competition, and based on mutual trust, we develop
and maintain long-term relationships with the
suppliers and contractors;

We have strict ethical standards in procurement of
materials and services to ensure the quality of the
finished products and maintain the continued
confidence of the clients, suppliers and general
public;
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3. We review our suppliers, assess them based on
price, quality, suitability and demands, only those
being rated as qualified are our approved suppliers,
we only purchase from the approved suppliers;

4. We conduct follow-up assessment on the suppliers,
and, if necessary, review them through a third party
organization. When a supplier is found to be
inconsistent with the Company’s policy or
contractual requirements, the Company will
terminate future cooperation until the situation has
been improved,

5. In an unprejudiced way, we choose appropriate,
responsible and capable suppliers;

6. Support and encourage the suppliers to improve
their environmental products and services, and their
employees’ benefits and protection;

7. The suppliers must comply with the relevant laws,
regulations and contractual obligations; and

8. We shall adopt effective monitoring and
management system to detect and prevent bribery,
fraud or other misconducts in procurement and
bidding processes.

Policy on health, safety, advertising, labeling,
privacy and remedies of the products and
services

Health and safety of products and services

We are committed to providing the customers with high-
quality products and services and settling customer
complaints effectively, continuously improving service
level and ensuring customer satisfaction.

1. Make sure that the products and services comply
with related laws and guidelines;

2. Provide the customers with accurate product
information and high-quality products, and develop
recovery policy and after-sale service for related
products;

3. Ifthereis a problem with a product, we will take the
initiative to explain the problem and find a mutually
satisfactory solution for the customers; and
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4. After handling a customer complaint, a document
should be archived properly, and the relevant
department shall review the complaint and develop
measures to prevent the recurrence of similar
complaints, so that the Company’s service quality
keeps improving.

Advertising, labeling and protection of customer
information

Customer information will only be used for business
purpose, not for other unrelated purposes. All
employees should handle and use customer
information with extreme caution, protect customer
information, and comply with statutory
requirements in privacy law.

Policy on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering

Ethics and integrity is the cornerstone of the Company’s
success, we adopts a Zero Tolerance approach to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, in their daily work,
the directors, management and staff must comply with
related national and local government laws and
regulations on prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering. All employees not only have
responsibility to understand and comply with the above
regulations, but also have obligation to report violation to
the fit and appropriate person. Any person, who
contravenes the regulations, will be subject to disciplinary
sanction. We will make every effort to protect the informer
and received information. However, if an informer’s
intention is to harm others, they may be subject to
disciplinary punishment.

1. Soliciting or accepting benefit

Any employee (including the directors, management
and all full-time, part-time, hourly, temporary
workers) cannot directly, indirectly, or in any form,
solicit or accept any form of benefits or do anything
that might be seen as bribe from a third party,
including, but not limited to, money, gift, excessive
entertainment and hospitality, subsidized travel and
accommodation, loan, pledging as guarantor,
extending preferential credit terms, fee, reward,
position, employment, contract, service, privilege,
exemption of all or part of the responsibilities that
ought to be fulfilled. The employees should reject
any direct or indirect interests and benefits relating
to the Group's business, should such benefits being
accepted, their objective attitude would hamper, or
the interests of the Company would be harmed or
invaded, or causing bias or misconduct.
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In social events such as festivals, activities,
entertainments and other daily routine, refusing to
accept a modest gift may be considered impolite or
lack of social grace, with that in mind, under the
following principles, the employees may consider
accepting benefits on a voluntary basis:

a.  Receiving related benefits will not affect
performance and decision of the employee;

b. The employee will not feel the need to
reciprocate;,

Cc.  The employee can openly discuss the benefits;

d.  Holiday or banquet gift, prize or souvenir, its
value shall not more than HKD500.

For gift, prize or souvenir worth more than HKD500,
the employee shall file a declaration form, if the
employee has questions about admissibility of the
related benefits, he or she could consult HR
manager or general manager.

If the Company finds out any employee’s
inappropriate behavior of soliciting or accepting
benefits, it will call the police and terminate labor
relations with the employee.

Providing benefits

In any case, any employee shall not provide bribe or
improper benefits to any person or organization in
order to seek personal gain or group interests. If the
Company finds out any employee has conducted
bribery, it will call the police and terminate labor
relations with the employee.

Extortion

Any person who seeks for benefit for his own or
another person, or with intent to cause loss to
another person, and makes any unwarranted
demand by extortion, such conduct shall be
considered as extortion. All employees shall not
participate in, assist, cover up any kind of extortion,
if the Company finds out any employee has
conducted extortion, it will call the police and
terminate labor relations with the employee.
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4. Fraud

Any person, who uses any means of deception to
benefit himself or another person, or with intent to
cause loss to another person, such conduct shall be
considered fraud, the common employee fraud
includes embezzlement, wage fraud and stealing
company assets. All employees shall not participate
in, assist, cover up any fraud, if the Company finds
out any employee has conducted fraud, it will call
the police and terminate labor relations with the
employee.

5. Money Laundering
Money laundering refers to an individual or
institution attempts to conceal the source of illicit
money, or makes such money look legitimate in any
way. The Company will not tolerate any employee
conduct, support, and assist any form of money
laundering.

The Company should establish an anti money
laundering team, general manager should be the
team leader and responsible for organizing the anti
money laundering team. The team’s main
responsibilities include organizing, implementing
anti money laundering task, investigating reported
money laundering, arranging anti money laundering
training, working with regulatory and judiciary
authorities to investigate suspicious transactions of
funds, as well as paying attention to requirements
and updates in anti money laundering laws and
regulations.

Anti money laundering procedures include identifying
clients, keeping transaction record, reporting and follow-
up investigating of suspicious transaction, and anti money
laundering training.

a. ldentifying clients

In the development of clients, sales people must
establish a high degree of awareness of anti money
laundering, through communication with
prospective clients to comprehensively grasp the
clients” information, running the first check on the
clients. After successful client acquisition, regular
contact is required to grasp the clients’ updates. If
an abnormal situation occurs, the sales person
needs to timely communicate with the relevant
departments.
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Keeping transaction record

Sales people and accounting personnel should keep
customer identification information, including
registering customer identification and related
information, all sorts of records and information
reflecting payment authority’s customer
identification process, and keep transaction records
such as each transaction’s information, business
voucher, ledger and documents reflecting real
situation of each transaction and other relevant
information to ensure that each transaction is
traceable.

Reporting and follow-up investigating of suspicious
transaction

Sales people and accounting staff, should they find
out a suspicious transaction, need to report it
immediately to the corporate headquarter. The
headquarter analyzes and investigates all suspicious
transaction reported, if there are reasonable
grounds to believe that the transaction or the
customer has ties with money-laundering, terrorism
and other criminal activities, the HKSAR Government
JFIU should be notified.

Anti money laundering training

All employees should join in anti money laundering
training at least once a year, the training includes
learning the danger of money laundering, anti
money laundering regulations, the role of the
employees in anti-money laundering, how to identify
suspicious transactions, ways to report suspicious
transaction, the consequences if one fails to comply
with anti money laundering regulations.
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Policy on finding out the needs of the
community, at which the Company operates, by
means of community involvement, and ensuring
that its business activities will take into account
the interests of the community

For the Company’s long-term development, community
participation is important, we are committed to promoting
development and construction activities of the
community, at which we operate. We benefit the
community through a variety of actions, such as
investment, contributing money, time, products, services,
influence, management knowledge and other resources.

We participate in community building through three main
ways:

1. Organize, facilitate and support the staff to take part
in volunteer services, such as regularly visiting
people who need help, arranging outdoor activities
for disadvantaged groups, holding Blood Donation
Day.

2. By means of donation, we donate money, goods or
services, directly supporting or funding projects of
various social service agencies. In addition to
donation itself, we also appeal to the Company’s
stakeholders (including the employees and
customers) to donate.

3. We endeavor to provide employment opportunities
for the disadvantaged and create a win-win
situation. The Company is willing to hire the disabled
people who have completed retraining courses, and
give priority to purchasing from the suppliers who
hired the said disabled people, or participate in a
variety of mentorship programs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

=

BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG K7 its

Independent auditor’'s report to the members of
Ding He Mining Holdings Limited
RANBEEZERERAT

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Ding He Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 102 to 232, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Because of the significance of the matters described in the
“Basis for disclaimer of opinion” section of our report, we have
not been able to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group as to whether they give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and of
the Group's financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). In all other respects, in
our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Except for the inability to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence as explained below, we conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAS")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA for Accountant’'s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
However, because of the matters described below, we were
not able to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion.

1. Opening balances and corresponding figures
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015, which forms the basis for
the corresponding figures presented in the current year's
consolidated financial statements, was qualified because
of the significance of the possible effect of the limitations
on the scope of the audit in relation to the (a) valuations
of exploration and evaluation assets, goodwill and
property, plant and equipment and associated deferred
tax liabilities; (b) turnover, trade receivables, cost of
inventories sold, inventories and accumulated losses
derived by the mineral water operation in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") for the year ended 31
December 2012 related to the acquisition of those mineral
water operation in 2012 which was not able to generate
reliable information for financial reporting purposes; (c)
fair value and/or carrying amounts of the liability
component and the convertible bond equity reserve of
the convertible bonds; (d) fair value and/or carrying
amount of the secured bank loans; and (e) material
fundamental uncertainties in relation to the going concern
basis of presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the qualified audit opinions were
set out in the independent auditor’s report dated 31
March 2016 and included in the Company’s annual report
for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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We were unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence to enable us to assess the limitation of scope for
the year ended 31 December 2015. Any adjustments
found to be necessary to the opening balances as at 1
January 2016 may affect the balance of accumulated
losses as at 1 January 2016 and the operating results and
related disclosures in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016. The comparative figures showed in the
consolidated financial statements may not be comparable
with the figures for the current year.

Scope Limitation: valuations of exploration
and evaluation assets, goodwill and property,
plant and equipment and associated deferred
tax liabilities

During the year 2016, the principal operations of the
Group included: (a) mining of dolomite and manufacture
of magnesium ingots in Malaysia; (b) exploration for iron
ore, coal and manganese in the Republic of Indonesia
("Indonesia”); and (c) extraction and bottling of mineral
water in the PRC. Due to various material fundamental
uncertainties faced by the Group, as disclosed in notes
2(b), 15 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements,
these principal operations, except for the operation of
extraction and bottling of mineral water, are effectively
suspended for various reasons. At the same time, the
extraction and bottling of mineral water operation is not
generating positive cash flow for the Group as anticipated
by the management of the Company. Included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016 are: (a) exploration and evaluation assets
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$Nil (2015:
HK$37,399,285); (b) goodwill arising from business
combinations with an aggregate carrying value of HK$Nil
(2015: HK$NIl); (c) property, plant and equipment,
including the interest in leasehold land, with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$145,084,317 (2015: HK$181,044,320);
and (d) deferred tax liabilities associated with the fair
value adjustment on the exploration and evaluation assets
of HK$NIl (2015: HK$7,952,143).
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As required by Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36
“Impairment of assets” ("HKAS 36”) issued by the HKICPA,
at the end of the reporting period, the Group has identified
that there were certain indications of impairment of the
above named assets, and therefore, the Group's
management has assessed the recoverable amounts of
these assets as at the end of the reporting period. As
defined in HKAS 36, the recoverable amount of an asset is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The Group’s management was unable to find
comparable recent transactions in similar extractive
assets to determine the fair value less cost of disposal of
these assets. As an alternative, the Group’s management
estimated the value in use as the recoverable amounts of
these assets.

In respect of the cash-generating unit (“CGU") for mining
of dolomite and manufacture of magnesium ingots, the
Group appointed an independent valuer, Raine & Horne
International Zaki + Partners Sdn. Bhd. to perform
valuations to assess the recoverable amount of this CGU
basis on the fair value less costs of disposal by using the
comparable recent transactions in similar extractive
assets as at the end of the reporting period.

In respect of the CGUs for exploration for iron ore, coal
and manganese and extraction and bottling of mineral
water, the Group appointed an independent valuer, GC
Appraisals Services Company Limited (“GC Appraisals” or
“the Valuer”) to perform valuations to assess the value in
use of these CGUs as at the end of the reporting period.
The value in use estimations are prepared using an
income-based approach and is based on the estimated
reserves of these extractive sites from outdated technical
reports prepared in prior years (“Technical Reports”) and
assumptions as to the Group's ability to explore for these
mineral resources, particularly exploration for manganese
in Indonesia and to operate the plants for production of
bottled mineral water in the PRC.

As a result, impairment losses on (a) exploration and
evaluation assets of HK$36,366,175 (2015 HK$3,736,391);
(b) goodwill of HK$NIl (2015: HKS$NIl); and (c) property,
plant and equipment, including the interest in leasehold
land, of HK$9,336,606 (2015: HK$Nil) have been
recognised and included in other operating expenses in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.
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Taking into consideration that the Group has not incurred
any exploration and evaluation expenditures on these
extractive operations since 2012 due to financial
constraints and still unable to obtain up-to-date technical
data for those remaining extractive operations in the
current year and that the Group does not have sufficient
working capital to finance these extractive operations, we
are unable to assess the reliability of these value in use
estimations prepared for financial reporting purposes. In
addition, we consider that the technical data in the
Technical Reports used to prepare the value in use
estimations are not up-to-date and we are unable to verify
the Group’s ability, both financially and technically, to
undertake exploration for or exploitation of any of the
resources under the remaining relevant mining permits
and to operate the plants for production of magnesium
ingots and bottled mineral water in Malaysia and the PRC,
respectively. As further disclosed in note 15(c) to the
consolidated financial statements, PT. Laksbang
Mediatama (“PTLM") holds a production operation mining
permit for manganese (“Mining Permit”) and PTLM lost
contact with its legal representatives in 2012. During the
year ended 31 December 2014, PTLM received warning
letter from Trade and Energy Industries of Resource of
Minerals Office Government of Kulon Progo Regency
reminding PTLM to immediate implement its obligations
as the holder of Mining Permit by submitting the tax form
and reporting of PTLM's status to the relevant Indonesian
authority with the legal representatives’ signatures, not
later than one month from the date of the letter.
Afterwards, the management of the Company reiterated
that it is currently undergoing management restructuring
and therefore all activities are currently being suspended
temporarily until the management restructuring is
completed. Besides, once the management restructuring
has been completed, PTLM will resume with investment
and other mining activities. Due to previous failure in
calling for extraordinary meetings for appointing new
directors and legal representatives to the board of PTLM,
PTLM had applied to the Court in Yogyakarta for a court
ruling on the appointment of re-nominated directors and
replacement of legal representatives. In the same year,
court judgement stipulated that the holding company of
PTLM could organize an Extraordinary General Meeting of
shareholders to undergo the re-nomination of the legal
representative ("EGM”). The EGM and the re-nomination
of the legal representative according to the relevant legal
requirement of Indonesia are still in process as at the
approval date of the consolidated financial statements.
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Accordingly, we are unable to assess whether the
recoverable amounts of these assets at the end of the
reporting period are reliably measured and the feasibility
of these operations. There are no alternative audit
procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as
to whether the impairment losses should be recognised in
the current year, whether any further impairment losses
should be recognised on these assets and whether the
carrying amounts of the exploration and evaluation assets
and property, plant and equipment and associated
deferred tax liabilities are free from material
misstatement. Any adjustments found to be necessary in
respect thereof, had we obtained sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence, would have had a
consequential effect on the net liabilities of the Group and
on its profit for the current year.

Scope limitation: fair value and/or carrying
amounts of the liability component and the
convertible bond equity reserve of the
convertible bonds

As disclosed in note 24(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the maturity date of the five principal
amounts of remained outstanding convertible bonds of
HK$NIl (“First Tranche Bonds”), HK$Nil (“Second Tranche
Bonds”), HK$Nil (“Third Tranche Bonds"”), HK$10,000,000
(“Fourth Tranche Bonds") and HK$Nil (“Fifth Tranche
Bonds”) is 1 December 2014, 29 December 2014, 9
January 2015, 4 March 2015 and 22 March 2015
respectively. The above remained outstanding aggregate
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 (2015: HK$29,000,000)
is collectively referred to as the “Matured Bonds”. As at
31 December 2016, all the Matured Bonds were defaulted
and due for repayments. The directors of the Company
represented that (i) the Company is currently in the
course of arm’s length negotiations with the holders of
the Matured Bonds in relation to, among others, the
possible extension of the Matured Bonds and other
possible alteration of terms of the Matured Bonds
(“Proposed Alteration”); (i) as negotiated with the holders
of the Matured Bonds, they verbally agreed not to redeem
the Matured Bonds until the Proposed Alteration is
confirmed; and (jii) the interest on the Matured Bonds will
continue to be payable by the Company until the date of
redemption pursuant to the terms of the Matured Bonds.
As at the approval date of the consolidated financial
statements, the Proposed Alteration of these Matured
Bonds have not been fixed and confirmed yet.
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During our audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016, we were not
provided with sufficient and appropriate audit evidence
that we considered necessary for the assessment of the
fair value and/or carrying amount of the Matured Bonds.

As defined in Hong Kong Accounting Standard 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
("HKAS 39") issued by the HKICPA, an exchange between
an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms shall be accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability, of which the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or
a part of it (whether or not attributable to the financial
difficulty of the debtor) shall be accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability, of which the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss. In respect of the First Tranche
Bonds, Second Tranche Bonds, Third Tranche Bonds,
Fourth Tranche Bonds and Fifth Tranche Bonds, they have
been defaulted since 1 December 2014, 29 December
2014, 9 January 2015, 4 March 2015 and 22 March 2015
respectively. Since the Proposed Alteration have not been
fixed and confirmed up to the approval date of the
consolidated financial statements, we have not been able
to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion. In addition, taking
into consideration that the carrying amounts of the
Matured Bonds exclude the assumptions as to the
Proposed Alteration as at 31 December 2016, the fair
value of the liability component together with the gain/
loss arising from the extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability (if any) of the Matured Bonds as required by HKAS
39 are unable to be reliably measured.

Accordingly, we are unable to assess whether the fair
value and/or carrying amounts of the liability component
and convertible bond equity reserve of the Matured
Bonds at the end of the reporting period are reliably
measured. There are no alternative audit procedures that
we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to whether the
fair value and/or carrying amounts of the liability
component and the convertible bond equity reserve of
the Matured Bonds are free from material misstatement.
Any adjustments found to be necessary in respect
thereof, had we obtained sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence, would have had a consequential effect on the
net liabilities of the Group and on its profit for the current
year.
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Scope limitation: fair value and/or carrying
amounts of the interest-bearing borrowings
As disclosed in note 26(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group have defaulted the agreed
repayment schedule of the aggregated loans from an
independent third party of HK$102,609,200 during the
year ended 31 December 2016 (the "Defaulted Loans”).
The directors of the Company represented that (i) the
Company is currently in the course of arm’s length
negotiations with the lender of the Defaulted Loans in
relation to, among others, the possible extension of the
Defaulted Loans and other possible alteration of terms of
the Defaulted Loans (“Proposed Extension”); (ii) as
negotiated with the lender of the Defaulted Loans, he
verbally agreed not to request the payment of the
Defaulted Loans until the Proposed Extension is
confirmed; and (iii) the interest on the Defaulted Loans will
continue to be payable by the Company until the date of
settlement pursuant to the terms of the Defaulted Loans.
As at the approval date of the consolidated financial
statements, the Proposed Extension of the Defaulted
Loans have not been fixed and confirmed yet.

During our audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016, we were not
provided with sufficient and appropriate audit evidence
that we considered necessary for the assessment of the
fair value and/or carrying amount of the Defaulted Loans
and the interest thereon and any other charges arose as a
result of the default, the final results of which is uncertain
as at the date of approval of the consolidated financial
Statements.

As defined in HKAS 39 issued by the HKICPA, an exchange
between an existing borrower and lender of debt
instruments with substantially different terms shall be
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability, of which the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss. Similarly,
a substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable
to the financial difficulty of the debtor) shall be accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability, of which
the difference between the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in profit or loss. Since the Proposed
Extension have not been fixed and confirmed up to the
approval date of the consolidated financial statements,
we have not been able to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
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Accordingly, we are unable to assess whether the fair
value and/or carrying amount of the Defaulted Loans at
the end of the reporting period are reliably measured, and
the interest thereon and any other charges arose as a
result of the default. There are no alternative audit
procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as
to whether the fair value and/or carrying amounts of the
Defaulted Loans and the interest thereon and any other
charges arose as a result of the default are free from
material misstatement. Any adjustments found to be
necessary in respect thereof, had we obtained sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence, would have had a
consequential effect on the net liabilities of the Group and
on its profit for the current year.

Impairment of prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

The Group had outstanding prepayments, deposits and
other receivables of HK$16,740,177 as of 31 December
2016, of which HK$15,624,016 have been identified as
overdue in accordance with the contract terms. Up to 31
December 2016, the Group has recorded a total
impairment of HK$13,527,938 against the balance of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables. We were
unable to obtain sufficient evidence on the recoverability
of the overdue prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of HK$2,096,078 in current year. Accordingly,
we were unable to satisfy ourselves regarding the
adequacy of the impairment provision against the balance
of prepayments, deposits and other receivables as at 31
December 2016. Any under-provision for these balances
would decrease the net liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and increase the Group’s net profit for
the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Scope Limitation: material fundamental
uncertainties relating to the going concern
basis of presentation of the consolidated
financial statements

As disclosed in note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has encountered a number of
circumstances giving rise to material fundamental
uncertainties. The Group is principally sustained in its
daily operations by loans, convertible bonds and placing
of shares. The Group is pursuing certain finance measures
set out in note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, and therefore, the directors of the Company
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis. However, we are unable to obtain
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence for us to assess
the validity of the going concern assumption which
depends on the continuing financial support of the
Group's bankers and creditors and the Group’s ability to
generate adequate working capital in near future. The
existence of these material fundamental uncertainties
casts significant doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments may have to be made to reflect a realisation
basis which includes, where appropriate, writing down
the Group's assets to net realisation value, and providing
for any contractual commitments that become effective
at the end of the reporting period. In addition, the Group
may have to provide for further liabilities that might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiEX£ZERERAR

EREERS  USEACEEEZIEGRS
BHRBROERELSTHPRE

WMaERE B mRI 20 PI%REE - E£ERE
RZEEHEBAEATPRRZRNBER - BEE
EXZUEXR  THRERESREERMHBERLE
HABER - BESBEERNTHEEMBERRME
20 FEETHEE Bt EARERER
SEEEEERUGAMBRE - A - BF
BEMBRREE 2 ERRBANGHERLE
BRECEE(HRY BESBEERRITRIER
AZFBHE AL BEEERHANELRH
BEEZZET) FEREATHPARES
B BEEEZBEEEEEIKER

HEFBEEERRATEE @ AT EELA
BUARBRERELLE(ZHEEME SEENE
EERERSTFEGEE) ALK
EHRERNEKFRETIRER) - 1 BER
B FE A E - FEE AR IERE XD
NEHDBIRDEEMERDBRE/RDE
ENMRBAIE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Other information in the annual report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
directors’ report and chairman'’s statement but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. As described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion section above, we were unable to obtain
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence as explained.
Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the
other information is materially misstated with respect to this
matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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Revenue recoghnition

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and

note 2(r) to the accounting policies.

Key Audit Matter
BEEXEE

The Group recognises revenue when the goods are
delivered and title has passed to customers for sales of
goods. We focused on this area because the Group’s
revenue transactions are generated from a variety of
customers including those from overseas jurisdictions
and management devoted significant efforts and
resources to obtain and retain these customers and,
risks inherent in particular, the occurrence, accuracy
and allocation to the proper recording period of sales
transactions.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENMERERREREE

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition
included:
EE AR R ERNZF B

We examined on a sample basis sales before and after
financial year end for review with regard to the trigger
event for proper recognition of revenue, when the
customer contractually takes on the risks and rewards of
ownership, and corroborative evidence in third party
carrier documentation and customers agreements.
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From available evidence we found that revenue was
recognised in the correct accounting period and no cut
off error was identified.
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Recognition of share-based payments

Refer to note 29 to the consolidated financial statements and

note 2(0)(ii) to the accounting policies.

Key Audit Matter
BEEXEE

We focused on this area because there is an inherent risk
because of the judgemental nature of determining the
value of the share-based awards, in the interpretation of
complex items in the scheme agreements, the number of
schemes in operation, the record keeping required and
the manual nature of the complex or detailed
computations.
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The key assumptions in calculating share-based expenses
are the fair value of the share options. The binomial
option pricing model is used by management in deriving
the fair value of the share options.
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In addition, the expense is material to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEMEEBREXRSE

Our procedures in relation to recognition of share-based
payments included:
EEBBERARN AERNRNEF B -

—  We checked that the option pricing model used by
management remained appropriate for awards
granted during the year.

— EEREEEERFANFEAZBRTEERAMNAERA
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—  We assessed for reasonableness of the estimates
made by management to form unit option values for
awards by examining and evaluating historical data.
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From our work, the treatment and disclosures relating to
the schemes were judged to be consistent with the
requirements of HKFRS 2. Furthermore, we found that the
pricing model used to value the share-based awards was
consistent with established market practice and we
considered that the assumptions made by management
were reasonable based on the evidence available.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the HKICPA and in compliance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liguidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with HKSAs
issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. However,
because of the matters described in the “Basis for disclaimer of
opinion” section of our report, we were not able to obtain
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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REPORT ON OTHER MATTERS UNDER SECTION
407(2) AND 407(3) OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE

In respect alone of the inability to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence on the multiple matters described in
the “Basis for disclaimer of opinion” section of our report above:

— we were unable to determine whether adequate
accounting records had been kept; and

— we have not obtained all the information and explanations
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, are
necessary and material for the purpose of our audit.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Choi Kwong Yu.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017

Choi Kwong Yu

Practising certificate number P05071
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

e EmR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —F— N NF+=-H=1—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& TZE)

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross loss

Other revenue

Other net losses

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Profit/(loss) from operations
Finance costs
Other operating expenses

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Income tax credit

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) for the year

Earnings/(loss) per share

Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 110 to 232 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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e
SHERA

EE#E
HidA
HfthB5 18558
HE R X
TR

R (BER)
HAib &R

BREBLADEF](B18)
PR %

FREF(BE)
PN 30
ZAUNEIE Z SN
FEIE RS
FREF(BE)
BREF(FE)

4 9,027,978 26,246,238
(9,245,729) (42,482,963)
(217,751) (16,236,725)
5 193,197,915 98,179
6 (8,503,141) (155,056)
(225,688) (952,621)
(53,659,252) (42,324,858)
130,592,083 (59,571,081)
7@) (27,819,101) (45,492,651)
7(c) (60,275,061) (13,886,428)
7 42,497,921 (118,950,160)
8 7,952,143 565,263
50,450,064 (118,384,897)
59,382,332 (110,997,358)
(8,932,268) (7,387,539)
50,450,064 (118,384,897)

11
1.08 cents 1l (3.29 cents 1)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meiEm R HEMEE R SR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 éJ?I_ T NF1T_HA=1—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETFE)

Profit/(loss) for the year FRERN(EHR) 50,450,064 (118,384,897)

Other comprehensive (loss)/income  FREME2E (EE) WA
for the year

Items that may be reclassified HEngeE#H 7 EEBmbyEE ¢
subsequently to profit or 10ss:
— Exchange differences on translation — REBINE A RIB B R R
of financial statements of overseas HEN ZE - IRTIIA
subsidiaries, net of tax (20,085,532) 35,255,184

Total comprehensive income/(loss) FREAWA(BR)AE

for the year 30,364,532 (83,129,713)
Attributable to: BT AL :

Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE PN 40,602,664 (76,940,835)

Non-controlling interests FEPE AR 2 (10,238,132) (6,188,878)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) FREEEBA(EE)AHE
for the year 30,364,532 (83,129,713)

The notes on pages 110 to 232 form part of the consolidated %5 110 & 232 B Fr &Ml sF B4R & B mE — 5615 -
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI &

At 31 December 2016 R=—ZE—F+—-A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& TZE)

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
— Property, plant and equipment
— Interests in leasehold land held for
Own use under operating leases
Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Goodwill
Exploration and evaluation assets
Mining deposit

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Amount due from a related party
Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Other payables and accruals
Obligations under finance leases
Amount due to a director
Amounts due to related parties
Convertible bonds

Bank loans — secured
Interest-bearing borrowings

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE
WmE - WE k&G
— 0% - BELRE

—REEEHERFAN

THE T
WEME - BE k&G
Eff%REe
BE
HREFGEE
RERE

RBEE

&

FE MR
AR - me kEM
FE A

FE W —fiz B 71 SR
AU EIRIR

R RREEHEY

RBAE

Hio BN FIAREER
BEMEAE

BN —2EZ5A
FERAE DT 50R
ARRES
BHEARITER

AHEMER

REBREFE

REERRBRE
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13

142,529,890 177,870,889

2,554,427 3,173,431

= 9,866,833

14 - -
15 = 37,399,285
16 155,709 162,367
145,240,026 228,472,805

18(a) - -
19 148,646 177,489
20 3,212,239 3,647,537
23 - 475,426
= 3,280

493,462 11,964,081

3,854,347 16,267,813

21 54,760,741 37,441,499
22 48,954 174,814
23 - 347
23 2,443,919 2,416,399
24 10,000,000 29,000,000
25 = 260,423,032
26 137,609,200 1,800,000
204,862,814 331,256,091
(201,008,467) (314,988,278)
(55,768,441) (86,515,473)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

iR E BRI =

At 31 December 2016 R=F—F+_-H=+
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (44 %Eil fé )

Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance leases
Deferred tax liabilities

Net liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total deficit attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total deficit

FRBEE
BEREAE 22 - 51,005
EERIBEEE 27 - 7,952,143
- 8,003,148

BETHE (55,768,441) (94,518,621)
BAXKHE 28
B 1,367,875,301 1,367,875,301
& (1,412,730,818)  (1,461,719,130)
RRTEEANELEBASE

(44,855,517) (93,843,829)
FEIE R (10,912,924) (674,792)
EiEAE (55,768,441) (94,518,621)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on  KEEFER - T—+F = F=+— BHbEMIFETIZ -

31 March 2017.

Du Jian Jun

HEE
Director

EF

Leung Wai Kwan

REE
Director

EF

The notes on pages 110 to 232 form part of the consolidated %5 110 % 232 EFR &M sF B4R A BT mE — 5615 -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE—F—NNF+-_A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& TZE)

Attributable to owners of the Company
ADTRAARL

Convertible Convertible Share Non- Total
Share  preference  Exchange Capital  bond equity option Other ~ Accumulated controlling equity/
capital shares reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses interests (deficit)

BLiS TARES it
B BER  EXRE 3 BREGE  AMBR  RiER i FERER
HKS H

At1 January 2015 R-E-15-f-4 989710234 90500988 3229049 13813% 29331866 - 085 (1478600873 (04567073 5514086 (299,052987)
Changes in equity for 2015 —§-REBERE:
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - (1099738 (10997358 (387539 (118384.897)
Other compreniensive income A2 Eka - - 305923 - - - - - 305523 1198661 35,255,184

Total comprehensive loss for FRREFRAE

the year - - 3056523 - - - - (10997.3%8) (694083 (6188878 (83129713
Conversion of convertile SRTARER

preference shares 90500988 (90,500988) - - - - - - - - -
Shares IssUed pursuant fo FERDEEMETHRE

share placing 2000 109,935,500 - - - - - - - 109935500 - 109935500
Shares ssued pursuant o an RELREERETHRG

open offer Bo) 17778519 - - - - - - - 17178519 - 17778519
Redemptions of convertblebonds BT #RES - - - - (TT3es) - - N6 - - -
{31 December 2015 W-E-RFT-A=1-A 1367875301 - 66325712 133,13 7558200 - 08657 (1567824565 (93843829) (67479 (94518621)
A1y 205 RoE-3E-A-8 RIER T KA X ) - WIS (SEMSD OISR GRS
Changes in equity for 2016:  —B-~EEREH:

Profitfor the year ity - - - - - - - NR NI (8932268 50,450,064
Otfer comprehensive loss Ef2EER - - (18779668 - - - - - (BT (130584 (2008553

Total comprehensive income FREENGEE
for the year - - (1B779468) - - - - 03 M2 (10238130 3036453

Recognition of equity-setted BN REEEAR

share-hased payments BRENHT - - - - - 838 - - 88 - 83mes
Redemptions of convertbe bonds BT HkES . . - N I8 - - 5TI8%5 - - -
{31 December 2016 WZE-RETZA=1- 1367875301 - 0 133,13 1783275 8305608 3086527 (1502667308  (48%5517) (10912924 (55768,441)

The notes on pages 110 to 232 form part of the consolidated %5 110 % 232 B Fr &[T B4R A BT S mE — 3615 -
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:

— Amortisation of interests in
leasehold land held for own use

under operating leases
— Depreciation

— Equity-settled share based

payment expense
— Finance costs

— Foreign exchange losses/(gains)

— Gain on loans reduction

— Impairment of exploration and

evaluation assets

— Impairment of trade receivables
— Impairment of other receivables and

prepayments

— Impairment of property, plant and

equipment
— Interest income

— Write off of property, plant and

equipment
— Write off of inventories

GERENRE

%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=F— N NFE+_-H=1—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETFE)

RExR

BRI (EER)

SEIFR :

— REKEHERE
BAMNHEE T
R B8

—HE

— Ba B ARG
RERMRE L

— BERA

— EREE(Kes)

— BB Was

— BRMHEEERE

— PR AR SORLE
— BB IR K
BN RIERIE
— W% - BEMRERE

— MBEWA
— W% - BB MR

— FEMH

42,497,921 (118,950,160)
1,308 3,675
16,606,827 17,862,588
8,385,648 -
27,819,101 45,492,651
6,257,564 (6,072,867)
(192,992,398) -
36,366,175 3,736,391
63,278 -
1,378,000 3,000,000
9,336,606 -
(1,294) (6,657)
13,131,002 4,950,550
= 2,199,487
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/-ﬁ Iﬁﬁl)lbiﬁj—%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E —F—NF+—H=1+—HILFZ
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& TZE)

Operating loss before changes EEESBBHILEESE

in working capital (31,150,262) (47,784,342)
Decrease in inventories FER D - 1,515,076
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  FEURBR K (350) /R 2> (34,435) 2,676,793
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TERTFRIE ~ e RHA

other receivables FEMERIB A BN (942,702) (5,080,205)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from  FEMR—RIBAE 5 /IBR D

a related party (18h0) 475,426 (406,268)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HAb TR Iﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁr%ﬂ%

and accruals #m,/ O 3,915,524 (3,617,850)
Decrease in amount due to a director JEfT—% %%?—\klﬁiﬁﬂ\ (347) (137,653)
Cash used in operating activities REXEBEHARS (27,736,796) (52,834,449)
Tax paid 2NHIE - (332,972)
Net cash used in operating activities K& XKEARELFHE (27,736,796) (53,167,421)
Investing activities REEK
Decrease in pledged deposits B RF ROR - 2,735
Decrease/(increase) in deposits paid W3 - R M tE

for acquisition of property, EfRSRD,(EM)

plant and equipment 9,866,833 (9,866,833)
Payment for purchase of property, BAYE - BB MBI

plant and equipment (9,274,725) (85,650)
Interest received BEFE 5 1,294 6,657

Net cash generated from/(used in) REXEKEL (8H)
investing activities ReFsE 593,402 (9,943,091)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AeRTmER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE—ZE— N NF+_HA=1+—HILFZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETFE)

Financing activities MEER
Redemptions of convertible bonds FEEEAE s (19,849,863) (70,250,214)
Repayments of secured bank loans BEAEBRITER (86,573,424) (49,548,417)
Repayments of interest-bearing borrowings {Ei& 5T Ef& 5K (10,900,000) (43,200,000)
Capital element of finance lease EfNRERERSN

rentals paid BB (176,865) (349,667)
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings &t E &K FT15 IR 146,709,200 45,000,000
Proceeds from a share placing, IR1D B & FT1S 5K 1R

net of expenses incurred (NBREER) 28(b)(i) = 109,935,500
Proceeds from an open offer, NHBEEMSHRIA

net of expenses incurred (NEREER) 28(D)(i) = 177,728,579
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due e BAE A sRIBE 0,

to related parties O ) 27,520 (2,015,329)
Interest on finance lease rentals paid EfRERERSHFE (6,530) (20,077)
Interest paid BAF A (13,565,520) (92,575,960)

Net cash generated from financing RIEEBAEREFE
activities 15,664,518 74,704,415

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁ%?‘%

cash equivalents HA) /8 b0 RE (11,478,876) 11,593,903
cash and cash equivalents at ENRERESEEY

beginning of the year 11,964,081 378,935
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXxgH o8

changes 8,257 (8,757)

cash and cash equivalents at end FRBERBLEEY
of the year 493,462 11,964,081

Major non-cash transactions FEHFRERS

During the year, purchases of property, plant and equipment R - BEW¥ - BMERRXERFEREDE - BE R
included an amount of HK$9,274,725 (2015: HK$NIl) transferred ~ REB (iR e 2 B S5 9,274,725 B T (ZT—1F -
from deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and  Z#7T) ©

equipment.

The notes on pages 110 to 232 form part of the consolidated % 110 % 232 B FR & sT A4 A BT 5% —36H -
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T11E)

110

COMPANY INFORMATION

Ding He Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is Flat B, 21/F., Neich
Tower, 128 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
address of its principal place of business is 3/F., Wisma
Ho Wah Genting, No. 35, Jalan Maharajalela, 50150 Kuala
Lumpur, Malaysia. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
"Group”). The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS

OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”).

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiEX£ZERERAR

ARER
SANBEZERERAFTNTARARFTDR—HEARE
B R ERR AT o Rt sEibit &
BEBEBFETITB128RFEERNE2IEBE - &
* E & ¥ #b B 4k A 3/F, Wisma Ho Wah
Genting, No. 35, Jalan Maharajalela, 50150 Kuala
Lumpur, Malaysia * " ABRDIEE B ER S
FrER AR ([EEAZAT D) FR 7T -

RAPBRERBRERARRRENE QR (G A
KE]) - ARFIENEREERER - HIE
NAZ EBEBHFNREMBRKRME 7 -

WHIR AR AR

(@) EHIEH
FAEMBHRRDIBREEEEFMAS(E
BEE AR ) RMHAEERERY
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B HRIT TR MER LmARR (£
mRAID EEREERE -

REBRMNEXNGTBERBUAAT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continuea)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the
Company'’s functional currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost basis, except otherwise stated below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 511E)

2 BIBAREREESE)

(@

(b)

BHIEH (&)

ARG AGEBEME THR] REER]
BEMBHREED  ZFEANAEER
SR HIM B R AR AT R AR o e
IR E B F AR & W5 R P AT AR T
AT ES) - M EXERE
ARAEERAE T HERAE S R
M SR8 -

REMBHRRNWEREE
BAVBRRALARFNINEEEET
(MBI 275 »

B N A& Sh
SERAEERE o

RAMBRERIMERE

ERENTEBBMBREENNGE M
Wb BEEFFELHE - A5 RE
FEBFEBRNER URHEE -
B BARIHOBREHREBRTE
ZE M AR RIDRBAEERNE
BEERERBEAB/AENSEEMAR
fEHR  EERBRTERBEREEKRE
Hi g E RS HNEERA BENREER
PR HI B e B0 - BRR AR BERBIN
fREt8EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘l-ﬁ A & Zl-i%iﬁﬂa—éﬁfj-?

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51/1E)

2

112

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements (continuead)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on
the consolidated financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
Note 34.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and the Company in light
of the fact that:

()  Excluding the gain on loans reduction
recognised for the year ended 31 December
2016 of HK$192,992,398 (2015: HK$NIl), the
Group incurred a loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$133,610,066
(2015: HK$110,997,358) and, as of that date,
the Group's current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by HK$201,008,467 (2015:
HK$314,988,278);

(i) At 31 December 2016, the Group has cash and
cash equivalents of HK$493,462 (2015:
HK$11,964,081) which is insufficient to settle
all the current liabilities, they mainly included
accrued salaries of HK$3,984,316 (2015:
HK$3,189,592) payables due in the immediate
month, accrued interest on convertible bonds
of HK$3,321,440 (2015: HK$2,979,773); accrued
interest on interest bearing borrowings of
HK$13,702,293 (2015: HK$NIl); and committed
to contract for of HK$13,660,426 (2015:
HK$14,244,500) in the Group's capital
commitments;

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiEX£ZERERAR

2

BHZRARRRERE @)

(b)

REMBBRRNERERE (&)
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R REARIRERR,
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BERAREEREARANKRRRDES R
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TN REBRFAEEERRD wﬁ
B A JE 1 B8 133,610,066 78 7T ( =
T—AHF 110,997,358 7T) * A M
HEZALL AEERAGEN
H A g & E 201,008,467 0 ( — &
— R 1 314,988,278 7T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

As explained in Note 13(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the production plant in
Malaysia was suspended since the year ended
31 December 2012;

As detailed in Notes 15(b) and 15(c) to the
consolidated financial statements, there were
no exploration activities conducted in the year
ended 31 December 2016 for coal and
manganese. This was because the Group is
trying to reallocate its limited cash resources
to other prospective business segments;

As explained in Note 15(c) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group lost contact
with the legal representatives of PT. Laksbang
Mediatama (“PTLM") in prior years and the re-
nomination of the legal representatives has
not yet been completed. PTLM holds a
production operating mining permit for
manganese in Indonesia. This brought to a
halt to the daily operations and mining
activities of PTLM and might impact the
fulfillment of the obligations of PTLM in
respect of its production operation mining
permit for manganese and any other
government regulations it would be subject to.
The operations and future profitability of the
Group might be affected by the loss of contact
with the PTLM's legal representatives;

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 511E)

2 BIBAREREESE)

(b)

ma

(iii)

(iv)

MBMERNRRERE ()

A AR A BT S R 3% MY RE13(0) AT AR
B URERAENEERED A
HE-_FE——F+-A=+—HL
FEREEEE

N R A& B 7% R MY 5 15(0) K2 15(C)
Frsat HE T RF+ A
=T BIEFEYERRRRGE
THHRES AR AKELE
ERENOIREERNRESERE
HABHEREE D E

AN AR A B TS R R M R 15(0) ATt
ARE BN B A FE EPT. Laksbang
Mediatama ([PTLM |) B SEX 2R K &
KEpiE  BHATERETIRE LR
KK - PIIMBE MR ENEMIE £ E
FEFRETAIEE - WL PTIMA AR
EERIREEHRAEFRE I
AREEPTIMBITEEEEEL
ERRFIERTMEMEEEE
THBFEANET REENE
% RARRBFIRE N E FHEPTLMAY
ERERRAEBEMZ R ZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T11E)

2

114

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS

OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

(Vi)

As detailed in Note 24(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, the remained
outstanding aggregate principal amount of
convertible bonds of HK$10,000,000 (the
“Matured Bonds”) following the non-fully
redemptions of Fourth Tranche Bonds on 4
March 2015, all the Matured Bonds were
remained in defaulted and immediately due
for repayments as at 31 December 2016. The
directors of the Company represented that (i)
the Company is currently in the course of
arm’s length negotiations with the holders of
the Matured Bonds in relation to, among
others, the possible extension of the Matured
Bonds and other possible alteration of terms
of the Matured Bonds (“Proposed Alteration”);
(i) as negotiated with the holder of the
Matured Bonds, who has verbally agreed not
to redeem the Matured Bonds until the
Proposed Alteration is confirmed; and (iii) the
interest on the Matured Bonds will continue to
be payable by the Company until the date of
redemption pursuant to the terms of the
Matured Bonds. The interest thereon is
approximately HK$3,321,440 (2015:
HK$2,979,773) for the year ended 31
December 2016. As at the approval date of
the consolidated financial statements, the
Proposed Alteration have not been fixed and
confirmed yet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

As detailed in Note 26(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Company defaulted
on the repayments of the outstanding
aggregated loans of HK$102,609,200 and
interest accrued, handling fees and further
charges during the year in relation to the
outstanding loans amounting to a total sum of
HK$16,337,418. The directors of the Company
represented that (i) the Company commenced
a negotiation of the terms of the loans with
the third party; (ii) the interest and further
charges on the matured loans will continue to
be payable by the Company until the matured
loans and related interest and charges are
repaid in full. As at the approval date of the
consolidated financial statements, the revised
terms have not been concluded yet.

As detailed in Note 32(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the bondholder of the
Matured Bonds and the lenders of the
Matured Loans may without further notice
institute such proceedings as it may think fit
to enforce repayment of the Matured Bonds
and defaulted loans.

The directors of the Company have taken the
following actions to mitigate the liquidity issues
faced by the Group:

)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
the Company had announced on 8 March
2017 that the Company entered into a placing
agreement with the placing agent, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to place up to
150,000,000 placing shares to not less than six
independent third parties of the Group at
HK$0.084 per placing share. The maximum net
proceeds arising from the share placing are
estimated to be approximately HK$12.22
million. Up to the approval date of the
consolidated financial statements, although
the share placing has expired as per
Company’s announcement dated 29 March
2017 of which fulfiment of the conditions set
out in the placing agreements have not been
reached and the Company will seek another
placing agent in near future,
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS

OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

(In

(D)

Subsequent to the end to the reporting period,
on 24 February 2017, 1 March 2017 and 17
March 2017, the Company borrowed
unsecured loans of HK$2,000,000,
HK$2,000,000 and HK$1,000,000 respectively
from independent third parties at interest rate
ranging from 3% to 5% per month and are
repayable within two months after their
respective drawdown dates;

On 10 August 2016 and 11 August 2016, Bank
Rakyat acknowledged the Group that final
settlement of RM45,000,000 (equivalents to
approximately HK$87,412,588) for the
redemption of charged properties was
received and on 18 November 2016, Bank
Rakyat completed the process of discharging
the Group’s properties in Malaysia as pledged
security. Accordingly, an one-off non-recurring
gain on loans reduction amounted to
RM99,352,487 (equivalents to approximately
HK$192,992,398) was recognised in profit or
loss and all the secured bank loans due to
Bank Rakyat were settled during the year;

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company borrowed interest bearing loans
totalling HK$107,609,200 from independent
third parties, with interests bearing at 10% —
48% per annum respectively and repayable
within two months after their respective
drawdown dates or within 20 business days
after the lender has served the Company a
written notice for immediate repayment. The
Company has also pledged the issued shares
of CVMSB as security for the HK$50,000,000
loan included in aforementioned,

On 6 October 2016 and 24 November 2016,
the Company issued an aggregate of
HK$30,000,000 unsecured bonds to
independent third parties, which interests
bearing at 2% per month and will mature on
one year from the date of issuance of the
bonds;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements (continued)

(VI)  As detailed in Notes 24(a), 26(b) and 32(b), the
Group is exposed to potential litigations. The
Group is using their best efforts to have (i)
repaid of the Matured Bonds in the principal
amount of totalling HK$19,000,000 during the
year; (ii) arranged to continue to pay the
overdue interests to the bondholders and the
lender in due course and (iii) further re-
negotiate with bondholders and the lender for
the extension of maturity dates and Proposed
Alteration/Proposed Extension of terms of
these convertible bonds and interest-bearing
borrowings; and

(VIl)  The Group has sought its global searching for

investors or strategic partners for the Group’s

projects in Hong Kong, the PRC and the rest of
the world.

The directors of the Company consider that taking
into account of the above, the cash requirements of
the Group for the next twelve months from the end
of the reporting period and the Group's ability to
attain future profitable operations in CYMSB and its
indirectly owned subsidiary, geJI| FEER R B R A A
(Long Chuan Shen Long Mineral Water Co., Ltd.)
("Long Chuan”) and all existing loan facilities will be
continuously available for the Group's use, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet in
full their financial obligations as they fall due for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the value of all assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and
liabilities, respectively. The effects of these potential
adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51/1E)

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS 2 BHEHREREEE)
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (c) MEBATIRIFERELS

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions, cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and
the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continuea)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less any
impairment losses (see note 2h(iii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(h)(iii)).
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(h)(iii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

— Buildings 10-40 years
— Plant and machinery 4-10 years
— Motor vehicles 4-10 years
— Furniture and fittings 10 years

— Office equipment 4-10 years
— Computer equipment 3-5years
— Retorts 25 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Depreciation method, useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually and
adjusted if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
Leased assets
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

()

)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases
Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased asset,
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are included
in property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where
it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in
Note 2(e). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in Note 2(h)(iii). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to
profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting
period.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(f) Leased assets (continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss
in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight line
basis over the period of the lease term.

(g) Exploration and evaluation assets

0]

Exploration and evaluation assets
Exploration and evaluation assets comprises
costs which are directly attributable to:
researching and analysing existing exploration
data; conducting geological studies,
exploratory drilling and sampling; examining
and testing extraction and treatment methods;
and compiling prefeasibility and feasibility
studies. Exploration and evaluation assets also
includes the costs incurred in the entry
premiums paid to gain access to areas of
interest and amounts payable to third parties
to acquire interests in existing projects.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure is
capitalised if the project is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to
complete the project. If a project does not
prove viable, all irrecoverable costs associated
with the project are expensed in profit or l0ss.
Capitalised exploration and evaluation
expenditures are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see Note
2(hy(i).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(g) Exploration and evaluation assets
(continued)

)

(ii)

Exploration and evaluation assets
(continued)

Upon the commencement of quarrying
activities, the capitalised exploration and
evaluation expenditure is amortised using the
straight line method over its estimated useful
life of 20 years. Both the useful life of an asset
and amortisation method are reviewed
annually.

Exploration mining permits acquired in
business combinations

Exploitation mining permits acquired in a
business combination and recognised
separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, exploitation
mining permits are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)). Exploitation mining
permits are amortised on a unit-of-production
basis. The units of the exploitation mining
permits are reviewed annually in accordance
with the production plans of the Group and
the proved and probable reserves.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(g) Exploration and evaluation assets
(continued)
(iii) water and mining permits acquired in

(h)
)

a business combination

Water and mining permits acquired in a
business combination and recognised
separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, water and
mining permits are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)). Water and mining
permits are amortised on a unit-of-production
basis. The units of the water and mining
permits are reviewed annually in accordance
with the production plan of the Group.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continuea)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

)

Impairment of receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined, recognised and measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’'s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or l0ss.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of exploration and
evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and
evaluation assets is reviewed annually and
adjusted for impairment whenever one of the
following events or changes in circumstances
indicates that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable:

the period for which the Group has the
right to explore in the specific area has
expired during the period or will expire
in the near future, and is not expected
to be renewed;

substantive expenditure on further
exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned;

exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area have not
led to the discovery of commercially
viable quantities of mineral resources
and the Group has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific
area; or

sufficient data exist to indicate that,
although a development in the specific
area is likely to proceed, the carrying
amount of the exploration and
evaluation asset is unlikely to be
recovered in full from successful
development of by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continuea)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— pre-paid interest in leasehold land
classified as being held under an
operating lease;

— investments in subsidiaries, except for
those classified as held for sale; and

—  goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. For
goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication
of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of other assets (continued)

(h)

(iii)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment 10ss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continuea)

M

@

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(h)(i)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts, if any.

2
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(k) Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where the
number of shares that would be issued on
conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an
equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value
of the future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the market rate of interest applicable
at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option. Any excess of
proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
liability component is recognised as the equity
component. Transaction costs that relate to the
issue of a compound financial instrument are
allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the convertible bond
equity reserve until either the bond is converted or
redeemed, and net of any tax effects.

If the bond is converted, the convertible bond equity
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the
liability component at the time of conversion, is
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the bond is
redeemed, the convertible bond equity reserve is
released directly to accumulated losses.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continuea)

(k)

)

(m)

(n)

Convertible bonds (continued)

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or 10ss.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except
for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(qg)(i), payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost using the effective
interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash
equivalents and deposits with banks that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(o) Employee benefits

0]

(i)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered by
employee. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and
contributions to the retirement schemes
operated by the relevant authorities for
employees of the subsidiaries in the Malaysia
and PRC are recognised as an expense in
profit or l0ss as incurred, except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of
inventories not yet recognised as an expense.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share
option reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial
model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the option were
granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(0) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)
During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the
year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is
adjustment to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share
option reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or to
provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to business
combinations or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences,
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continuea)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51/1E)

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS 2 BUHSHREREE#)
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(p) Income tax (continued) (p) FREB (&)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group or the Company intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities

)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within other
payables and accruals. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit
or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in
profit or loss over the term of the guarantee
as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provision are recognised in
accordance with note 2(qg)(ii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on
the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in other payables and
accruals in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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MV-R =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51/1E)

2
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions

r

and contingent liabilities (continued)

(ii) Other provisions and contingent
liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit
or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods are
transferred to the buyer. Revenue excludes
value added tax and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 511E)

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS 2 BHEBHEREREEE)
OF PREPARATION (continuea)

(r) Revenue recognition (continued) (n WARR#E)
(ii) Interest income (i) FEKA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues FLBM AR B A3 E BT TR o

using the effective interest method.

(s) Translation of foreign currencies (s) sEwE
Foreign currency transactions during the year are FAMIINEZ FERH A 2B BIEEXKR
translated at the relevant exchange rates ruling at Ho LINEFHEMEREE KRB EH R
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities HHRMEBERKRE - [EXABNER
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at FRNFER ©

the relevant exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are RE LKA AINEENFEBEERA
measured in terms of historical cost in foreign & BZXZARIINEERKRE o

currencies are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of relevant operations in other Hih el AR AAEBNERZER HH
jurisdictions are translated into HK$ at the exchange BRAERAENERRE BB T - B
rates approximating the relevant exchange rates MRIEE (BEGFEETRF—A—H
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of AR RN BINEBTEERNEE) A
financial position items, including goodwill arising BRWEMRAOWTINEERME RBTT -
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on FRIEERER ZBREtE KRG EER
or after 1 January 2005, are translated into HK$ at REEINERBEE B R AR

the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T11E)

2
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

(t)

(u)

Related parties
A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(if)

0

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()

(I

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)
(u) Related parties (continued)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(IV) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(V)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

(V) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in ().

(VIl) A person identified in (i)(I) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(V) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T11E)

2
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (continued)

(V)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management (being the chief
operating decision maker) ("CODM") for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segment which are not individually materials may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle,
Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification

of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
cycle, Amendments to HKFRSs

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments
to four standards. Among them, HKAS 19, Employee
Benefits has been amended to clarify that the depth of
the market for high quality corporate bonds should be
assessed at currency level, and not at the country level.
These amendments do not have an impact on these
consolidated financial statements as there is no such
employee benefit operated by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative
The amendments clarify various presentation issues. The
amendments do not have an impact on the presentation
of consolidated financial statements as the Group does
not have equity-accounted associates and joint ventures.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38,
Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

The amendments introduce a rebuttable presumption to
HKAS 38 that the use of revenue-based amortisation
methods for intangible assets is inappropriate. The
amendments also prohibit the use of revenue-based
depreciation methods for property, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. The amendments do not have an impact
on the Group's property, plant and equipment, exploration
and evaluation assets and related depreciation and
amortisation as the Group does not adopt the revenue-
based depreciation methods.

3
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n'l_ﬁ

B IR AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T Z1E)

144

TURNOVER 4

Turnover represents the sales value of magnesium ingots EEBEFAMT L HESEE MABBEWE AR
and related materials, and bottled mineral water supplied MEBERKOEEEEB RFAERBEREREL
to customers. The amount of each significant category of FEARAERSF|IOT ¢

revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as

follows:

Sales of bottled mineral water SHEMRERERK 447,104 583,596
Sales of magnesium ingots and related 56 BT ARk
materials 8,580,874 25,662,642

9,027,978 26,246,238

OTHER REVENUE 5 HfslA

Interest income 2 A 1,294 6,657
Gain on loans reduction BB A BEs 192,992,398 -
Sundry income FETEILA 204,223 91,522

193,197,915 98,179
OTHER NET LOSSES 6 HtEEFEHE

Net foreign exchange losses [ 5 518 558 (8,503,141) (155,056)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 7  BREADER(EE)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BEATEF,(BB) Bk (GtA) ¢
(crediting):

(a) Finance costs: (@) ®MEME :

(b)

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable /E#ﬂiﬂﬂ%%dﬁ 2 Y

within 5 years BEA B 811,217 21,813,102
Effective interest on convertible bonds ﬂ?ﬁﬁifﬁ%%ﬁf’%ﬂ% = 9,245,871
Default interest on convertible bonds A& 5 HE R T & 3,234,970 11,422,034
Interest on other borrowings from KREB=FERAFNRN

third parties wholly repayable BHEENEMEENF S

within 5 years 23,763,292 1,245,736
Amortisation of loan transaction costs & A 5 A A 8 (M5 25)

(Note 25) - 1,630,597
Finance charges on obligations under gt & fH & #&ER BT T5E A

finance leases 6,530 20,077
Other borrowings costs to financial B S MRS R B b B BRI AR

institutions 3,092 115,234

27,819,101 45,492,651
Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EINK(BEESEHMH) (ME9) :

remuneration) (Note 9):

Salaries, wages, bonuses and e I8 A REAMER

other benefits 10,322,832 9,158,216
Equity-settled share-based payments #2545 & 89 LARR (5 A E T K 8,385,648 -
Contributions to defined contribution [ R E 4 FURRET 24t 3k

retirement plan 307,614 330,250

19,016,094 9,488,466
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e R R AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T Z1E)

7 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 7

(c) Other operating expenses

BREBLAIRA,(E58) (&)
() EHibemx

Impairments of: A :
— exploration and evaluation assets ~ — iR REHE &2 (FiEX15)
(Note 15) 36,366,175 3,736,391
— interests in leasehold land held for  — IRBELHAERER ALY
own use under operating leases FAE b iERS (M5E13)
(Note 13) 125,996 -
— other receivables and prepayments — H b fE gk 18 K B I8 1,378,000 3,000,000
— property, plant and equipment —YE - BENGRE
(Note 13) (FFEE13) 9,210,610 -
— trade receivables — FEUERR 63,278 -
47,144,059 6,736,391
Write offs of: sy -
— inventories (Note 18(b)) — FE (fisE18(h) - 2,199,487
— property, plant and equipment — W - BEKERE
(Note 13) (FF5E13) 13,131,002 4,950,550
13,131,002 7,150,037
60,275,061 13,886,428
(d) Other items: (d) HmEA :

Amortisation of interests in leasehold
land held for own use

REBLLEHERIEE RN
HE T 3K (M7 13)

under operating leases (Note 13) 1,308 3,675
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR BN & 1,211,584 1,345,778
Cost of inventories sold * (Note 18(b)) B &EFEKA* (FE18(b 9,245,729 40,283,476
Depreciation (Note 13) W& (BI5E13) 16,606,827 17,862,588
Operating lease charges in respect of: GBI N5 S EHRLHETH -

— office equipment — WRERME 7,000 12,026

— office premises —WAEWE 1,699,866 698,089
# The cost of inventories sold includes HK$500,357 (2015: ’ REIRA  fIERBERXABNCERE

HK$17,393,866) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation expenses, which amount is also included in
the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or
in Note 7(b) for each of these types of expenses.

B A 500,357 8 7L ( =& — B4 : 17,393,866 78
TC) IREE AR XXM 5 7(0) BE & AR RIF X
RRENARESED -
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INCOME TAX CREDIT
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss represents:

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

8 FhEBiER
(a) HEBEBIRPIBIANAR:

Current tax — Malaysian
Income Tax

RIBR — BREZFAEHR

Provision for the year FERE - -
Under-provision in respect of prior years @t FEEBE T - 51,241
- 51,241
Deferred tax EERIE
Reversal of temporary differences BOoErrERE (MFE27)
(Note 27) (7,952,143) (616,504)
Total income tax credit FriS 48 & 42 58 (7,952,143) (565,263)

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity
basis on profits arising in or derived from the
jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operated. The directors of the
Company determine the effective tax rate of the
Group is 16.5% (2015: 16.5%).

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2015:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year ended 31 December 2016. No provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made as the Group
did not have assessable profit which is subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

Malaysian Income Tax is calculated at 24% (2015:
25%) of assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2016. No provision for Malaysian Income
Tax had been made as the Group did not have
assessable profit which is subject to Malaysian
Income Tax for the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51/1E)

8 INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement

148

of profit or loss represents: (continued)

In accordance with the tax laws of Indonesia,
companies engaged in metal, mineral and coal
mining are governed by a particular contract of
work and this is used for computation of the
domestic income tax relating to that contract of
work. Since the natural resources located in
Indonesia are still in a preliminary exploration phase,
the management of the Company was unable to
ascertain from the local tax authorities the tax rate
that should be applied to its mining operations for
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. No
provision for Indonesian Income Tax has been made
as the Group did not have assessable profit which is
subject to Indonesian Income Tax for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiary is
25% (2015: 25%) for the year ended 31 December
2016. No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax
has been made as the Group did not have
assessable profit which is subject to the PRC Income
Tax for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in this jurisdiction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 8 FMiEBER®)
(b) The reconciliation between tax credit and (b) REAMEHEZHEKEHEESEHE
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax R (BE) WEEROT :

rates is as follows:

Profit/(loss) before taxation B R A (E51E) 42,497,921 (118,950,160)

Notional tax on profit/(loss) before tax, &4 1% 5 AR =T

calculated at the rates HRARETE 2R

applicable to profits in the tax wmA (ER) BEMRIE

jurisdictions concerned 17,894,801 (27,224,971)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBBRAZ BT 2 (44,578,147) (15,237)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A~ A FOF: B 2 2 B 75 5 &8 14,169,060 13,731,507
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERZAREATIAEBE

not recognised BT E 874,605 2,096,092
Tax effect of temporary AERERERB I HGTE

differences not recognised 3,687,538 10,796,105
Under-provision in previous year BAFERETR = 51,241
Actual income tax credit BEREHE R (7,952,143) (565,263)
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e R R AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T Z1E)

9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 9 BEEME
The details of directors’ remuneration are disclosed as EEMESFBHRELT
follows:
2016
—E-RE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme payments
fees in kind bonuses contributions Sub-Total (note)
5é - 2H BARGHE IRGAER
E=He RENAR WAL f#5 et WA (R
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Executive directors: HTES:
Du Jian Jun HEE 640,000 - - - 640,000 2,093,657 2,733,657
JiKuang RE 430,000 - - - 430,000 418,731 898,731
Li Po Wai TERE = 886,600 - 13,000 899,600 418,731 1,318,331
Leung Wai Kwan 2HE - 1,200,000 100,000 18,000 1,318,000 2,093,657 3,411,657
Meng Xiao Ying i) 240,000 - - - 240,000 418,731 658,731
Fan Wei Peng ER 240,000 - - - 240,000 418,731 658,731
Yin ShiBo FK 240,000 - - - 240,000 209,366 449,366

Leung Kwok Peng Joseph 2EER-E—1E
(Appointed on 29 June 2016) A tHHABEZM) 121,333 - -

121,333 = 121,333

Independent non-executive BUFHTES:

directors:
Chan Kin Ho Philip BEx 180,000 - - - 180,000 209,366 389,366
Lizhen Zhen &3 180,000 - - - 180,000 104,683 284,683
LiuBo 2% 186,290 = = = 186,290 104,684 290,974
Tong Zhu RERZT-1F

(Appointed on 29 June 2016)  RAZTNBEZEM) 91,000 - - - 91,000 - 91,000
Tian Jing Hua BEE(RZT—1F

(Retired on 28 June 2016) ANAZTN\REE) 90,000 - - - 90,000 104,683 194,683
Total it 2,688,623 2,086,600 100,000 31,000 4,906,223 6,595,020 11,501,243
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETTFI(E)

9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 9 EEME )
2015
—T-hf%
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-hased
Directors’  andbenefits  Discretionary scheme payments
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Sub-Total (note)
=F 8 | '
BEe  REWAE RiETEA NG
HKS HKS HKS
B BT B 7 AL
Executive directors: HITES
Du Jian Jun HgE 480,000 - - - 480,000 - 480,000
JiKuang RE 120,000 324,000 - - 444,000 - 444,000
LiPo Wai FER(N-Z-1F
(Appointed on 29 June 2015)  RAZ+HABEZM) - 769,000 50,137 7,500 826,637 - 826,637
Leung Wai Kwan PUE - 900,000 65,151 18,000 983,151 - 983,151
Meng Xiao Ying EAlN:S 340,000 - - - 340,000 - 340,000
Fan Wei Peng BEE(W-Z-1F
(Appointedon 16 March 2015) = A+ BEE() 240,645 - - - 240,645 - 240,645
Yin Shi Bo FHE(R-Z—0F
(Appointed on 29 June 2015) NAZTNAEZA) 120,000 - - - 120,000 - 120,000
Zheng Chang Xing H8%(W=2-1F

(Appointedon 16 March 2015 =B+ BEZAER
andresigned on 26 June 2015)  RZ=E—-REF

AAZTRAREME) 140,645 - - - 140,645 - 140,645

Dato’ Lim Ooi Hong SEWER

(Resigned on 8 May 2015) (R=F-1F

RANRE) 240,000 - - - 240,000 - 240,000

Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors:
Chan Kin Ho Philip REx 203,226 - - - 203,226 - 203,226
Tian Jing Hua Rz 203,548 - - - 203,548 - 203,548
LiZhen Zhen 2% (R-F-1nf

(Appointed on 17 July 2015) +A +t A Zéi ) 82258 - - - 82,258 - 82258
Liu Bo (Appointed AR(M=T-1F

on 14 December 2015) TZATHBEEZEE) - - - - - - -
Tony Tan (Resigned RE% (R -Z-1F

0n 22 April 2015) MAZ+ZHET) 40,000 - - - 40,000 - 40,000
Wong Choi Kay BER(R-Z-1F

(Resigned on 22 April 2015) MA=-+-HEH) 40,000 - - - 40,000 - 40,000
Cheung Ning (Resigned FER-ET-1F

0n 17 September 2015) NATHHER) 168,167 - - - 168,167 - 168,167
Total & 2,418,489 1,993,000 115,288 25,500 4,852,217 - 4,552,277
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to MisE © ZEHWEEREAQ DB E T EEERE G

the directors under the company’s share option scheme. The value SHEME o RS2 (EE RN 5 200)i) FrEi A&
of these share options is measured according to the group'’s BEEBUBRDAREMNES Sy e EtE -

accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as set
out in note 2(0)(i).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms ZEBMFIEOFE - 0I5 SRR RATR LR

and number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph BRENESGWE [BRETE ] —BRRMEE29 -
“Share option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 29.
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e R R AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T Z1E)

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four
(2015: four) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in
respect of the remaining one (2015: one) individual is as

follows:

10

REFMAL

TEEEHFMATERENE(ZF—0F : O%)
BEF RENFHCORMEITHRE - BRHT
—%(ZF—RF: %) ALOFHBRENT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Equity-settled share-based payments
Retirement scheme contributions

The above emoluments were within the following bands:

e R MEYN S
R B H AR RERE R
RIRFTEI K

1,300,000 793,628
1,377,406 -

18,000 9,000
2,695,406 802,628

HABE N F T I HE

Nil-HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors of the Company or the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as a compensation for loss of office. No
directors of the Company have waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is
based on the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$59,382,332 (2015:
(HK$110,997,358)) and the weighted average
number of 5,509,623,921 (2015: 3,370,501,216)
shares in issue during the year, calculated as
follows:

(i) Number of shares:

11
(a)

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

BREF(EHE)

BREAXER(FHE)
BRERAF,(F8) HERFARQF
B ARIERF(E518)59,382,332/%8 7T
—ZT—FR% 110,997,358 B 7T) M B LT
& 17 hn 4 F 15 £15,509,623921 % ( = &
—F4F ¢ 3,370,501,216 %) st E T ¢

BIEE

—
=

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January
Effect of issue of new shares pursuant to 18#5 A% (0 Bt & M 2173 % (D

a share placing (Note 28(b)(i))
Effect of shares issued pursuant to
the loan capitalisation (Note 28(0)(i))
Effect of issue of new shares pursuant
to an open offer (Note 28(b)(i))

Weighted average number of shares
at 31 December

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share
does not assume the conversions/exercises of the
Company's outstanding convertible bonds and
share options since their conversions/exercises
would have an anti-dilutive effect on the basic
earnings/(loss) per share.

R—A—BRNEHTEEK

V& & (FaE28(0)(0)
BREEREMEETRN
w2 & (FIEE28(0)0))
RELFZEEMRITHRN
%2 (FEE28(0)0))

(b)

R+ZA=1+—H8EM
Il BEE 2

5,509,623,921  2,495451,437

- 246,476,712

- 412,213,406

- 216,359,661

5,509,623,921  3370,5501,216
BRBHFRR,(HE)

ShEERAN(BR) M ETBRRE
B TER AR ARG R TR ES K
Rk AEE®R TRESHERER
&/ (BR)ERESTYE -
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n‘l-ﬁ A & Zl-i%iﬁﬂa—éﬁfj-?

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51/1E)

12

154

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has identified the reportable segments set out
below. The segment information reported internally to the
Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment is the same as those
reported in the consolidated financial statements.

Mining of dolomite  This segment includes trading of
and manufacture magnesium ingots. Currently, the
of magnesium Group's trading activities are
ingots mainly carried out in South

America, Malaysia and China.

Exploration for iron  This segment is engaged in the
ore, coal and exploration for iron ore, coal and
manganese manganese in Indonesia. The

activities carried out in Indonesia
are through indirectly owned

subsidiaries.
Extraction and This segment is engaged in the
bottling of extraction and bottling of mineral
mineral water water in the PRC. The activities

carried out in the PRC are
through an indirectly owned
subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘l-.r\ =1 ! ji%i&’lj—%ﬁﬁ-;i

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 511E)

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 12 AEWEHK#E)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PIEE BEERERE
For the purpose of assessing segment performance ERHE DI EERED BESEEIR -
and allocating resources between segments, the REENEZEERRERUTNELELE
Group's CODM monitors the results, assets and GER MO EELEE  EEREE

liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following basis:

Segment assets include all non-current assets and

NEEEBREFMEIERDEERRDE

current assets with the exception of pledged E G BTRRERTH  RekfeEE
deposits, cash and cash equivalents and other YA EMAREE - DR BEREIER
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include non- PEEMADEE B TEERGEMR

current liabilities and current liabilities with the

TEFHEENAE  FTHRERES  RER

exception of liabilities associated with secured bank BEE REE=ZFEEFERREMD
loans, convertible bonds, deferred tax liabilities, GI=NE

unsecured loans from third parties and other

corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the WARSZHT2ET2H/HPEEMIBE
reportable segments with reference to sales BERZEDIMEEARZEDHELEE
generated by those segments and the expenses TERBHMEEAN X HMOEZEZEA
incurred by those segments or which otherwise ZHDEL ©

arise from depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.

Segment loss represents loss resulted by each
segment without allocation of central administration
costs including interest on bank loans, convertible
bonds and interest-bearing borrowings, and
directors’ emoluments, etc. This is the measure
reported to the Group’s CODM for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

D EBE RSB D BT E M AR D B P R 7T

B (BRERITER - AR E S NG
BREFUAREEMEF)NER - G2
Eﬂéﬁ&nﬂfﬂ“*ﬂ%fﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁllx

BERREREOER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T Z1E)

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 12 7H2HK##)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PHXEE -BEEREEH)
(continued)

Mining of
dolomite and Exploration Extraction
manufacture for iron ore, and bottling
of magnesium coal and of mineral

ingots manganese water
BHEAER  HAREER- RERER
REESR KR BRK
HK$ HK$ HK$

AT AR BT

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE-B-XAE

TZAZ+-HLEE

Reportable segment revenue (Note) 2R BRA () 8,580,874 - 447,104 9,027,978
Segment oss PEER (11,301,928) (371,116) (13,707,065) (25,380,109)
Interest income FEWA 992 - 211 1,203
Finance costs REFR (817,747) - - (817,747)
Gain on loan reduction R ME 192,992,398 - - 192,992,398
Depreciation and amortisation FER#EH (15,529,796) (122,200) (799,882) (16,451,878)
Impairment of exploration and WRRGHEEERE

evaluation assets - (18,648,122) (17,718,053) (36,366,175)
Impairment of Interest in leasehold land & T3tz E (125,996) - - (125,996)
Impairment of trade receivable YRR E - - (63,278) (63,278)
Impairment of property, plant and nE  BERZERE

equipment (9,210,610) = - (9,210,610)
Write off of inventories FEME - - - -
Write off of property, plant and WE - BERREME

equipment - - (13,131,002 (13,131,002)
Addltions to segment non-current PEERBDEERE

assets - - 9,227,890 9,227,890

As at 31 December 2016 RZB-RE
+ZA=+-H

Segment assets PEEE 145,039,355 23,544 2,244,724 147,307,623
Segment liabilities PEEE (2,687,243) (1,365,054) (5,678,306) (9,730,603)
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e IR R AR MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETTFI(E)

Mining of
dolomite and
manufacture

of magnesium

ingots
RERER
REEEGR
HKS

S
870

Exploration
foriron are,

coal and
manganese

Extraction
and bottling
of mineral
water
RERER

BRK

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 12 oH2H#E)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PHXEE -BEEREEH)
(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2015 HFE-E2-1%
TZAZ+-HLEE
Reportable segment revenue (Note) ERIBPA () 25,662,642 - 583,596 26,246,238
Segment loss PHEE (20,245,305) (229,671)  (6,254,840) (26,729,816)
Interest income FEWA 1,778 - 134 1,912
Finance costs BAMNA (23,457,888) - (494,982)  (23,952,870)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (16,483,927) (124,533)  (1,219,341) (17,827,801)
Impairment of exploration and R AERE
evaluation assets - (3,736,391) - (3,736,391)
Write off of inventories FEME (2,199,487) - - (2,199,487)
Write off of property, plant and NE  BERZEHE
equipment - - (4,950,550)  (4,950,550)
Additions to segment non-current AEERBDEERE
assets - - 9,952,483 9,952,483
As at 31 December 2015 R-B-1F
+=A=+-H
Segment assets PEEE 171,965,167 18,400,546 35,878,510 226,244,223
Segment liailities AHEE (3,321,457)  (1,516,380)  (5,716,965) (10,554,802)

Note:

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the

current year (2015: HKS$Nil).

BfaE

EXFR2B/A BRNIERE IR EIRN » AFEEW
EOMEHE(ZT—0F  THEL) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LEITSE)

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 12 DEHEHRE)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b)y TEHMAPBA - -BE EEREEN
revenues, profit or loss, assets and AR
liabilities

158

Revenue
Reportable segment revenue

Profit/(loss)

Reportable segment loss
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs

Interest income

Equity-settled share-based payment
Impairment of trade receivable
Impairment of exploration and
evaluation assets
Impairment of interests
in leasehold land

Gain on loan reduction
Impairment of other receivables and
prepayments
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Write off of inventories

Write off of property, plant and
equipment

Other unallocated amounts

Consolidated profit/(loss) before
taxation

wmFL(E18)

A 25 B EE

P8 N i

MEWA

R A E A AR RER (TR
FEUBERFUR(E

BR R aH b & ERE

ME g E

H{th & WO IR e TR FRIERUE

Y% - BB MERmRE

ME - BB M
His KDL&/

BB R&R AT, (&)

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & Hfi&£ZRBERA R

9,027,978 26,246,238
(25,380,109) (26,729,816)
(16,608,135) (17,866,263)
(27,819,101) (45,492,651)

1,294 6,657
(8,385,648) -
(63,278) -
(36,366,175) (3,736,391)
(125,996) -
192,992,398 -
(1,378,000) (3,000,000)
(9.210,610) -
- (2,199,487)
(13,131,002) (4,950,550)
(12,027,717) (14,981,659)
42,497,921 (118,950,160)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 12 DEEHRE)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b)y AEZHMAPBA - -BE EEREEN
revenues, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities (continued)

HiR(#)

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AI2MOFEE 147,307,623 226,244,223
Unallocated corporate assets: ROWAREE
— Cash and cash equivalents —ReRBLEEY 493,462 11,964,081
— Others — EHh 1,293,288 6,532,314
Consolidated total assets IRABEE 149,094,373 244,740,618
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities AZwoHatsE (9,730,603) (10,554,802)
Unallocated corporate liabilities: RABARAE :
— Bank loans — secured — BERBITER - (260,423,032)
— Convertible bonds — AR ES (10,000,000) (29,000,000)
— Interest-bearing borrowings —itEER (137,609,200) (1,800,000)
— Deferred tax liabilities —RIEHIBAE = (7,952,143)
— Others — Hip (47,523,011) (29,529,262)
Consolidated total liabilities rABats (204,862,814) (339,259,239
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e R R AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T Z1E)

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(c) Geographical information

The following tables set out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue
from external customers and (ii) the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, goodwill, deposits
paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, exploration and evaluation assets and
mining deposit (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the goods are delivered. The
geographical location of the specific non-current
assets is based on: (1) the physical location of the
asset in case of property, plant and equipment; and
(2) the location of the operations to which they are
allocated, in case of intangible assets and goodwill.

South America
[
2016

2015
—E-1f
HKS

“E-5E
HKS

12

DEB2 R (&)

(c)

k23

HIRE R
TREINERBOAKEREINDEF K
)\ RAEEYME BELRKHE B
B YE - BERREDEIZE A
&@U%&aﬂﬁéﬁ%%&?ﬂ&%&%(Ha Ik
REBEENIBLEER - B 8HIE
LEIREPTAE M T E © 8 IE
MEEENMIRMETIA - ()VEEMEL
(HEMZE - BEREE)  RQEIEE
EXBHEL(HEETEERAE) DR -

The PRC
i
2016

Europe
il
2016
ZE-RF ZE-1f
HKS HKS
A B

2015
—3-1fF
HKS
B

215

HKS$
E

Turnover E¥E - 1758945 5,226,874

447,104

58359 3,354,000 5847972 9,021,978

Hong Kong Malaysia
RRBE

2016

ZE-AE
HKS
Br

-%

E-AE

The PRC
T
216

Indonesia
il
2016 2015
—g-AE -EF-1%
HK$ HKS
BT BT

HK$
i

Specified non-current
assets

EerigaE

805,247 914,668 144,411,235

175,157,108

- 33473868 23544 18927161 145,240,026 228472805

(d) Information about major customers
Revenue from major customers, each of whom
amounted to 10% or more of the Group's total

revenue, is set out as below:

(d FEXEEFHNESR

KETEXFHNBA(BREPLHALHE
BN 10% A ) EFIanT

Customer A’ ZEA
Customer B’ ZEB
Customer C' BFEC

1 Revenue from the mining of dolomite and manufacture of
magnesium ingots segment

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more
of the Group'’s total revenue
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR R AR MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETTFI(E)

Cost:

At 1 January 2015
Additions

Write off

Bxchange adjustments

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2016
Addtions

Write off

Bxchange adjustments

At 31 December 2016

Accumulated depreciation,

amortisation and impairment:

A1 January 2015
Charge for the year
Write off

Bxchange adjustments

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2016
Charge for the year
Write off

Impairment

Bxchange adjustments

At 31 December 2016

Carrying amount:

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

RZE-RF+=A=1-A
RZE-7E-A-H

e

fiitE

ERSBE
RZE-7"FT=A=1-A
258 - BERAE
R-E-1%-F-A
ERRE

i

EjiEZ
RZZ-RF+-F=1-H
RZ5-7F-A-8
ERRE

iz

e

ERRE
RZE-AE+ZA=1-H
HEE:

K57 $+ZA=1-A

RIS-RETZA=1-H

Buildings

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and
machinery

KRR
L
HKS

BT

Motor
vehicles

13

Furniture
and
fittings

BHR
KE
HKS
B

Office
equipment

Computer
equipment

BHRE
HKS
BT

Retorts

Sub-total

Interests

in leasehold

land held
for own
use under
operating
leases
REgE
HERE
AREE
1R
HKS

B

176867554 381194663 2213250 11,059,513 140875 118322 7329116 644885323 13050151 657935474
- - - 85,650 - - - 85,650 - 85,650

- BN - - - - - (599991 - BRI
(32,983249)  (70123313) (207839 (1970702 237 - (094583 (115233309 (3779486  (119,012.799)
143884305 30507369 2005411 9,174,461 138,504 118322 63340311 523737683 9270665 533,008,348
143884305 30507369 2005411 9,174,461 138,504 118322 63340311 523737683 9270665 533,008,348
9227890 - - - - 4,835 - 92475 - ST
ma712)  (5,284,239) (267.347) (164,184) - - - (171328%) - (17,1328%)
(5,892,958) (11,605,824 (57,209) (311,063 (53927) (1,936) (634134 (18607043 (1761397  (20368,440)
135,802,114 288,181,307 1680859 8699214 84577 163221 62661177 497212469 7509268 504781737
106949904 243070444 1333613 6455060 62903 100258 47,950,106 405,122,288 7541880 412,664,168
3288400 10956781 26,775 926,714 4884 10287 2468747 17,862,588 3675 17866263

- (1098 - - - - - (109431 - (1m0
(20122528)  (46,689,161) (191563 (1303153 (237 - (79875 (76068651 (1448321)  (77516972)
89115776 206,288,633 1308825 6218621 65416 10545 42,658,978 35866794 6097234 351,964,028
89115776 206,288,633 1308825 628621 05416 10545 42,658,978 345866794 6097234 351,964,028
3303744 9768912 98,024 1092813 4884 12671 2305719 16,606,827 1308 16608135
(15827 329,142 (1216%) (45232 - - - (00189 - (B0018%)
3029403 5323628 - - - - 87579 9210610 1259% 9,336,606
(3693291 (8,248,789 (59.212) (339,546) (10,119) (326) (588479 (12939758 (1269,697)  (14,209.455)
91139805 209,913,242 1265944 6,986,6% 60,185 122890 45203857 3p4742579 4954841 359697420
44,662,309 78,268,065 414915 1,712,558 2439 0331 1740730 1425980 2554427 145,084,317
4768529 98782736 656,586 2895840 73088 T 0686333 177870889 3173431 181,044,320
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LEITSE)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% BERRZRE#E)

(continued)
(@)  The carrying amount of properties of the Group is as (@ AEEYENEEENT :
follows:

REFBRINEEHE

Interests in leasehold land held for

own use under operating BIEAAR

leases outside Hong Kong THE iR

— long term — K8 2,554,427 3,173,431

(b) Included in the Group's property, plant and b)) ATEERZZE—R"F+_A=1+—HHY

equipment as at 31 December 2016 are buildings, ¥ BELKZBOBUNERAD RH
plant and machinery, motor vehicles, retorts and CYMSBA&E & BT - MifE Kias - A= -
interests in leasehold land held for own use under BEREMBCEHEREERANEEL
operating leases, with carrying amounts of iR - BREE D 55 44,638,766 L (=

162

HK$44,638,766 (2015: HK$52,675,114),
HK$78,268,065 (2015: HK$96,035,253), HK$NIl (2015:
HK$NIl), HK$17,407,320 (2015: HK$20,686,333) and
HK$2,554,427 (2015: HK$3,173,431), respectively
located in Malaysia and operated by CVMSB. The
operation of the production plant of CYMSB was
suspended since 2012. During the year, the
directors of the Company conducted their own
assessment review on the recoverable amount of
cash-generating units ("CGU") for mining of dolomite
and manufacture of magnesium ingots based on the
fair value less cost of disposal and determined that
an impairment loss of HK$9,336,606 (2015: HK$NIil)
was recognised and included in other operating
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & Hfi&£ZRBERA R

T — A F 526751148 7T ) ~ 78,268,065

%ﬁ(:==—£¢ : 96,035,253 )« &
B (ZE—HF : T L) ~ 17,407,320
/%75(_7 T 120,686,333 T ) &

2,554,427 L (ZZF — R F : 3,173,4317%
JL) cCVMSBMAEMEBA T —Z_Fi8
FERiE - FN - ARRIBEERAFER
HERAEFARAZAREESENES
EXBEMA([ReELEM]) MBS
HETHHEN TETER mﬁﬁéﬁa
9,336,606 BT (ZZE—RHF : T&L)
FFAGRAEERPHMEEHAT -



13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

(o)

(continued)

In respect of the cash-generating unit (“CGU") for
mining of dolomite and manufacture of magnesium
ingots, the Group appointed an independent valuer,
Raine & Horne International Zaki + Partners Sdn.
Bhd. to perform valuations to assess the
recoverable amount of this CGU basis on the fair
value less costs of disposal by using the comparable
recent transactions in similar extractive assets as at
the end of the reporting period.

The significant portion of buildings, retorts and
interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases of the Group with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$Nil (2015: HK$76,695,579)
are pledged to a bank for banking facilities granted
to the Group (see Note 25).

Property, plant and equipment held under finance
leases

The Group leases motor vehicles and furniture and
fittings under finance leases expiring in 1 year. None
of the leases includes contingent rentals. As at 31
December 2016, the carrying amount of motor
vehicles and furniture and fittings held under
finance leases of the Group was HK$246,848 (2015:
HK$588,615).

At the end of the reporting period, the property
ownership certificates in respect of the property
interests held in the PRC have not been issued by
the relevant PRC government authorities. The
carrying amount of the properties was HK$Nil (2015:
HK$1,644,109) as at 31 December 2016.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 511E)

13 ¥ - - BERRZE®)

(b)

(%)
RARAZEREESFENRSELEEN
((REELBENDNE ARERT—%
%8 <7 14 {8 Bl Raine & Horne International
Zaki + Partners Sdn. Bhd. #1775 B A
SEIRE BN AEURARIEE EL M)
FLER SR AFER SR AT T
HZEReEEEMNAKEEE -

BT ERERAKEERELCEHERE
ERMNHET HEREEASETE (=
T—RF 1 76,695579870) B AR T AL
RIIRITREE R FIR1T (RFIsE25) -

REBEHERENYE - BEM&RE

AEEREBREBERE THUARERME
HE FHA1F - HEAEEERRA
T RE—REFE+_A=F+—H &%
ERERERESENTEREMRE
ERREEA246,848B (T —HEF :
588,615/ 7C) °

RBEHR - BT EBUTHE S RIEH
R B EREOMERGERE - 1

TE—RFt+ZRA=1+—H ZEVEH
EEEAZTBIL(ZT—RF 1 1,644,109
/ETE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MV-F

B IR AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T Z1E)

14

164

GOODWILL

Cost:

At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015,
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016

Accumulated impairment losses:

At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015,
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016

Carrying amount:

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

14 BFE

RS

HK$
BT

R-ZE—HF—H—A8"
—hRE+A=+—08 -
—E-AF-A-RE

—E-RXFE+-_A=+—H

RETAEER

252,803,090

RZE—HF—H—A8-
“E-EE+-A=+-A -
_f_/\i A—B X

—E-RF+=-ZA=+—H

(@) The goodwill was originally arose partly due to the (a)

acquisition of Victory Dragon Holdings Limited and
its subsidiary, Long Chuan (“Victory Dragon Group”)
during the year ended 31 December 2012. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the
goodwill represented the future economic benefits
together with the current establishment of the
operation arising from the potential growth in the
mineral water business acquired. It has been fully
impaired in the year 2013.

A valuation report, prepared by GC Appraisals,
showed that the fair value of exploration and
evaluation assets of the acquired subsidiary at the
date of acquisition, determined based on the
income-based method, was HK$161,763,000.
Accordingly, the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of the Victory Dragon Group was
calculated to be HK$111,180,501.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & Hfi&£ZRBERA R

252,803,090

BE_Z——HF+-_A=+—HIHFE"
RMELREBOBREBIESEES
RAFRREMBARE(SEEE )R
B ARREERA AEECERBER
IRER TG ) B A I8 IR P EE A ) R RSB A 28
RIRBEBEE  UER T —=FFH
A

GC Appraisals TR &M EBERERET - AT
W BB A R B R KL E E E R KEE B
DN ERWASEETE 5 161,763,000 7T °
Eit WS EEBMAMEEANTES
111,180,501 /87T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 GOODWILL (continued)

(b)

Impairment test for cash-generating unit
containing goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, goodwill is
allocated to the Group’s CGU identified according to
country of operation and operating segment as
follows:

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

14 BHE@)
(b) EEBEZRSELBNZRENR

RBEHR - ARERZEEERELE
DEbR cREEL BN O AENT ¢

Extraction and bottling of mineral water 328 & 3 i #& 57 7K = -

The recoverable amount of the CGU of extraction
and bottling of mineral water is determined based
on value in use calculation. The calculation use pre-
tax cash flow projection based on financial budgets
approved by management of the Company covering
an eleven-year period, which represents
approximately the remaining license period of the
mining right to mine and extract mineral water. The
CGU'’s cash flows beyond the three-year period are
extrapolated using a steady average growth rate of
5.7% (2015: 5.7%), until reaching the maximum
capacity of 15,000 bottles per hour. This growth rate
is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projection is 18.11% (2015:
35.89%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
segment.

The revenue generated from this CGU subsequent
to acquisition did not meet the previous
expectations because of limited cash resources to
develop a new production line for manufacturing
sparkling water, and making reference to the
valuation performed by GC Appraisals as at 31
December 2013, an impairment loss of
HK$111,180,501 on its CGU containing goodwill had
been recognised for the year ended 31 December
2013.

M RERERKRSEL BN RE
CENRERBEENE - ZtEHERA
KRREBERES R T —FE (DA
FRIREUE R KR IR T 5T Al
WED MM BRBE U EHAIR S RE -
—FHRReELABEVNBESRENIE
57%(—ZE—FRF :57%) MEEFHER
REEHRABET/E15000 5 I H#
E o W RRIRBABITEERTERNE
o BWEBHEEITENTIRBER
Ko RPRETAAEAZRIEEE18.11%
ZEZ— A :35.89%) o FRANZBLER R &
KINBRFIE - B RAREDIBHEERE

PSR - RE B SEEBMHTAL
RIER|ERITERR - AR — RS
BRKNFEESNRSERER - L
2E M\ GC Appraisals R —Z—=F+— A
T+ —RETHEE BeELBEMRIE
B AR EE 18 111,180,501 BT E R EE
TR+ - A=+ —HILFE®EA-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T Z1E)

15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 15 BERRFEEE

Mining of

dolomite and Exploration Extraction

manufacture for iron and bottling

of magnesium  ore, coal and of mineral

ingots manganese water

RHERER BREER - REK

REERE & ERBRK

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Cost: B

At 1 January 2015 R-_Z-RF—-A—H 4,125,190 280,166,490 157,620,089 441,911,769
Exchange adjustments R - 140,878 (4,596,484) (4,455,606)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-AF+ZA=1T—H 4,125,190 280,307,368 153,023,605 437,456,163
At 1 January 2016 RZZE— F—-H—H 4,125,190 280,307,368 153,023,605 437,456,163
Exchange adjustments i3 ,‘#s S - (202,286) (7,326,549) (7,528,835)
At 31 December 2016 RZB—RETZA=+—H 4,125,190 280,105,082 145,697,056 429,927,328

Accumulated amortisation and i EHEREE

impairment:

At 1 January 2015 R-E-h%&—f-H 4,125,190 257,674,090 138,452,089 400,251,369
Impairment loss AR - 3,736,391 - 3,736,391
Exchange adjustments B LR - 106,629 (4,037,511) (3,930,882)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-REF-A=1—H 4,125,190 261,517,110 134,414,578 400,056,878
At 1 January 2016 R-E—~E—F—H 4,125,190 261,517,110 134,414,578 400,056,878
Impairment loss REBE - 18,648,122 17,718,053 36,366,175
Exchange adjustments BEHAE - (60,150) (6,435,575) (6,495,725)
At 31 December 2016 N e 4,125,190 280,105,082 145,697,056 429,927,328
Carrying amount; BREE

At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"E+ZA=1—H - - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZE-R§+-A=1—H - 18,790,258 18,609,027 37,399,285
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15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

@)

CVMSB has undertaken various feasibility studies in
relation to the mining and extraction of dolomite in
Peninsula Malaysia since 2004. On 15 June 2006,
CVMSB entered into an agreement (the "Mining
Agreement”) with Majuperak Energy Resources Sdn.
Bhd. ("MERSB") (formerly known as Harta Perak
Corporation Sdn. Bhd.), a subsidiary of the Perak
State Development Corporation (“PSDC”), a
shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to the Mining
Agreement, CYMSB has been granted, at no initial
cost, an exclusive right to mine and extract
magnesium dolomite from the Dolomite Land for a
period of 20 years, with an option to renew for a
further period of 10 years. The Mining Agreement
can be terminated early by the Group by giving one
month'’s written notice to MERSB. CVMSB is required
to pay royalties to MERSB based on the volume of
dolomite extracted, subject to a monthly minimum
payment (see Note 31(b)). Due to suspension of its
production plant since 2012, CYMSB did not extract
any dolomite from the Dolomite Land during the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Mining activities for this dolomite project had started
in 2010 and the amortisation charge relating to the
project for the year is included in “administrative
expenses” (2015: “administrative expenses”) in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss of the
Group.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 511E)

15 BRKFEEE#)

@)

CVMSBEH —ZT TN FREEHF RAL Y
ERARRINAZEETSEAITIER
FeoRZTERFANATHHBE ' CYMSBE
AN B AR R AR R N AT 7 B R 8 (Perak
State Development Corporation) ([PSDCJ)
& FT /& 2 7] Majuperak Energy Resources
Sdn. Bhd. (TMERSBJ) ( A #&Harta Perak
Corporation Sdn. Bhd.) 5T 37 1 % ([ £R & %
&) o RIBRERZ - CYMSBEHAEM
AR AR B R TERN A EA TR
RiIEMBEHEANEEE - KH20%F -
A& 12 55 H1104F o 7N % B 7] (A MERSB %
H—EAEEBNRETRIERERE -
CVMSBEREFTIERAZAEMEEIRE A
H AR AT FR A MERSB 2 13 S 7 # & ( BBt 5E
W)  BEZZE—RNFR-ZZ—FF
TZA=+T—RHIEFE  HRCVMSBHA
ERFE_T_FRYEEE HHEL
ENOEATHAREMAEA -

AHELHEBNFRREBHER T —FF
Fth - MBMAFEERNEHEERIIA
AEEGABEZRNITRAX] (=ZF
—RE: [TTRAXDA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘l-ﬁ A & Zl-i%#ﬁﬂj—éﬁfj-?

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51/1E)

15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

168

(o)

PT. Commerce Venture Iron Ore (“PTCV Iron”) and
PT. Commerce Venture Coal (“PTCV Coal”), both are
indirectly held subsidiaries of the Company, have
exploration mining permits in relation to the mining
and extraction of coal, iron ore and manganese in
Indonesia. Both PTCV Iron and PTVC Coal were
disposed to an independent third party on 3 April
2014 (the "Disposal”).

PTCV Coal holds exploration mining permits for (i)
coal exploration in an area of 10,000 hectares in
Beutong and Tadu Raya Subdistrict, Nagan Raya
Regency, Nanggroe Aceh Darussalam Province of
Indonesia, valid until 7 October 2013 (“Permit 1),
and (ii) manganese exploration in an area of 3,710
hectares in Bakongan Subdistrict, South Aceh
Regency, Nanggroe Aceh Darussalam Province of
Indonesia, valid until 28 January 2014 (“Permit 2").

PTCV Iron holds exploration mining permits for (i)
coal exploration in an area of 9,825 hectares in
Kuala and Tadu Raya Subdistrict, Nagan Raya
Regency, Nanggroe Aceh Darussalam Province of
Indonesia, valid until 5 March 2014 (“Permit 3"); and
(i) iron ore exploration in an area of 450 hectares in
Pananggalan Subdistrict, Subulussalam City,
Nanggroe Aceh Darussalam Province of Indonesia,
valid until 14 December 2012 (“Permit 4”). On 5
September 2013, the relevant local authorities
informed the Group that the Permit 4 could not be
extended or renewed due to environmental issues
surrounding the relevant exploration activities
location and the authorities will reconsider the
renewal application if the situation has improved.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiEX£ZERERAR

15 BHRKRFLEE®)

(b)

QXA M W B A & PT. Commerce
Venture Iron Ore ([PTCV Iron]) E2PT.
Commerce Venture Coal ([PTCV Coal]) #
BENEHRFERIBIERK - #IEA RG22
R FEREF A] &% ° PTCV Iron & PTCV Coal
HER-ZZE—NFNA=ZAHET —ZB
SNE=ZF(HE]D -

PTCV Coal #%5 A &) &) & G £R & 7 &8 7] () 7
EfJ JE Nanggroe Aceh Darussalam % Nagan
Rayal@ #JBeutong & Tadu Raya® [&
10,000 AEEEREEHE KR - BUEE
ZE-=F+AEBE(1REFAIED - &)
% El JENanggroe Aceh Darussalam%
South Aceh [& #)Bakongan % [& 3,710 A LR
EENFESER  ARAE T —NF—
A=+ N\B(25RFaIFE]) °

PTCV Iron 5% ) #h ¥R BB AT &8 7] () B ED
JE Nanggroe Aceh Darussalam# Nagan
Raya & Ay Kuala & Tadu Raya % [ 9,825 A
EEEN FH KR ﬁiﬂzﬁ‘ﬂé:%@—m
FZARRA(IRFAED - R(HREE
Nanggroe Aceh Darussalam®

Subulussalam 7 Pananggalan % & 450 A
EEHEREHBODE  BRHE_F

—ZFE+ZA+TEBA(AFEFTED - B
“E-=FNARH - HETRTHE
BAAEEASRFA ERBEYREEM
B EEHRE R AR NEALER - A
BN #EENEREMNERENEBE
BEBE -



15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

(o)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Permit 1, 2 and 4 had expired and Group did not
submit applications to the relevant local authorities
for extension of these permits in view of that the
Group is intention to dispose of all its equity
interests in PTCV Coal and PTCV Iron.

There were not any impacts of the above
subsidiaries thereafter since they were all disposed
since 3 April 2014.

PTLM holds a production operation mining permit
for manganese (“Mining Permit”) in an area of 195
hectares in the Jatimulyo Village, Girimulyo
Subdistrict, Kulon Progo Regency, Daerah Istimewa
Yogyakarta Province, Indonesia (“Mining area”). The
Mining Permit is used for mining activities including
construction, mining, processing and refining or
smelting as well as hauling and sales of manganese
in the Mining area. The Mining Permit is valid for a
period of 10 years from 24 February 2011 and is
capable of being extended for two further terms of
10 years each at the maximum. PTLM has
undertaken various feasibility studies in relation to
the mining of and exploration for manganese in the
Mining area.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 511E)

15 BRKFEEE#)

(b)

(%)

REBEEZZT—=F+-_A=+—HLHF
B 15 2SR AT RIS B IEm 0 B
R & E # & E R PTCV Coal & PTCV
Iron & & JF A% 4 - Kﬁgmxmm@mﬁ

TR R 3 Rz B AT I B
%%ﬁ(ﬂj’%& ?BZ%/H\ élﬂ{fﬂﬁ/ﬁrﬂ o

PTLM#F B i £ E A8 & R ER T 1] 78 ([ R
FFAIRE D) WM EFE195AE - U RHE
Daerah Istimewa Yogyakarta#& Kulon
Progo & Girimulyo 7 [& Jatimulyo £ ([ #&
@ ]) o FERAFAIEDAERELRS 215
BE - FIE - BEMERSKSRIA K ERH
MIFERENE - ARFAIEEH A
T——FZAZ+MHAR10F » &=ZA]
BESHR R §X10F - PIIMEETTH
BT [R R R RGBS E R A TR ©
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e R R AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51/1E)

15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

(continued)
()  (continued)

No exploration activities were conducted in the
mine as the Group lost contact with the legal
representatives of PTLM in 2012. This brought to a
halt to the daily operations and mining activities of
PTLM and might impact the fulfillment of the
obligations of PTLM in respect of its Mining Permit
and any other government regulations it would be
subject to (see Note 17). During the year ended 31
December 2014, re-nominating the legal
representatives according to the relevant legal
requirements of Indonesia was being undertaken.
On 21 August 2014 and 13 October 2014
respectively, PTLM received warning letters from
Trade and Energy Industries of Resource of Minerals
Office Government of Kulon Progo Regency
reminding PTLM to immediate implement its
obligations as the holder of Mining Permit by
submitting the tax form and reporting of PTLM’s
status to the relevant Indonesian authority with the
legal representatives’ signatures, not later than one
month from the date of these letters. On 22
September 2014 and 4 November 2014 respectively,
the management of the Company reiterated that it
is currently undergoing management restructuring
and therefore all activities are currently being
suspended temporarily until the management
restructuring is completed. Besides, once the
management restructuring has been completed,
PTLM will resume with investment and other mining
activities. Due to previous failure in calling for
extraordinary meetings for appointing new directors
and legal representatives to the board of PTLM,
PTLM had applied to the Court in Yogyakarta for a
court ruling on the appointment of re-nominated
directors and replacement of legal representatives.
Nevertheless, the third hearing was further
postponed by the court to 30 September 2014. On
19 November 2014, court judgement stipulated that
the holding company of PTLM could organize an
Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders to
undergo the re-nomination of the legal
representative ("EGM”). The EGM and the re-
nomination of the legal representatives according to
the relevant legal requirement of Indonesia are still
in process as at the approval date of the
consolidated financial statements.
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15 BHRKRFLEE®)

©

(%)

R-ZZE——F  ARAKEEPTLMENE
BRRREBLE - WU ENE L ETHERT
EB) c SPTIMAM B 218 RIREE B
ANEFAREE - WAl REFEPTIMEITE 4
HRARFUZREMEMBARIOET
(A1) - BE2=-Z—WF+=A
=+—HILFE  BRBDEHEBEERS
EEFRBZEZERR -PIIMA BN ZE
—MFENAZ+—BE=_ZE—NF+A
+=H# ¥ Trade and Energy Industries of
Resource of Minerals Office Government of
Kulon Progo [& 2 H 89 % & (& - 32 7R PTLM
TMEER LSRG ELE B e —EAR
BRNEE RRZMABEEERKRZIANM
ERERELER  BEBETEEARIR
BB EANEEL - ARREEED R
RZE—MFAAF+ AR —NF
+—AMBESR BEETEESEA -
LB EESREEREL  BEEEEEH
T AL N BEREHE BTN
PILMEE IR 1E 1% & R KM TE)E &) - &
RERAREMRPIIMEESLZEHEER
FERRRBHARBIARE  MPTIME Rt £
FZEEEFIRBEFTRBMEEREM
M Yogyakartadd /A Bt BB sE A BT R o A
M EZREEE-RAEESE—FEHRSE
—E-NMFAA=FTH -R=-ZZE—NF
+—A+NA - ERHRETHEPTIMAYE
AT RITIRERASR RS ([BREREFRIK
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15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

©

(continued)

No exploration and evaluation costs were
capitalised and no income was derived from the
mining of manganese during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

At 31 December 2016, the Group determined the
recoverable amount of CGU for PTLM based on
value in use calculation. The calculation uses cash
flow projection based on financial budgets and
production forecast as prepared by management of
the Company covering a sixteen-year period, which
represents approximately the remaining license
period of the mining right as well as hauling and
sales of manganese in the Mining area. The cash
flows are in zero growth rate. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projection is 23.60% (2015:
25.90%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
segment. Taking into consideration the uncertainties
mentioned in Note 17 and making reference to the
valuation performed by GC Appraisals as at 31
December 2016, the Company’s directors
determined that an impairment loss of
HK$18,648,122 (2015: HK$3,736,391) has been
recognised and included in other operating
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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15 BRKFEEE#)

©

(%)
HEZZ—XEFR-FE—RF+=A
=+—HLFE  ERTETAHEFERT
P A4 8 Al I B AR AR MR o

RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H8 x&EIEZ
FABEAFENEARPIIMEEREESE
B2 RESEE - ZatEHERALRR
AIBEREEREY R ANFHHAHEE
LA R i ) N S TR R A 88 T Er ) %
WE MM BRBEREERANR SRS
A - BERENETEREHRE - R
MERAEAZAE R E2860%(ZF
—ﬁﬁﬁZS%%)i%%Zﬂﬂ??ﬁ%H
BRiiiE - BERELBES EHHAERER - A
Qﬂ%%ﬁ%%%WﬁW¢WLWT%%
A Z - W% GC Appraisals A ZZ — X
TZA=ZT—HETHNHER  BEEHE
RIBERIE 18,648,122 L (— T —F4F ¢
37363918 7L) Wit A\ELZEZZ—RF
TZAZT-RALEFENGEERRTHE
ML .
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51/1E)

15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

172

(d)

Long Chuan holds a mineral water permit (5& & 7K E
JKEFA] ) to extract maximum volume of water up
to 33,000 meter cube per annum in relation to the
Longchuan Spring (the "Water Permit”) from 1
March 2007 to 26 February 2015. The application for
renewal of the Water Permit was submitted in
December 2014 and has been renewed on 1 March
2015. Long Chuan had also been granted in prior
years a mineral water extraction permit (& 5= 7K £
& &F 7] ) with a right to extract mineral water in
the stipulated mining area for a period from 23
December 2011 to 23 December 2021. Nonetheless,
the statutory required mineral water registration
certificate (B&R/KFEMEE2E) ("Water Registration
Certificate”) had expired on 31 December 2012
already and not yet been renewed up to the
approval date of the consolidated financia
statements. The main reason was due to the change
in approval procedures of the State Land Resources
Bureau in Guangzhou since August 2012 whereas
the approval power has been delegated to County
Land Resources Bureau in Guangzhou who has no
relevant experience of how to approve such
licenses or registration certificates. This had caused
a substantial delay in the renewal of the Water
Registration Certificate. Long Chuan had submitted
a renewal application of the Water Registration
Certificate in December 2014 and had passed
through to the intermediate stage of the renewal
process because Long Chuan had received from
County Land Resources Bureau in Guangzhou an
acknowledgement of receipt in writing on 17
December 2014 and a progress confirmation on 15
March 2016 of its renewal application being in
process

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiEX£ZERERAR
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15 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(continued)

(d)

(continued)

The Longchuan Spring is situated at Damiao Village
Longmu Town Longchuan County Heyuan City (il J&
Taell| S Be S K BEAY), the PRC, with an aggregate
mining area of approximately 0.3956 km?2. It is well
connected with the source of the East River
(Dongjiang) which supplies fresh water to Hong
Kong and parts of Guangdong Province. The
Longchuan Spring is protected by a protection zone
of 30 km in radius with no significant industrial
pollution source within a radius of up to 50 km.
Longchuan Spring contains six of the eight
prescribed minerals in sufficient quantity to quality,
including free carbon dioxide.

According to the technical report prepared by E=
A 4 H i T2 7 58 2 7] (unofficially translated as
Guangdong Province Geological Engineering
Consulting Firm) in July 2003, the Longchuan Spring
provides about 270,000 tons of minerals water
annually and the water contains significant amounts
of minerals including potassium, sodium, calcium,
magnesium, lithium, strontium and zinc.

Taking into consideration the performance of the
mine as disclosed in Note 14, sustained operating
losses and unable to generate positive cash flow
from the date of acquisition in April 2012 to 31
December 2016, the business operated by Long
Chuan is not commercially viable, as a result, the
mineral water extraction permit had not been
reclassified to an intangible asset.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15 BRKFEEE#)
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(%)

B ISR AR BURDR T 82) || §% 52 & S5 K B3
o BFRAEELA0395%6F AL -
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TEFLR - EIRENERERERDT D
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HEFEK-

BEEREHERMIREARNRRR S
T-F+ARBMREMNRE - EIIREF
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SRy BFEH K55 88K
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51/1E)

15

16

174

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

(continued)

(d)  (continued)
At 31 December 2016, the Group determined the
recoverable amount of CGU for extraction and
bottling of mineral water based on value in use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow
projection based on financial budgets and
production forecast as prepared by management
covering a five-year period, which represents
approximately the remaining license period of the
mining right to mine and extract mineral water. The
CGU'’s cash flows beyond the three-year period are
extrapolated using a steady average growth rate of
5.7% (2015: 5.7%), until reaching the maximum
capacity of 15,000 bottles per hour. This growth rate
is based on the relevant industry growth forecast
and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. The discount applied
to the cash flows projection is 18.11% (2015:
35.89%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
segment. Taking into consideration the performance
of the mine as disclosed in Note 14, and making
reference to the valuation performed by GC
Appraisals as at 31 December 2016, the Company’s
directors determined that an impairment loss of
HK$17,718,053 (2015: HKS$Nil) has been recognised
and included in other operating expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

MINING DEPOSIT

This amount represents a deposit of RM90,000 (equivalent
to HK$155,709) at 31 December 2016 (2015: RM90,000
(equivalent to HK$162,367)) paid to MERSB pursuant to the
Mining Agreement (see Note 15(a)) by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR R AR MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETTFI(E)

17 SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as

follows:

Name of company

AR

CVMSB

CVM Marketing Limited

CVM International Marketing
Sdn. Bhd.

CVM Marketing Sdn. Bhd.

Step Pacific Development
Limited

Stabil Megamas Sdn. Bhd.

PTLM

Nice Tone Enterprises Limited

Victory Dragon Holdings
Limited
EEEBRAT

Long Chuan
g

Place of

incorporation
and operation

EMALR
£33k

Malaysia
HRAD

BVI
RBEZES

Malaysia
Y il
Malaysia

SREE

BVI
RERARS

Malaysia
HRAD

Indonesia
£fe

BVI
RERLES

Hong Kong

BB

The PRC
i

Issued and
paid up
capital
EBTR
BERA

RM36,000,000
36,000,000 5

US$10,000
10,000% T

RM2
25H
RM100,000

100,000 5

US$10,000
10,0005 7T

RM10,000
10,0005 %

RPH10,000,000,000
10,000,000,000 /e &

US$10,000
10,0007

HK$6,000,000
6,000,0007% 7

US$1,400,000
1,400,000 T

17 HEAEA
RZE—RF+A=+—8 WBAAFBEN
T

Percentage of
effective ownership
interest
AT EM
EEAM

Direct
B

100%

60%

51%

100%

Indirect
M

100%

100%

51%

50.50%

51%

51%

ANNUAL REPORT %%k 2016

Principal activities

TEEH

Mining of dolomite and
manufacturing of
magnesium ingots

RADEAREESSE

Investment holding
REER

Trading in magnesium
ingots
330

Dormant
gEEX

Investment holding
REZER

Investment holding
BERR

Exploration for manganese

Investment holding
BERR

Investment holding
REER

Extraction and bottling of
mineral water

RERRERBESK

175



NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LEITSE)

17 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 MEBAR#E)
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation paidup effective ownership
Name of company and operation capital interest Principal activities
T K ERTR AT E
ARER SR HBRERA BEAM TEER
Direct Indirect
H# &
Chinese Loong Culture Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Dormant ]
Development Group Limited &8 1% Tmay

PEENICEREEARAA

Golden Elegant Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Dormant ]

TRAERAT Bk 18T TEER

Asia Pacific (China) BVI USDS1 100% - Dormant ®
Investments Limited KBREAHE 1% TEex

EA(PE)REEKEARAT

Charterland Capital Holdings BVI USDS1 100% - Dormant ®
Limited RERRES 1% Eme%

BEEERERAR,

League International BVI USD$1 100% - Dormant ®
Enterprises Investments EBELHE 1% TmEs
Limited

9P (=] Ip‘& a%ﬁ

Great Success Asset BVI USD$1 100% - Dormant ®
Management Limited EBETRS 3 TmeE

AKEEEEERAT

Great Success Enterprises Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant ®
Management Limited i 17T Emes

AKCEEEERAT

Great Success (China) Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant @®
Strategy Limited BA 18T Eme%

AR (1B REE AR
Great China Financial Holdings  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant ®

Group Limited BE 18T EmEx
RECRIEREEERAR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETTFI(E)

17 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 HEBAR#E)
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation paidup effective ownership
Name of company and operation capital interest Principal activities
B & ERTR AT EM
ARER ES3 R HERA BEAA TEEK
Direct Indirect
Hi# &
Great China Precious Metal Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Dormant ®
Trading Limited & 1T i

REELEBEHERAT

Xin Hua Film Investments Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant ®
Limited 9 18T TE2R
MEYERERRAA

Xin Hua Entertainment Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant ®
(International) Limited 20 18T TEER
MERLE (HR) BRAR

Guo Ye Landmark Company Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant @®
Limited Bk 18T Tmex
AEEHRNERAF

Guo Ye Global Holdings Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Dormant ®
Limited Bk 1B R
AERIERERAA

United Great Enterprises Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Dormant ®
Investments Limited 0 18T Tmex
HEEEREARATA

League International Shares Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant @®
Company Limited Bk 18T Emex
BaBRRHERAR

Premier Capital Asset Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant @®

SHEERRAA B 18T TEeR

Charterland International Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant @®
Trading Limited &% 18T TmeE

SEERESERAR
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B IR AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T Z1E)

17 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

178

Name of company

AF

Issued and
paid up
capital
ERTR
BERE

Place of
incorporation
and operation
T K

2R £k

United Properties (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1
BREX(BA)BR/ B BT
American Land Group United States of -
Holdings, INC. America
("USA)
B ([%E])
Notes

Audited by Baker Tilly Monteiro Heng.

Audited by Achmad, Rasyid Hisbullah & Jerry.

No separate financial statements were prepared as it is not
required to issue audited financial statements under the local
statutory requirements.

Audited by Solarmark (HK) C.P.A. Limited (“Solarmark”).

Consolidated financial statements, including Long Chuan are
audited by Solarmark.

Chinese Loong Culture Development Group Limited and Golden
Elegant Limited were reviewed and audited by Baker Tilly Hong
Kong Limited, respectively.

Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2016 and
reviewed by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited.

No share capital was issued and paid up to the approval date of
the consolidated financial statements.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & Hfi&£ZRBERA R

17 ME2E @)

Percentage of
effective ownership
interest Principal activities
AN AN
BREAL FEEK
Direct Indirect
E M
100% - Dormant ®
TmeE
100% - Dormant ®, 0
Tmag
BisE
(a) #Baker Tilly Monteiro Heng 4% °
(b) #8 Achmad, Rasyid Hisbullah & Jerry 4% -
©  BRBEREEETREBATBSERMBERE - R
EIRSB B RE o
@  #IER(EE) @R BAaRAT (TER])HFEK -
@  EARBERE 2RI SERRE -
6] REEX L EREEERAR LS EBHNERA RS BIE
ABEEGHMERFERATEHRER
© REBE-_ZT—RE+-_A=+—BULFEFMRIILE
KB B QT EBAER AR
() HESARBEBREMERS  WEDBETREGRAE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Victory Dragon Holdings Limited, a 51% owned subsidiary
of the Company, has material non-controlling interests
(“NCI"). The NCI of all other subsidiaries that are not 100%
owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial by
the directors. Summarised financial information in relation
to the NCI of Victory Dragon Holdings Limited, before

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

17 ME2E @)

inter-group eliminations, is presented as below:

RABBEAENBEZOMB AR EEEER
NEIHER EARIEIER RS ([FEIRRAERS ) - WIE
HASE2EHEMNAE LM E QR MIEE
BESWESEAELTEX - FHEIEEEAR
ARHIEERESN E B HEANT K ER
MEZ2700T -

Year ended 31 December:
Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive 10ss
Loss allocated to NCI
Dividends paid to NCI

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

At 31 December:
Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net liabilities

Accumulated NCI

BEE+t-A=1t—HLFE:
WA

FAEE

EHEREE

D EEIFERERER
EANES R EE 5 9]

REEB (BB FERLFR
REEBME/ (BR) R FHE
MEXEBHREFE

Ae MREGEEY
CRiA),/ 18 0% 58

Rt=A=+-8:
FRBEE
REAE
REVE
SRB R

BEFH

EREEET 5

447,104 583,596
(17,969,924)  (11,824,772)
(19,020,045)  (11,960,358)
(8,805,263) (5,794,138)
(10,028,772) 10,190,051
9,867,044 (9,952,483)
(161,728) 237,568

- 33,473,868

2,408,347 2,171,021
(58,334,985)  (53,942,455)
- (5,296,762)
(55,926,638)  (23,594,328)
(27,404,053)  (11,561,221)
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e R R AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T Z1E)

18 INVENTORIES
(@ Inventories in the consolidated statement of

financial position comprise:

18
@)

s

Fi=

=8

FAFBRARTNEERE

F Kk an
BUPK

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in profit or
loss is as follows:

(o)

HERABRAX A AN FESEI TN
™

Carrying amount of inventories sold
(Note 7(d))
Write off of inventories (Note 7(c))

During the year ended 31 December 2016, raw
material and finished goods of HK$Nil (2015:
HK$2,199,487) were written off. This was because
these raw material and finished goods had been
deteriorated tremendously and could not be used
as assessed by the management of the Company.

180  DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED &M= RAERA T

T (M3 7(0)

EEFEREEHE7)

9,245,729 40,283,476
= 2,199,487
9,245,729 42,482,963

HE_ZE—XE+-A=+—RAILEE -
EREEKBEEL(ZT—RHF:
2,199,487 BT ) E WM - W ERZE
ERERKBEBRERL  WEARAE
BREMMEAEAER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES 19

e B HmAR R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

FE U AR K

Trade receivables FEU AR R
Less: provision for impairment OB EEE

All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year.

(@) Ageing analysis
An ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on
the invoice date, net of provision for impairment is
as follows:

211,924 177,489
(63,278) -
148,646 177,489

TBHIFT A YRR — F Rl E -

(@) FRERDAT
RIBER B H YRR (NRRIBERYE)
BRECITINTE -

Current, neither past due nor impaired EDHA - 3 #% B sk 5 (& = 49,428
Less than 1 month past due B R —1E A 492 -
1 month to 2 months past due BH—E A Z=MEA 386 -
More than 2 months but less than 36 HRER 38 W 1 A

12 months past due BALR+=EA 47,930 16,936
Over 12 months past due 460 BB A 1+ — & A 99,838 111,125
Amounts past due pal- i g 148,646 128,061
Total A=t 148,646 177,489
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B IR AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T Z1E)

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19 BEWIERRE)
(@) Ageing analysis (continued) (@) HRERDHT (&)

Trade receivables derived from sales of magnesium REHEFENERESRE B AHEENIR
ingots are due within 14 days (2015: 14 days) from BAHgAMEENERARE14B(Z
the date of the bill of lading for exports sales or date T—AF148)REHT - BRULLASN - K
of invoice for local sales. Other than that the Group EENBRAIMPRPRABEE KD HD
has a policy of allowing customers for domestic BEPREEES  —MUERFFER
trading and distribution in the PRC with credit terms EITRS -

(b)

(0

or normally cash on delivery.

Further details on the Group's credit policy are set FARNEBEEBRNE — S EHNH
out in Note 30(b). FE30(b) ©

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired W R A ERRFEAEEER
related to independent customers that have a good HHBELEH I BYRPAR - BRIEBAL
track record with the Group. Based on past B AARESHEGE HLSEKREEE
experience, the directors of the Company believed HRERE  REAREEERITHEEARY
that no impairment allowance was necessary in g AEBEA&HRDEE AT 28D - K
respect of these balances as there had not been a SE B F AR A EERD -

significant change in credit quality and the balances
were still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The movements in provision for impairment during (b) FRBERBZEZHOT :
the year were as follows:

At 1 January n—A—H = -
Impairment loss recognised BHERBEREE 63,278 -
At 31 December Rt+tZ—A=+—H 63,278 -
At 31 December 2016, none of trade receivables (c) MW-ZE—XR"FE+-_A=+—8 HERK
(2015: HK$NIl) were pledged as security for banking BRR(—Z—RF - TBT)DTEH £
facilities granted to the Group. ARERTAEBEEITHENEKTFS -
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20 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

20 FEARIE - RERHMEWRE

Other receivables Hoth e ok IE 3,415,350 2,062,576
Advance payment to a contractor (Note (a))  [Al— & & B = (M @) 11,621,941 13,767,479
Prepayments for raw materials and [R5 60 TR 3B (M E (b))
machinery (Note (b)) 527,997 625,470
Deposits and prepayments e RIER IR 1,174,889 1,584,961
16,740,177 18,040,486
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE
— other receivables — HHEWRIE (1,300,000) -
— advance payment to a contractor — H—REABEBR
(Note (a)) (B &E (@) (11,621,941) (13,767,479)
— prepayments for raw materials — R R R TB A X
and machinery (Note (b)) (B 5E () (527,997) (625,470)
— deposits and prepayments —&e RIENFIE (78,000) -
3,212,239 3,647,537

Apart from certain of the Group’s deposits and
prepayments of HK$732,536 (2015: HK$438,834), the
remaining prepayments, deposits and other receivables
of the Group are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses within one year.

(@ In prior years, the Group advanced a total of
RM6,717,482 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,621,941) (2015: RM:6,717,482 (equivalent to
approximately HK$13,767,479)) to a contractor for
ratification works in the production plant of
magnesium ingots in Malaysia. This contractor was
put under creditor’s winding up in 2012. The Group’s
management assessed the recoverability of these
advances was remote and had made a full provision
against them as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

(b) In prior years, the Group had made prepayments of
RM305,182 (equivalent to approximately
HK$527,997) (2015: RM305,182 (equivalent to
approximately HK$625,470)) to an entity for

purchase of raw materials and machinery. During
the year, no goods and/or machinery have been
received by the Group from that entity in settlement
of the prepayments made. The Group’s
management assessed the recoverability of these
prepayments was remote after suspension of the
production plant in Malaysia, and thus a full
provision against them has been made as at 31
December 2016 and 2015.

BRASEME TRENIENKRIAT32,536ETT(=
TR ¢ 438,834 /8 70) 51 - MRS E M H R
BNR - RE MEMRYGERR —FRKE

(@ RBAFE AEERERAEAERE
EMENRA TR —ZASmEtaH
6,717,482 M (FHE R 411,621,941 7% 7T)

CE-RF6TNTAREE(HERY
13,767,479 L)) c B EBENR T
—ZEHEREANEE  c AEBEEEENT
WE SRR EN TER-Z
—RNER_TE-RAFtT+-_A=+—HEH
EELE -

() RBAFE RNEBEREE RS KM
—MEE L MIBFRIE305,182 51 (A&
R49527,9977%7T) (—ZE— R4 : 305,182
B (FAE AH625,4708 7)) ° IER
NEE I EEEZ TR ENTZTMTE
NHRENEAERR SeS AEEE
BEEIERERATCHEEREEERK
Ot EBENARENRSEYR  WER=Z
—RNER_TE-RAFtT+-_A=+—HEH
EELE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LEITSE)

21 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21 HitENRERETER

Accrued interest on convertible bonds ARRESERFE 3,321,440 2,979,773
Accrued interest on other borrowings H &R EET B 13,702,293 -
Accrued salaries i E S 3,984,316 3,189,592
Other payables and accrued expenses Hih e B N ERTFRX 33,752,692 31,272,134
54,760,741 37,441,499
All of the above payables are expected to be settled or TEHA il Fr A FE S R TE I R — F A S S RER
recognised as income within one year, or are repayable RN - AR EKEEE -
on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

22 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 22 WMEEEERE
At 31 December 2016, the Group had obligations under RZZB—XRF+-A=+—8 FAEEEEE
finance leases repayable as follows: BEMEAENT -

2016 2015
—E-RE —T-HEF
Present Present
value of the Total  value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHE REHE =ERE REHEE
ARBAE AREE N RE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT

Within 1 year —£R 48,954 49,793 174,814 181,403

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMER - - 51,005 52,171
After 2 years but within 5 years ~ RMEEEBERER = - - -

- - 51,005 52,171
48,954 49,793 225,819 233,574
Less: total future interest B RRM SRR EE
expenses (839) (7,755)
Present value of lease obligations A& &EIRE 48,954 225,819

The policy of the Group is to lease certain of its motor
vehicles and furniture and fittings under finance leases
expiring in 1 year (2015: 2 years and 1 year). As at 31
December 2016, the effective borrowing rates of the
Group was 6.75% p.a. (2015: a range from 1.8% p.a. to
3.68% p.a.). Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates
and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent
rental payments. At the end of each lease term, the Group
has an option to purchase the motor vehicles and
furniture and fittings at nominal prices.

AEBOBREZRERERAERESE T AEMN
FEMREE  FHAIF(ZE—RF: D§
B2ERIF) RZTBE—XRF+=ZA=+—8"
AEBREBRERFNEROTS%(ZE—RHF -
NF1.8%E3.68%) ° FILIZ AL HEBHETE -
it AEBEAZRATEFERRE - FTEHANKER
TERELEET  BEVERIAMENKITLL
B REMEBRR  AEETREREREBRE
BAEARRMREE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LEITSE)

23 AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM/(TO) A DIRECTOR 23 W () —BESREAELNE
AND RELATED PARTIES

Trading account Z 5P (2,443,919) (2,416,399)
Current account WERP - 475,079

(2,443,919) (1,941,320

Classified as: DKEB
Amount due from a related party JEU — R B R
(Note 33(b)) (M &E33(h)) - 475,426
- 475,426
Amount due to a director (Note 33(c)) FE—ZEEE (3 33(0) - (347)
Amounts due to related parties (Note 33(d)) FE{+ g 77 218 (5% 33(d)) (2,443,919) (2,416,399)
(2,443,919) (2,416,746)
Total FEE (2,443,919) (1,941,320)
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have ZREAEERE S EEETENSE-

no fixed terms of repayment.

Further details of amounts due from related parties are FEUL B T FRIBFF I RN T ¢
disclosed as follows:

Maximum
amount
Balance at Balance at outstanding
31 December 1 January during the
Term of loan 2016 2016
R-B—R&F =
+=A=t—-H
BRI Ry &R
HK$
T
HK New Huang Pu Finance Interest-free, unsecured - 475,426 475,426
Holdings Limited and has no fixed terms
("HKNHPF") of repayment
BN EHeRERER %8 EEMAREE
BRAT] EE
(IEEH=EHTR])
Fan Wei Peng is a common director of HKNHPF and of the BREEABEETEHEMEANT ZHRAESE -
Company.
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24 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

@

On 1 September 2011, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with a placing agent, Cheong Lee
Securities Limited for the issue of convertible bonds
with maturity period of eight months to three years
from the date of issue for an aggregate principal
amount of HK$80,000,000. The convertible bonds
bear interest at 10% p.a. payable annually and are
unsecured. As at the end of reporting period, the
outstanding aggregate principal amount of
convertible bonds being available was
HK$10,000,000 (2015: HK$29,000,000).

The bondholders at any time before maturity can
convert the whole or part of the principal amount of
the convertible bonds into ordinary shares of the
Company at the conversion price of HK$0.10 per
share. As a result of the share consolidation in July
2013, the conversion price of outstanding
convertible bonds of the Company was adjusted
from HK$0.10 per share to HK$0.40 per share with
effect on 29 July 2013.

Upon maturity any unredeemed and unconverted
bonds will be redeemed at par value of the
outstanding principal amount in cash.

The convertible bonds may be early redeemed at
par value of the outstanding principal amount of the
bond at any time at the option of the Company up
to maturity provided that the Company has given
not less than 7 business days’ prior notice to the
bondholder(s) of its intention to make that
redemption.

24
@)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 511E)

AR RE S

RZZT——FNA—H ARRHAEER
BENBLFERARVEEHE I
B BT AN £ 4258 80,000,000 7 7T K A #2
BfEsH - ATREHRE TR BRN\EA
E=FREH - JRREFILZFHE10%
A REEWR . NEEGELN - RBE
HA JBERESFHAEERNSRES
10,000,000 7£ ( — & — F 4E : 29,000,000
BIT) °

B ARIA BB AT 6 (T R 4% = R
01078 TTHY 4R BB 1 2 BB R BB 0 AT #R IR B
FOARSEEBRRARANE B - AR
—T-ZFEAETORNDEH - AQF
HARBHROARRESORREHREKR
OI0ETHEEERCIETL R_F

—=FtAZTABEK-

(EAR] R B [ J R BB 4 e (8 7518 10 B HA 1R DA
R RKEEASENHERD -

AMRESAT AR RRE  REEDH
BRIEEAERREFREENSRNE
BEREEED  ARERACKETESKE
ATRPR7EZEEANELBA - RRE
BEHETHER -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T Z1E)

24 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

188

@

(continued)

The original maturity date of the five principal
amounts (out of which 2 principal amounts were
redeemed in the prior years) of remaining
outstanding convertible bonds of HK$Nil (“First
Tranche Bonds"), HK$NIl (“Second Tranche Bonds”),
HKS$Nil (“Third Tranche Bonds”), HK$10,000,000
("Fourth Tranche Bonds”) and HK$NIl (“Fifth Tranche
Bonds") is 1 December 2014, 29 December 2014, 9
January 2015, 4 March 2015 and 22 March 2015
respectively. The above remaining outstanding
aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000 is
collectively referred to as the “Matured Bonds”. As
at 31 December 2016, all the Matured Bonds were
remained in defaulted and immediately due for
repayments. The directors of the Company
represented that (i) the Company is currently in the
course of arm’s length negotiations with the holders
of the Matured bonds in relation to the Proposed
Alteration; (i) as negotiated with the holders of the
Matured Bonds, they have verbally agreed not to
redeem the Matured Bonds until the Proposed
Alteration is confirmed; and (iii) the interest on the
Matured Bonds will continue to be payable by the
Company until the date of full redemption pursuant
to the terms of the Matured Bonds. As at the
approval date of the consolidated financial
statements, the Proposed Alteration of the Matured
Bonds have not been fixed and confirmed yet.

At 31 December 2016, convertible bonds are due for
repayment as follows:

24

AR ES (&)

@)

(&)

A ASBE(EFRUASERBEIFE
BERSAASSHT(E—HEF]D -
TEL(EBES]D BT E=B
&% J) ~ 10,000,000 7T ([ £ U BLEFH )
REAT(ERMES]D B EREBRET
BRESFHIPHES R AT —NF+=
A—A -ZE—Wmf+=ZA=+hA- =
T-AF—ANH  ZZE—RF=AMWNH
F_FBE-—RE=ZA-+=-H - LitEHKE
8 7K £ 4858 10,000,000 75 T 55 78 2 [ I 3
EHl - RZE—XR"E+=-_A=+—8"
FrEZSEMESE/ENAARHBHE
B o ARARIEFRAR - () AR A)IE 5| H
EHFFREARERESCETATER (i)
HEEFFAAERR  HEQERE
RIEZBE LR TER B EES ¢ K (i)
RIEFHES G - AABKREHELD
BHRTEE S MEIESESFE - NEEaH
HEEAEBH - BHESFNEREB Y
KRR RTER ©

RZZE—RE+ZR=+—8  AI#kE
HRAT IR E BEE

Already past due or within 1 year

The interest charged for the year is calculated by
applying an effective interest rate with a range from
17.54% p.a. t0 33.73% p.a. (2015: a range from
17.54% p.a. to 33.73% p.a.) to the liability
component for the number of days to the end of the
reporting period since the bonds were issued.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & Hfi&£ZRBERA R

EEfis—FnR

10,000,000 29,000,000

FEFNBZHDERN TAESD17.54%
E2RB(ZZE—AHF: N F1754% =
3B73%)MEBRFENE - mEFETER
MEBRIEMKREGTE -



24 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

@

(continued)

The directors of the Company estimate the fair
value of the liability component of the Matured
Bonds as at 31 December 2016 to be approximately
HK$10,000,000 (2015: HK$29,000,000). The fair value
is assumed to be its principal amount.

The net proceeds received from the issuance of the
convertible bonds have been split into the liability
and equity components, as follows:

First
Tranche
Bonds

-
&%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmAR R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

24 THRRES (4)

(@ (%)
ARREE[IANR_ZT-—R"F+-A
=t REHEFARSODOAFENS
10,000,000 7t (= — F 4 : 29,000,000
BT R ATFEBRERSEARE -

TR ELRMBFIEFRC O RBE
B RS T

Third
Tranche

Fourth Fifth
Tranche Tranche
Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds
ot 4 E=Ht Mt Eat

it &% &% &%

Second
Tranche

At 1 January 2015 RZE-RF—A—H 26,000,000 17,000,000 10,916,090 10,657,809 17,987,860 82,561,759
Interest charged FETH - - 83,910 342,191 712,140 1,138,241
Interest paid ERFIE - - (1,000,000 (1,000,000) (1,700,000 (3,700,000
Redemptions of convertible bonds & 2] AT 4 ik & % (26,000,000) (5,000,000) (10,000,000 - (10,000,000) (51,000,000)
Liability component as at RZF-AF+ZA=1+—8

31 December 2015 HasHn - 12,000,000 - 10,000,000 7,000,000 29,000,000
At 1January 2016 RZT—~"F—A—H - 12,000,000 - 10,000,000 7,000,000 29,000,000
Redemptions of convertible bonds BB AT #R R & % - (12,000,000) - - (7,000,000 (19,000,000)
Liability component as at RZF—R"F+ZA=+—8

31 December 2016 HaBHm - - - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51/1E)

24 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 24 TBRRES #)

maturity date on the fifth anniversary of the date of
issue (i.e. 17 April 2017) for an aggregate principal
amount of HK$106,840,000 as part consideration for
the acquisition of Victory Dragon Group in 2012. The
convertible bonds bear interest at 5% p.a. payable
annually and are unsecured.

The bondholder of the convertible bonds at any time
before maturity can convert the whole or part of the
principal amount of the convertible bonds in whole
multiples of HK$1,000,000 into ordinary shares of
the Company at a fixed conversion price of
HK$0.126 per share. As a result of the share
consolidation in July 2013, the conversion price of
outstanding convertible bonds of the Company was
adjusted from HK$0.126 per share to HK$0.504 per
share with effect on 29 July 2013.

Upon maturity any unredeemed and unconverted
bonds will be redeemed at par value of the
outstanding principal amount in cash.

The Company may at any time before the original
maturity date early redeem the convertible bonds.

On 15 January 2013, the convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$43,840,000 were converted
into 347,936,507 ordinary shares of the Company at
HK$0.025 each.

Pursuant to an agreement signed for acquisition of
51% of the issued share capital of Victory Dragon
Group, Voice Key Group Limited (“First Vendor”) and
the guarantor, Mr. Chu Yuk Lung (the “Guarantor”)
irrevocably warrants and guarantees to the Group
that the audited consolidated net profit after tax and
any extraordinary and exceptional items (“Audited
Profit”) of Victory Dragon Group will not be less than
RMB30,000,000 (“Guaranteed Profit") for the period
of twelve months commencing from the date of
completion of the acquisition (“Guaranteed Period”).

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiEX£ZERERAR

(b)  In 2012, the Company issued convertible bonds with b RZE—ZF AXRAETEASBEHE

106,840,000/ LR AI 4 (B 5 (RIBI A &
BOAMAAFT (I _Z—+FHA++t
B)) fERR T ——F B EREZ
MORE - ATRREFIZFNKS%ET R
KAEEAR - N BAGEN -

AT R B 2535 A PR I 2R A1 &9 F fr] 5 R
REROI126B T EERRE S
B {D A4 %8 5 1,000,000 7 7T 2 B E 80 7]
BREFEREADNGNHEBR - R=F
—=F L ANBRHEHTRE - RAAME
REHBNATRBEFNRBREE =S —=
FLAZ+NBRAFR0126E THE
270504 TT ©

EAARE @ R AR SR 0 (E 7515 70 B #1172 2A
ReRAREEASENEERE -

AR E AP R 2 ER A A BE 4R A [ AT
EZ o

RZE—=F—A+RHAB £&EA
43,840,000/ L2 AR EHE EE IR A
347,936,507 i G R EE0.025 8 7L 2 A A
AlEm

BERWEY EEED HITRAN51%M
% 5T 2 sk  Voice Key Group Limited ([ 55
—BH ) RERARARELE(ERAD
ATt A A S B A B R - SlBES
E &5 Sepk Ui B HAE AT 12 A BRI ([R&E
) BB S AT REABRRIEEFIER
BHEEZRE MR ([ EEZEF ) BT
DA AR #530,000,000 7T ([REE % F 1) -



24 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(0)

(continued)

If the Guaranteed Profit is not achieved for the
Guaranteed Period, the Group will be entitled to
deduct from the outstanding principal amount of
the convertible bonds on a dollar for dollar basis
which is equivalent to the difference between the
Audited Profit and Guaranteed Profit. If Victory
Dragon Group record a consolidated net loss after
tax and any extraordinary and exceptional items for
the Guarantee Period, the Group will be entitled to
deduct from the outstanding principal amount of
the convertible bonds which is equivalent to an
amount of the summation of the loss and the
Guaranteed Profit provided that the maximum
compensation amount shall not exceed
HK$50,000,000.

The First Vendor (i.e. the bondholder) agrees that
unless and until the delivery of the consolidated
audited financial statements of Victory Dragon
Group for the Guarantee Period showing that the
Guaranteed Profit has been fulfilled, it will not
convert, transfer or dispose of the convertible bonds
such that the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible bonds shall be less than HK$50,000,000
or otherwise cause the outstanding principal
amount of the convertible bonds below
HK$50,000,000.

On 30 August 2013, the directors of the Company
announced the audited financial statements of
Victory Dragon Group for the Guarantee Period
showed a net loss after tax and any extraordinary
and exceptional items of HK$8,228,917. Based on
the exchange rate at that time, the Guaranteed
Profit was HK$38,090,401 (equivalent to
RMB30,000,000), and hence, the actual shortfall
between the audited net loss and the Guaranteed
Profit was HK$46,319,318. As such on 16 October
2013, the convertible bonds in the principal amount
of HK$46,319,318 was cancelled and deducted.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, all the
outstanding principal amount of convertible bonds
in relation to the Victory Dragon Group being
available was redeemed.

24
(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 511E)

AR ES (&)

(%)

PR REHAREEER RGN - AEE
HAERRSERSEEQAJBREZFNR
EEA SR INRASF R T Zom A E R
BN FEERE - MYl EREERRE
MRS IR T AR5 R I SF S IR B 1R AR
BEEFE  AREKEEE TRRIES
MAREEASBEPMRBFNEERRE
HBHEENESR  ERSHESEITGE
i 50,000,000 & 7T, ©

F-EHFBEFBBEANRE  BRIERE
ZYREBEXREBP I GALEXZTTH
WE - BRODEIRERF - TREBT
SR - B E AR E S T EE Al
B (& 5 2 K188 R ¢ 88 2 7 50,000,000
PEIT - BAE A NERE AT R E S 2 K
E38 N 5872 50,000,000 7 7T

RZE—=FNA=+H ARREEE
o SRR BN RE AN CEZTERE
S BE 5 B SRS PR I 5T R AT AT 5 Bk
NIEAC H T8 B 14 5185 58.8,228,917 4 TT ©
RERNEXSE REBNA
38,090,401 78 7t (#8 & 1A A R ¥ 30,000,000
7o) - At - KEZEBFERRE R
2 ERBR = 54631931878 7T » A It
RZE—=FF+A+ "B X8R
%mmm%nZT%hf%E%&%&
kR

il

BE_T-AFT_A=1t—HLFE"
gl B A AR E ST A H R
EERASHECED -
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24 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
(b)  (continued)
The net proceeds received from the issuance of the
convertible bonds have been split into the liability
and equity components, as follows:

24

(b)

ARRESF (8

(&)
ATARBES MG HRFEE D BAE
i RAEEH T -

At 1 January 2015

Interest charged MBZH
Interest paid EENEESS
Redemptions of convertible bonds  §& | Al f& (&%
At 31 December 2015, IS

1 January 2016 and
31 December 2016

o |
="

[y u}lailluﬁ
+ﬁ%+ﬁ
o I

~
e

F ]

i)
ll
|
m

The interest for the year ended 31 December 2015
was calculated by applying an effective interest rate
of 17.58% p.a. to the liability component for the
number of days to the end of the reporting period
since the bonds were issued.

The directors of the Company estimate the fair
value of the liability component of the convertible
bonds as at 31 December 2015 to be approximately
HK$NIl. This fair value has been calculated by
discounting the future cash flows at the market rate.
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R-E—HF—HF—H

Liability Equity

component component

=R ERIH

HKS HKS

BIT BIT
11,716,364 6,920,516 18,636,880
8,107,630 - 8,107,630
(573,780) - (573,780)
(19,250,214)  (6,920,516) (26,170,730)

|
m
el

BE_Z-RF+-A=t+—HILFEHN
BIRBNF A B 17.58% 8 B F 5
B REFBETEERERERIEORE

s
=44
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AABEER[RFAR_ZE—HEE+_A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR R AR MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETTFI(E)

25 BANK LOANS — SECURED 25 FEFRITER
2016 2015
“E-RE “Z-1%
Less: Less:
Nominal  unamortised Nominal unamortised
value costs Total value Costs
B RE N
HE B @zt Af
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
B B B ey
Bank loans, secured BERRTER - - - 260423032 - 260423032
At 31 December 2016, interest bearing bank loans are due RZZE—XF+_A=+—8 "t 28TEFR
for repayment as follows: AT HAM IR (EE -

Already past due or within 1 year Bk —F A

260,423,032

Transaction costs RB KA

cost: A

At 1 January wn—A—H - 8,699,851

Write off iz - (7,791,815)
Exchange adjustments b 5 = (908,036)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H - -
Accumulated amortisation: R -

At 1 January nw—HA—H - 6,879,229
Write off iz - (7,791,815)
Amortisation for the year FNEH = 1,630,597
Exchange adjustments b 5 AR - (718,011)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H - -
Unamortised transaction costs REERZ B - -

ANNUAL REPORT 3% 2016 193



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘l-ﬁ A & jﬁ%#&?—%ﬁfj-?

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51/1E)

25

194

BANK LOANS — SECURED (continued)

The secured bank loans as at 31 December 2015 are
interest bearing at 8.85% p.a.. These bank loans were
restructured on 25 July 2011 by Bank Rakyat. In
accordance with the restructured bank loan agreement,
the Group is required to repay the bank loans by monthly
instalment of RM670,000 (equivalent to HK$1,586,032)
with effect from August 2011 to December 2013 and
increasing to RM4,200,000 (equivalent to HK$9,942,287)
from January 2014 to the second last repayment of the
loans in 2018.

The bank loans are granted to CVMSB and secured by
way of:

(i) alegal charge over the land and factory building to
be erected thereon held by CVMSB;

(i) assignment of trade receivables;

a debenture creating fixed and floating legal charge
over all present and future assets of CYMSB
excluding the performance bonds;

assignment of all CVYMSB's rights, entitlement and
interest in and to all building contracts, design
drawings and other contracts pertaining to the
magnesium ingot project (the “Project”);

(v)  an assignment of all CYMSB's rights, benefits and
interest under insurance undertaken by CVMSB as
part of its operations for the Project;

(vi) an assignment over the existing revenue accounts

maintained at HSBC Amanah Malaysia Berhad and

monies standing to the credit of the revenue
account in favour of the bank, the revenue accounts
shall be operated solely by the bank;

(vii) a first fixed charge/assignment over the retorts of

CVMSB;

(viii) an assignment over the insurance policies of the

retorts of CVMSB; and

(ix) corporate guarantee by Ding He Mining Holding

Limited.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiEX£ZERERAR

25

BEARTER@E)

RZE—RAF+ZA=+—AMNEERRTE
RIZFRERBBWeTE - WFRITERNE
——%F+ A —+FHHMHBank Rakyat#E77E 4
RREBARTESRRZE  AEBER T ——F

NAEZE—Z=ZF+_AEF AL HBHEERTE
670,000 B % (FAE 741,586,032 7T) » W —
T-NFE—AE-_T - N\FHNREF _HEXK

2 A32%4,200,0005 % (8 & 149,942,287 7T) °

#F CYMSB A SRITE ZULE A T 5 SR -
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SOEEME
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B —EIHER) - Z AR R

(iv)
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(vii)
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(viii)

(ix) ARMERZERARARFELARER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 BANK LOANS — SECURED (continued)

All of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group is required to
comply with the covenants when CVMSB's production
operation commences, which was in or around February
2011. Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in Note 30(e).

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
defaulted on the repayments of bank loans since
November 2013 and breached one of the covenants of
the banking facilities. Upon discovery of the breach, the
directors of the Company commenced a negotiation of
the terms of the loans with Bank Rakyat. These
negotiations have concluded on 24 February 2014
whereby Bank Rakyat agreed to extend a one year grace
period without executing legal proceeding against the
Company and CVMSB until 31 December 2014. CVMSB is
required to repay monthly instalment of RMé670,000
(equivalent to HK$1,586,032) for the year ended 31
December 2014.

On 15 December 2014, the Group has accepted the
restructuring proposal discussed and offered by Bank
Rakyat in respect of the outstanding loans owing by
CVMSB (the "Proposal”). Pursuant to the Proposal, the full
and final settlement sum by CVMSB shall be reduced to
RM113,040,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$258,850,469) which is repayable to Bank Rakyat on or
before 30 June 2015, in which (i) an amount of
RM4,020,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,205,404)
must be settled to Bank Rakyat on or before 31 December
2014; (i) a monthly sum of RM200,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$457,980) shall be repayable to Bank
Rakyat on the last day of each calendar month
commencing from January 2015 to June 2015 and the final
instalment of RM2,820,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,457,522) will be paid as bullet payment latest by 30
June 2015; and (iii) a full and final settlement sum of
RM105,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$240,439,661) be repayable by CYMSB to Bank Rakyat
on 30 June 2015.
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BEARTER®)

REBARITRwE (RYEEBRT LB R L
NE R T ESERITER - MAKHEE
R#Z&ER - ARRERKEZCRANEE -
SEERCYMSBE T ——F = AATERAR
EELERTAZETES AEAEEERRY
AR RHE— FRITENMIEEI0E)

REE-_ZT—=F+_A=1+—HIFE K&
EE-ZT—=—F+— ABRKEEERITERR
ERER—HIRITRE T - BRBRENE -
AN B E BRI 1A B Bank RakyathErs B (R -
HEEFER T NE-_A-+MHALR "
Bank Rakyat A Bt R —FERHEEZ —T N
F+ZA=+—HmMTEHARQF KCYMSBIZ
EEEFR -BHE_ZT—WF+=_A=+—HIL
2 - CYMSBZE® A 7 B 1E 5 670,000 f # (48
171,586,032 7C) °

R_ZE—NF+-_A+HA AEBEEES
Bank Rakyat it CVMSB 45 /R ) R (BB E AT 3R
MRHMEARE((ZIRR]D - BREZRESR
CWSBH 2N ERMNERERLZE
113,040,000 55 & (FH 55 7 49 258,850,469 7% 7T )
IR —_ZE—RAF~NA=ZTHHANEET
Bank Rakyat £ 1 (1)4,020,000 5 ¥ (#HZ R 49
9,205,404 7T ) WEAR —E—NE+ - =+—
H sk 2 A {8 & F Bank Rakyat : (B —ZE—H4F
—AZEZT—RFAABABANEE—AM
Bank Rakyat#® A #& 5£200,000 & # (18 & 5 4
457,980 7T ) + K & 1% — HA 18 5% 52,820,000 55
B (FRE A #) 6,457,522 78 70) i A BB R A X
REE-_ZT—RAFXNAZTBI M K
CVMSB# # —Z — A F /X A =1 H [EBank
Rakyat f& 38 2 &6 Al 5 #% /) 48 5% < 8 105,000,000
B (FRZ 1149 240,439,661 78 TT) °
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BANK LOANS — SECURED (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and due to
continued negative cashflows, the Group defaulted on the
repayments of bank loans of RM4,020,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$9,205,404) and breached one of the
covenants of the banking facilities. Upon discovery of the
breach, the directors of the Company commenced a
negotiation of the terms of the loans with Bank Rakyat.
These negotiations have concluded on 12 January 2015
whereby Bank Rakyat has agreed to defer the repayment
by CVMSB of the bank loan amounting at RM4,020,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$9,205,404) to 16 January
2015, which was originally repayable on or before 31
December 2014. According to Bank Rakyat, such deferral
is final and Bank Rakyat shall not allow any further delay
and/or failure on the part of CYMSB to meet its payment
obligation. However, the bank loan of RM4,020,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$9,205,404) was defaulted
again and not yet repaid up to March 2015.

On 17 March 2015, the Company received a letter issued
by Bank Rakyat indicating that the continued failure to
fulfil the repayment obligations as set out in the Proposal
constituted a breach of terms and therefore the above
Proposal was terminated and/or allowed to be
terminated. Accordingly, the total amount owed and
repayable to Bank Rakyat was restored to RM203,141,864
(equivalent to approximately HK$465,174,866) as at 28
February 2015 (the "Outstanding Loan") which was
required to be settled within 14 days from the date of that
letter. According to Bank Rakayt, legal actions will be
commenced against CVMSB including all its corporate
guarantors if CVMSB failed, neglected or refused to settle
the Outstanding Loan within the given period.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiEX£ZERERAR
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BEARTER@E)
HE-Z-ME+-_A=+—RHALFE aNEF
BHEABRESRE  MASEAREERBITER
4,020,000 55 ¥ (FHE 7R 499,205,404 B 7T) i R
Hp—HRTRMER - BEBHENE A2
A)ZE ERtAEEBank Rakyat EF R & FAVIEN »
WEERER_E—RAF—A+-_B&FR"
Bank Rakyat BRI ZE CVMSBEIEE —F — A F —
A+ AEEZERETENR_E—TF+=A
=+—HBsk A& 8<% 54,020,000 5 ¥ (48
R #99,205,404 % 7T ) 2 HRITE X o B IR Bank
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TR EMEEINER K, HLCYMSB T EITEE
HETE o AT - RITE 4,020,000 5% (FHE R
479,205,404 7T) BRBRENR —_E—HF=A
M AREE o

RZE—RAF=A+tH  XRAEEBank
Rakyat # i &) 1 - F8 AR R B FHEREEETT
ZIREFMHMERTTMmERIER - Bt 0 %R
RISORIER BRI - Bt - RZZ—H
FZ A =+ N\ B4R & JE(E 2 T Bank Rakyat
H) 42 & K8 [0 18 203,141,864 F H (B & 1 4
465,174,866 7870) ([ REEBER]) - WHRZ K
B HARRET 14 B R{E T - B J% Bank Rakyat » i
CVMSB R Lt HAfl A R BE ~ et sIERBEE R
EEER - E5EmCYMSB (BIEFTE A FIER
A FREERFA o
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25 BANK LOANS — SECURED (continued)

On 26 June 2015, the Group further accepted the latest
restructuring proposal offered by Bank Kerjasama Rakyat
Malaysia Berhad (“Bank Rakyat”). Pursuant to which, the
total amount owed and repayable to Bank Rakyat by
CVMSB agreed to be reduced to RM113,040,000
(equivalents to approximately HK$203,932,888) by means
of cash settlements of RM68,040,000 (equivalents to
approximately HK$122,749,414) and redemption of
charged properties for RM45,000,000 (equivalents to
approximately HK$81,183,475). The first cash repayment
of RM11,300,000 (equivalents to approximately
HK$20,386,073) was settled by the Group on 2 July 2015
within 7 working days from 26 June 2015 and the
remaining balance of RM56,740,000 (equivalents to
approximately HK$102,363,341) was settled by the Group
on 30 November 2015 as per the extended settlement
deadline. Upon full repayment of the cash settlements to
Bank Rakyat, CVMSB is entitled to redeem the charged
properties for RM45,000,000 (equivalents to approximately
HK$81,183,475). The redemption shall take place within
six months from 26 June 2015 and at the discretion of
Bank Rakyat, extend for further six months if there is a
proof of sale provided by CVMSB. An additional charge
calculated at a rate of 3.85% per annum shall be imposed
on the outstanding balance of RM45,000,000 (equivalents
to approximately HK$81,183,475) after full repayment of
the above mentioned cash settlements and until the full
redemption payment of the charged properties. On 26
November 2015, Bank Rakyat issued a letter to CYMSB
informing CVMSB that Bank Rakyat has agreed to extend
the charged properties’ redemption until 30 June 2016.
Accordingly, from January 2016 onwards, CVMSB is
required to pay a monthly charge of RM144,375
(equivalent to approximately HK$260,464) to Bank Rakyat
until full settlement of the redemption payment for the
redemption. On 29 June 2016, Bank Rakyat issued a letter
to CVMSB informing CVMSB that Bank Rakyat agreed to
further extend the deadline for the charged properties’
redemption, together with the monthly interest due, to on
or before 12 July 2016.
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BEARTER@E)

REBE-—FVR -_E-—HENA-HRNBER
Bank Kerjasama Rakyat Malaysia Berhad ([ Bank
Rakyat!) #2 HI Wy & ¥ E4H IR ZE » £ 1It - CVMSB
Fir &5 /K 1% & {838 T Bank Rakyat M 48 & 28 &5 15 E
&3 2> 2 113,040,000 55 ¥ (FHE 1A 9 203,932,888
BIT) - 15 UAIR & (B 1 68,040,000 & 5 (FRE R
122,749,414 7T ) I & [B] 2 48 50 ¥ % 45,000,000
B (FHE M %81,183,47587L) A RNEE - &K
ESEER-_ZT—RAFLA-RABEIZZ—AERX
A+ BRFA7EAIEFERN)ENEEESE
3%11,300,000 55 #& (48 & 74 4920,386,073 % 7T )
BAREEERBEEERERR - —1F+—
B =+ BE & 556,740,000 F 8 (HHE R4
102,363,3417%& 7T ) © [A1Bank Rakyat{&)5 I & 4
HR1& - CYMSB #% A # & 2] 45,000,000 5 ¥ (18
ER#A81,183,475 B ) ME R YMH - BHAE
EE —_FE—RFNA-+BEFNEAAA
HAT - MiMCVMSBIR A BASHE /&% - BlBank
Rakyat AJBYIEBERANEA - HEE FIB S
Btk AT B38%H K EE B HE
45,000,000 5 % (18 & 7 4781,183,475 % 7T) hiik
BR EEMNEBERCHCYEREAL - RN
T—HF+—HZ+/XH " Bank Rakyat B (&
CVWSBER RRELEREFEMEBRHRE —
T-RNENAZTH A BT —RF—A
#2 » CVMSBZE [A1Bank Rakyat®& A % 144,375
B (HHER 260,464 T0) EELEO 455 E
BIffREAILE - RZTE—XRNEFXA=Z+hAB
Bank Rakyat £ CVMSB & /R R B 15 C s ¥ %
REERRERZIEA S HEERE—FT
E-FE-RXFELA+=-HZA °
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BANK LOANS — SECURED (continued)

On 10 August 2016 and 11 August 2016, Bank Rakyat
acknowledged the Group that final settlement of
RM45,000,000 (equivalents to approximately
HK$87,412,588) for the redemption of charged properties
was received and Bank Rakyat has completed the process
of discharging the Group'’s properties in Malaysia pledged
as security on 18 November 2016. Accordingly, an one-off
non-recurring gain on loans reduction amounted to
RM99,352,487 (equivalent to approximately
HK$192,992,398) was recognised in profit or loss during
the year.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

25

BEARTER@E)
%22*/\$)\H+E&:g*/_\¢/\ﬂ TL*
H - Bank Rakyat &5 F1 78 S5 (B K B2 pt fiE 2] 2 # 50
MERZREEENS 45000000%%%%%9”‘75A
#987,412,5887% 7t ) + HBank Rakyat® i — &
—RNFE+—A +)\E%)ﬁﬁ@l§$$%@5’f£ﬁ%
R YIEMEIR - HAL - ERURD A —R M &
IE &8 M I 599,352, 487% (B E E’\ %
192,992,398 & 7T ) N FF B R ©

FFEMER

All of the interest-bearing borrowings are expected to be
settled within one year.

Unsecured bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company issued an aggregate of HK$30,000,000
unsecured bonds to independent third parties, with
interests bearing at 2% per month and will mature
on one year from the date of issuance of the bonds.

(a)

(b) Loans from third parties

On 13 July 2016 and 18 August 2016, the Company
borrowed an aggregate of HK$101,609,200 and
HK$1,000,000 from an independent third party, with
interests bearing at 10%-12% per annum and 4%
per month respectively and repayable within two
months after their respective drawdown dates or
within 20 business days after the lender has served
the Company a written notice for immediate
repayment. The Company has also pledged the
issued shares of CVMSB as security for the
HK$50,000,000 loan as included in aforementioned.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & Hfi&£ZRBERA R

X (PHRE26(D))

Unsecured bonds 2% 2017 (note 26 (a)) —E—FEH T 2% EKFES
(HI7E 26(a))
Loans from third parties (note 26 (b)) KEE=HEZR

30,000,000 -
107,609,200 1,800,000
137,609,200 1,800,000

AR BEREHN—FAEE -

(@) \EHES
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26 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued) 26 FtEEBR (&)
(b) Loans from third parties (continuead) (b) REE=FER#HE)
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the HE-Z-RF+= ﬂ T—BIEFE -
Company defaulted on the repayments of the RATRGEEELMERREREF—H
above-mentioned loans and breached one of the BREHE - RNF /\i-?— A=+—

covenants of the loan facilities. On 31 December
2016, the Company received a letter issued by the
independent third party requiring to repay the
outstanding loans of HK$102,609,200 (the “Defaulted
Loans”) together with interest accrued, handling
fees and further charges in relation to the
outstanding loans amounting to a total sum of
HK$16,337,418 within 7 days from the date of the
letter. According to the letter, legal proceedings
may commence to recover the payments without
further notice. The directors of the Company
represented that (i) the Company commenced a
negotiation of the terms of the loans with this third
party; (ii) the interest and further charges on the
matured loans will continue to be payable by the
Company until the matured loans and related
interest and charges are repaid in full. As at the
approval date of the consolidated financial
statements, the revised terms have not been
concluded yet.

On 11 November 2016 and 6 December 2016, the
Company borrowed unsecured interest bearing
loans of HK$3,000,000 and HK$2,000,000
respectively from independent third parties, with
interests bearing at 2% and 4% per month. The
loans are repayable within 2 months from the end

A ANRGEERLE =LA
BRAKGTAREEAANERRERER
102,609,200 7T ([H#ER B ) ER AR EE
BERMERTAE FEEBREMERRSE
16,337,418 7 o RIF ML K+ 7] iR E
BFARB X HIE  MEASITE -
AABEERT VAR FIRGEHEE=R
TE P B SRR n)ZIS/AaTH%E@IJ,HﬁI%‘;?x
NIRRT B R EREEREEREE ST
HERNAEREMER - N6 MER
i’%ﬁt/ﬁ BES  IEETIER M AR RIS TETE o

RZE—RE+—A+—BR-ZT—~F
ToAXNA ARADEBLE=FIE
A.3,000,0007% 7T & 2,000,000 7T 1) 4 K
W BER - AT A2%RA%KFIR B »
ZEERERBEHARBTMELANE
B NRAMBRERILERS  Z5ER

>\

of the reporting period. The loans have not been EENEPE

settled as at the approval date of the consolidated

financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the HEZZ—AF+-A=1+T—HLEFE"

Company entered into a loan agreement with an
independent third party for an unsecured loan of
HK$1,800,000 at an interest rate of 24% p.a. payable
monthly. The loan was subsequently repaid in July
2016.

ARBEBIE=ZTHEETER
1,800000;‘%7%(ﬂ?ﬁiﬂ“‘”%%%ﬁﬂ
BRI ER B - EREERN =
FLABEE-
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27 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27 EEBIEEE
The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised UTERAFERBAFERRANELEHRES
and movements thereon during the current and prior BEREEE)
years:
Exploration
and evaluation
assets
BHER A HEE
HK$
BIT
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—hFE—HA—H (8,568,647)
Credit to profit or loss (Note 8(a)) T ABE (5 8(@) 616,504
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-—RAF+-A=+—H (7,952,143)
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RE—H—H (7,952,143)
Credit to profit or loss (Note 8(a)) T ATEE (MFE8(a)) 7,952,143
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+ZA=1+—H -
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has not recognised HRREMEERDEERAN KT KRATeEE A BER
deferred tax assets in respect of accumulated tax losses R RETHIEE BN AR RERTRF - ASER
of approximately HK$273,662,000 (2015: HK$270,018,000) CE-RET AT -HHERRRFABBE
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against 18#9273,662,000 70 (= Z—F4F : 270,018,000
which the losses can be utilised will be available in the BT BRELHIEEE - REBRBHEEN -
relevant tax jurisdictions. The tax losses do not expire BB BRI R - A B E5EA B ER -

under current tax legislation. Other temporary differences
are not material.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has deductible RZZFE—ARF+ZA=+—8 AEE#HEIN
temporary differences of approximately HK$238,427,000 oL B 2= BB 49238,427,0008 T( — T — A 4F ¢
(2015: HK$223,062,000). No deferred tax asset has been 223,062,000787T) o P &R F A% 1 AT B &1
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary A AZEERERMFLE  WHRREHIES
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be ERZ IR EEmERER -

available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.
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28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28 EXRKf#E
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) RERARITHEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AN = B 4 A T 25 R 4B R BB 1D B A ER B R A
balances of each component of the Group’'s MOV RN GERREHR - AREE
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated (&= AKE DR FNEF RS EFS
statement of changes in equity. Details of the RN

changes in the Company's individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:

The Company RKATH

Convertible Convertible Share
Share preference Capital ~ bond equity option Other  Accumulated
capital shares reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Total deficit
ER ERES EhE
e iR BAG RaGRE i ZiER HiEE

HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

k= b g E v S 3 F:3
J 27 BT 7 i3

BT BT T B

R

At 1 January 2015 R-%-1%-5-A 989,710,234 90,500,988 1338136 29,331,866 - 33925000 (1,199,894544)  (55,088,320)
Changes in equity for 2015: “2-DERESE:
Loss and total comprenensive loss — £RBER2AFREE

for the year - - - - - - 4303121 (214303121)
Conversion of convertible preference  E#A/ERELR

shares 90500988 (90,500988) - - - - - -
Sharesissued purstant o a RERMEEMETHRE

share placing (b)) 109,935,500 - - - - - - 109,935,500
Shares issued pursuant to an open offer BEARLERZTHRL () 17778579 - - - - - - 17185
Redemptions of convertible bonds BB Bk EH - - - (T73668) - - NT7366 -
At 31 December 2015 RZF-RETZA=1-R 1,367,875,301 - 1,338,136 7,558,200 - 33,925,000 (1,392,423,999) 18,272,638
At 1 January 2016 R=E-7"%-A-H 1,367,875,301 - 1,338,136 7,558,200 - 33925000 (1,392423999) 18,272,638

Changes in equity for 2016: “E-REEREE:
Loss and total comprenensive loss — £RBER2ASREE

for the year - - - - - - (206,158,680) (206,158,680)
Recognition of equity-settied DR SR

share-based payment TITF0E - - - - 8,385,648 - - 8,385,648
Rederptions of comvertible bonds BB Es = = - (5774925 = - 5774925 =
At 31 December 2016 R-E-AE+-A=1-H 1,367,875,301 - 1,338,136 1,783,275 8,385,648 33,925,000 (1,592,807,754) (179,500,394)
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28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Share Capital

202

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

£1 January

Notes
ik

EAR BRORRER:

R-A-8

Conversion of convertible preference share EMmEAB %R 0)

Shares issUied pursuant to a share placing
Shares issued pursuant to an open offer

At 31 December

BEROERERZANRG 0
BEOFEERZANRG 0

28 BEXRf#E#)

(b)

R

2016
ZE-RE

Number

of shares
EE

Number
Amount of shares Amount
o8 Ri%E fit
HKS$ HKS
BT BT

RtZA=1-H

5,509,623,921 1,367,875,301 2495461437 989,710,234
= = 565,631,177 90,500,988
= = 612,000,000 109,935,500
= = 1,836,541,307 177128519
5,509,623,921 1,367,875,301 5,509,623,921 1,367,875,301

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time and
are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company's residual assets.

)

Issue of shares

On 10 April 2015, the Company’s convertible
preference shares with principal value of
HK$90,500,988 were converted into
565,631,177 ordinary shares of the Company
at a conversion price of approximately
HK$0.16 per ordinary share. Accordingly, an
aggregate amount of HK$90,500,988 was
released from convertible preference shares
reserve, and was credited to share capital
account.

On 7 August 2015, 612,000,000 ordinary
shares were issued by placing at HK$0.185
each for cash consideration of
HK$109,935,500, net of expenses incurred.

On 19 November 2015, 1,836,541,307 ordinary
shares were issued by open offer at HK$0.10
each for cash consideration of
HK$177,728,579, net of expenses incurred.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & Hfi&£ZRBERA R

BB E A B REBTE SRS -
CEEEER - REAATAG FRE-
B RRS AR TN HSAETE 24
R -

)

BITRG

RZZE—RAFMA+TH  A2EAK
% # /590,500,988 78 T H) 7] B R B
EBRBRETRER xiﬁow/%rzaﬁ
I8 (B 838 5 565,631,177 AR
L@k o E ﬁ@§590500988;%7‘z
EAMERELEREHETRER I

Bt ABARER -

RZZZETE—-—R"AFNA LA
612,000,000 A% 3B AE B FE B & 1%
FH0.185 B TTHIEEETT - HaK
{& 5 109,935,5007% 7T (31 5 2 4 #
X) e

WZE—RAF+—A+HhB-
1,836,541,307 LB E EBAFH
BERTROIOB THEREIT
Re K& E177,728,5797%8 T (%
EERR) -
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28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve mainly represents the net
proceeds received from the issue of warrants
of the Company. The reserve will be
transferred to share capital account upon the
exercise of the warrants.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 2(s).

Convertible bond equity reserve

The value of the unexercised equity
component of convertible bonds issued by the
Company is recognised in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in Note 2(k).

Convertible preference shares (“CPS")

On 14 August 2014, the Company issued
565,631,177 CPS at an aggregate nominal
value of HK$90,500,988 upon the completion
of the Loan Capitalisation. The conversion
price of the CPS is fixed at HK$0.16 per
ordinary share and can be converted into
ordinary shares without specified maturity
date. Neither the Company nor the holders of
the CPS shall have any right to redeem the
CPS, other than for the purpose of conversion
of the CPS pursuant to the terms thereof. The
CPS shall at all times (a) rank pari passu to any
and all current or future preferred equity
securities of the Company; (b) shall not be
entitled to any dividend; (c) non-redeemable in
nature; and (d) have no voting rights.

Share option reserve

The value of the portion of the grant date fair
value of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Group that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in
note(2)(o)ii).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 511E)

28

BEARK@#EE)

(0 RHENMEEREW

0)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

EXfEE
BARBEIZERBTARARK
REWIH S FIRFER - FER
TR R R BB ERARRD -

BE Wik

EN FERmEINEEVMBREM
BN —YIE L ZRE - HEREH
AP E 2(s) Y & AT R B HE ©

TRRESESFHE

R B EITE AR AUE 5 B RTT(E
Rt M EEREN 2K PrEie
FHERERIER ©

TERELRR [ TERERR]
RZZFE-—EFNA+TEA  AAF
N ERE AT K& T
565,631,177k ™ & # % &
90,500,988 7 T HY A 85 #2488 o ik » 7]
HHEERNRREEERERE
BAR0.168TT - W A I S E R AR
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28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

204

(c)
(vi)

(vii)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

Other reserve

The Group

Other reserve of the Group represents the
reserve arising from the reverse acquisition on
14 October 2008.

On 14 October 2008, the Company acquired
the entire issued and fully paid-up share
capital of CVYMSB, a company incorporated in
Malaysia.

The consideration was satisfied by the
allotment and issue of 338,249,999 new
ordinary shares and the existing 1 share of the
Company to the then shareholders of CVMSB,
credited as fully paid at an issue price of
HK$0.10 per new share.

The Company

Other reserve of the Company represents the
difference between the value of the shares of
CVMSB acquired over the nominal value of the
shares used by the Company as consideration
for the reverse acquisition on 14 October
2008. The application of the other reserve is
governed by section 196 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2016, there were no realised
profits available for distribution to owners of
the Company (2015: HK$Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for owners and benefits for other
stakeholders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed
capital requirements in either the current or prior
years.

29 SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(@) The new share option scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed on 4
February 2016, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) to (i) motivate the
eligible persons to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (i) attract
and retain or otherwise maintain on going business
relationship with the eligible persons whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-
term growth of the Group. The Scheme is to remain
in force for a period of 10 years from the date of
adoption of such scheme and will expire on 3
February 2026.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company
may at their discretion grant options to (i) any
directors, employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any subsidiary; or (ii) any consultant,
adviser, supplier, customer or agent of the Company
or any subsidiary; or (iii) any other person
determined by the directors of the Company from
time to time to subscribe for the shares of the
Company (the “Shares”).

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 511E)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51/1E)

29 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@) The new share option scheme (continued)
Options granted must be taken up within 30 days of
the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option.
The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company on the date of adopting the Scheme. The
limit may be refreshed at any time provided that the
new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of the shareholders’ approval in general
meeting. However, the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other scheme of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. The maximum
number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue on the
last date of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Options granted to directors, substantial
shareholders or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) are required to be
approved by the independent non-executive
directors (excluding any independent non-executive
director who is a grantee). Options granted to
substantial shareholders, independent non-
executive directors or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) in
aggregate in excess of 0.1% of the issued share
capital of the Company or with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the

shareholders of the Company.

Options granted may be exercised at any time from
date of grant of the share option to the 10th
anniversary of the date of grant as may be
determined by the directors. The exercise price is
determined by the directors, and will not be less
than the higher of the closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of the grant of the options and
the average closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange'’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of

the grant of the options.

206 DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED §1igE&iERER 4D 7

29

B RERTE ()

(@

BT 8 ()

% e B i /R FE 3R A A2 30 B S A
BOBREIVETNRTERESR - ATER
BERIERONBREMSRNEBE LRT
BEBARBRMEE A ARR S ET
PR 10% 7% _EBR AT RE RS 5T - HERT LR
EHTEBBERRERRRE Lit/EE R
RRBEEITRA0% - AT - AT REETT
EARBEB R AR BEM A IR EE
B RATEE L AL AT ST 1 R A A 1T 37T
MR EE  ERTBBBARATED
FETRUAD #930% o MMEAT+ — 18 A HifE Al
BT AEE R A L H BB P B ) 22 B
EFRNEEBARAZT @A REER
ERBETRONI%  EERE EHRA
BEARRRIBIRALARRSL ©

MES IERRNEMRSEEEHHE
ACEZER ETRADREBRE - A%
BIUYFRTES(FEES AEARANE
ABLIFATES) M- HEBRR
BUFRTEETHEMRESENBHEA
(EERLTHRANBENELRES KBS
RAFEZETRA0I%K E B # B
5,000,000/87C » ZAEFEAREIERAAE

BRETERLBRES AERLBRE
TRFIME(TREEEE)BERITE -
TEEMEFET A TFERREER
A MERBRERMIISRKHE
RERFHBRER R AEZXABR
P B mEXRMIISRKTENFHER
EzwaE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@) The new share option scheme (continued)
On 12 May 2016, the Company granted 245,178,252
share options in aggregate to certain directors,
employees and consultants of the Group under the

e B HmAR R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

29 FERESTE(®)

(@) EBRREEGTEI(&)
RZZT—XR"ERA+=8  ARAIRET
ERAEEETES  BERERERKRE
i 245,178,252 (0 BB IR HE - B LB ARER

BRI

Scheme. The terms and conditions of the options
granted are as follows:

Number of Vesting  Contractual
share options conditions life of options  Expiry date
EREN
BREHA BRERY BHEH &% B 5
Options granted to directors RYE2m@RE 173,553,145 () 10years 11 May 2026
T4 ZECRE
AAT—H
Options granted to employees & F1& 8 BB AR HE 66,115,485 0} 10years 11 May 2026
T4 ZEIRE
1A+—H
Options granted to consultants % A i 10 BE A 1 5,509,622 0} 10years 11 May 2026
T4 ZEIRE
AA+—H
Total share options granted R EREN A 245,178,252
Note: B 5E

(i) become exercisable from the date of grant to the 10th [0} AEREE BERD BT IEHIRT6E -

anniversary of the date of grant.

EARITEB BB T

Details of the outstanding share options are as follows:

2016 2015
ZB—XRF —=—hF
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average
of share exercise of share exercise
options price options price
BREME METLHTEE METHTEE B ES A
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BHRITE - N/A - N/A
TEA NEA
Granted during the year RERIZH 245,178,252 HK$0.100 - N/A
0.100 % T i A
Outstanding at 31 December W+=—A=+—H 245,178,252 HK$0.100 - N/A
HARITEE 0.100 & T NEA
Exercisable at 31 December  H+—-—A=+—8H 245,178,252 HK$0.100 - N/A
A FITE 0.100 % T i A
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29 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

208

(@) The new share option scheme (continued)

Note: (continued)

The options outstanding at the end of the reporting period
have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 10
years.

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the share options granted is measured based on a binomial
option pricing model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into a binomial option pricing model.

The inputs into the model were as follows:

Grant date 12 May 2016
Spot price HK$0.069
Contractual life 10 years
Exercise price HK$0.100
Expected volatility 88.649%
Risk-free rate 1.243%
Dividend yield 0%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of
the Company’s share price over the most recent period
commensurate with the contractual life of the share
options.

(b) The terminated share option scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed on 14
October 2008, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) to (i) attract and retain the
best quality personnel for the development of the
Group’s business; (ii) to provide additional incentives
to the employees; (iii) to provide eligible persons
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests
in the Group; and (iv) to promote the long term
financial success of the Group by aligning the
interests of grantees to shareholders. The Scheme
is to remain in force for a period of 10 years from
the date of adoption of such scheme and will expire
on 13 October 2018.

Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) may at their discretion
grant options to (i) Board of Directors or a duly
authorised committee; or (i) any person employed
by the Company or any subsidiary; (iii) any
consultant, adviser, supplier, customer or
subcontractor of the Company or any other person
determined by the Directors from time to time to
subscribe for the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 511E)

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of
the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option.
The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company on the date of adopting the Scheme. The
limit may be refreshed at any time provided that the
new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of the shareholder’s approval in general
meeting. However, the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other scheme of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue from time to time. The maximum
number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue on the
last date of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing rules.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors in excess of
issued share capital of the Company or with a value
in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the shareholders of the Company.

Options granted may be exercised at any time from
date of grant of the share option to the 10th
anniversary of the date of grant as may be
determined by the Directors. The exercise price is
determined by the Directors, and will not be less
than the higher of the closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets on the date of the grant of the option the
average closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
the grant of the options, and the nominal value of
share.

No option has been granted by the Company under
the Scheme since its adoption date.

The Scheme was terminated pursuant to the written
resolution passed on 4 February 2016.

29 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29 FERESTE(®)
(b) The terminated share option scheme (b) BRAIEBRESTE(E)
(continued)
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 £miEREERAFRE
VALUES
(@) Financial risk management objectives (@) 2HEREEBERBEEK

and policies
Management has adopted certain policies for
financial risk management with the objective of:

(i) ensuring that appropriate funding strategies
are adopted to meet the Group’s short term
and long term funding requirements taking
into consideration the cost of funding, gearing
levels and cash flow projections of each
project; and

(i) ensuring that appropriate strategies are also
adopted to manage related interest and
currency risk.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk are primarily attributable to
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables. The
exposure to this credit risk is monitored by
management on an ongoing basis and management
does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

Cash and cash equivalents are placed at financial
institutions that have sound credit rating.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables derived from sales of magnesium ingots
are due within 14 days from the date of the bill of
lading for exports sales or date of invoice for local
sales. Other than that the Group has a policy of
allowing customers for domestic trading and
distribution in the PRC with credit terms or normally
cash on delivery. Debtors with balances that are
more than 6 months past due are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset, in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
Except for the corporate guarantees given by the
Group as set out in Note 32(a), the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to the credit risk in respect of
these corporate guarantees at the end of the
reporting period is disclosed in Note 32(a).

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables are set out in Note 19.

(c) Foreign currency risk
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
through trade receivables and payables that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate.

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period to
currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant
subsidiaries. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in HKS,
translated using the spot rate at year end
date:

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in
HK$)

Cash and cash equivalents

Be LR EEY

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

30 ERABERERAFE@E

(b) FEEREE)
EREERRAGEVBRART S SR
BEMREE - FRHEE32() e A S @R
HORBERI  AEEL EREEME
AT R AR B AR A EGEERR
R - RRERARZFRRERTZH
RHEERBRNHE20) HE -

ERASERUERMEENEERR
E—HHERBEHNME9

(c) SER
AEBRERELERBR S 2 EEERE
HNE B ETE HY FE UUAR 30 N FE AT BR 3K M T B
SNEE[ELBR ©

() FERNESER
TSR R AL A R B 0 3R 5 AR AT B
HAHBEH B AR EEAINE
KitENCHRREEXABMEL
MERRR - FEERNRRSET
REFEAMAKGERT ETIES
Sz

FATTE R 0 S NGEE L B (JAB TTHIMED

2016
—E—XREF
United States

2015
—E—hHEF
United States
Dollars

ETT

HK$

BT

Dollars
EpH
HK$
BT

88,854 11,241
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LEITSE)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)
(c) Foreign currency risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group's profit/(loss) before tax
and accumulated losses in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period, assuming all other variable
risk variables remained constant. Other
components of the equity would not be
affected by changes in the foreign exchange
rate:

30 SRIEBEERAFEME

SMNERLRE ()

(i) BRESWN
TRERAEERBIREHN,(EE)
HRFHEIEMEIMNEERSIE A LR
P(AEERBRERRAZEEPH
b E AR (FRFRFTA H b 2
ERFTE) MABEL - HENHE
AR BRI AR INEE R E BT E -

(c)

212

ey

United States Dollars

(Increase)/ (Increase)/
Increase/ decrease Increase/ decrease
(decrease) in profit hefore (decrease) inloss before
in foreign taxand in foreign tax and
exchange  accumulated exchange accumulated
rates losses
BRBLAT
BER
NHNEER RitE#E
tH/(TR) () EHD
HK$
BT
5% 4,443 5% 562
(5)% (4,443) (5% (562)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of the
foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as for 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Group arise primarily
from unsecured loans from third parties and
convertible bonds. Borrowings issued at variable
rates and fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk,
respectively.

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group's borrowings at the end of the reporting
period.

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

30 ERABERERAFE@E

(d)

2016

Effective

interest rate

Variable rate borrowings:
— Secured bank loans

/%@Jﬂ:”a N
— FEMRITE

Fixed rate borrowings: EEF RGN :

— Convertible bonds —kES
— Obligations under
finance leases —BEREAE

— Interest-bearing borrowings HEER

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group's profit before tax and
equity by approximately HK$Nil (2015: loss
HK$2,604,000).

BRFENE

17.54%-
33.73% p.a.

6.75% p.a-
10.00%
48.00% p.a.

R =@ b

AEBERNM KRR EZ K S EEMIRT
=t ﬁﬁ%ﬁ#%fﬁ&"ﬁf&ﬂx{a
7 o Bk BIRZ B M R B E A R 5
B RAEESHHBRESRENXEAR
RAFEN XL

TRANAEBE B FNREHRNA RE

Ao

2015
—E-hfE
Effective
interest rate Amount
EREF|= i

Amount

&8
HKS$
B

= 8.85% p.a. 260,423,032
17.54%-

10,000,000 33.73% p.a. 29,000,000
1.80% -

48,954 3.68% p.a. 225,819
137,609,200 24.00% p.a. 1,800,000
147,658,154 291,448,851

BRE DT
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e -7t K100 {E B 25 A H it 5
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T11E)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

214

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
instantaneous change in the Group's profit/(loss)
before tax (and accumulated losses) and other
components of consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of
the reporting period. In respect of the exposure to
cash flows interest rate risk arising from variable
rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group
at the end of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group's profit before tax (and accumulated losses)
and other components of consolidated equity is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2015.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on
its ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from
operations to meet its debt obligations as and when
they fall due and on its ability to obtain external
financing for its committed future capital
expenditures.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 511E)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30
VALUES (continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued) (e)

TREREER D VE®)

nREBETEEE)

At 31 December 2016, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$201,008,467 (2015: HK$314,988,278)
which include secured bank loans, convertible
bonds and interest-bearing borrowings of HK$Nil
(2015: HK$260,423,032), HK$10,000,000 (2015:
HK$29,000,000) and HK$137,609,200 (2015:
HK$1,800,000), respectively. As detailed in Notes
24(a) and 26(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Matured Bonds and Defaulted
Loans were defaulted for repayments as at 31
December 2016. The directors of the Company
closely monitor the cash flows of the Group and the
Company and upon maturity, arrange renewal and
refinancing of these borrowings, where necessary,
to enable the Group to carry on its operations in the
foreseeable future. As disclosed in Note 2(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company have taken action to mitigate the
liquidity issues faced by the Group. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Group’s liquidity risk can be addressed.

R-E—XE+-_A=+—8 AEEY
SFREAEA201,008467 T (—E—H
F 314,988,278 T ) - BIEHEMIET
B3 dJeRES R EERD R ATE
T = T — F & 260,423,032 7T )
10,000,000 % 7T ( = Z — A 4 : 29,000,000
B IT) K& 137,6092008 0 (=& — R F ¢
1,800,000 70 ) © S INER A BI FE SR R M 5
24() 260kt R—Z—RF+ = A
=+—8  FHEHEREREROERE
e RN EBRYEEAEE KA QT
MEESRE  WHRE R ZERZ S ERN
BIIRERE(WNBERKE)  UMEAEER
TAEREBICEEZET o FUNERE VTS
HwEMF20)HE - AR R EECDRIE
MEMAEEmMEMNLEBDESHE - B
It ARREERA  AEERPESE
G AT IR o
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 £RIEREERQAFEEE)
VALUES (continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (continued) (e) REBELE (&)
The following table details the remaining contractual TRFIAEERREARNTBEEER
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the BREXWIEBA(DIREBEEORUBRENR
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on E(BEREOMNE  BERZBFEX - A
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including BB EPRNRAMNEAENF SR
interest payments computed using contractual rates AE)RAEEAESNNRTEBE

or, if variable, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

2016
B-RE
Contracted undiscounted cash flows
BRRERRERE
More than  More than
Carrying Within 1yearbut 2 years but

amount at 1 year or less than less than

31 December Total on demand 2 years 5 years
Wt=A

S —FLR —ENE MENLE

HEREE REXK  EREAR  BEFUR

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT j BT BT BT

Other payables and accruals  Et 708 k&R 54,760,741 54,760,741 54,760,741 - -
Obligations under finance R & E&AE

leases 48,954 49,793 49,793 = =
Amounts due to related JEfIBER T

parties 2443919 2443919 2,443,919 - -
Convertible bonds R ES 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 = -
Interest-bearing borrowings it SEH 137,609,200 144,122,077 144,122,077 - -

204,862,814 211,376,530 211,376,530 = =
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 €RIEMEERAFESE)
VALUES (continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued) (e) REBELE (&)

2015
—T-1f
Contracted undiscounted cash flows
SHARAFES)
More than More than
Carrying Within 1 year but 2 years but

amount at 1 year or less than less than

31 December Total on demand 2 years 5 years
RT=A

=t+—H —ENN —ENE ML E

Y o] RERE  BRENA BRENA

HKS HKS HKS HKS

BT BT BT BT

Other payables and accruals At ERERBA 37,441,499 37441499 37,441,499 - -
Obligations under finance ~ EA& M EHKIE

leases 225,819 233,574 181,403 52,171 -
Amount dueto adirector  [ERN—ZEEFUA 347 347 347 - -
Amounts due to ENEERFE
related parties 2,416,399 2,416,399 2,416,399 - -
Convertible bonds RRES 29,000,000 29,000,000 29,000,000 - -
Bank loans — secured BEMBTER 200423032 261985814 261,985,814 - -
Unsecured loans from REE=-FEEAER
third parties 1,800,000 1,800,000 1,800,000 - -
331,307,096 332877633 332,825,462 52,171 -
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)
(f) Categories of financial instruments

30

cREREERATE®)

H EMIEDE

Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including S L EW R IE
cash and cash equivalents) (BEES RS
Financial liabilities THAasE

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Fair values of financial instruments

Except as detailed in the following table, the
directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate to their carrying values:

(®

REHERATENERAR

ZEW) 3,854,290 16,264,533
204,862,814 331,307,096
(g) ¢WMTEZATE
BRTRETMEIN  EERE WA
AR R P RERR E’J%mﬂﬁ%&ﬁ{iﬁ’lﬁﬁﬁ
EEHEE(EES

2015
—T-RF

Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE AVE REE NEE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
Financial liabilities at BREBSERATEYN
amortised cost cHEE
Obligations under finance leases & TH & & IE 48,954 49,793 225,819 233,574
Convertible bonds AR ES 10,000,000 10,000,000 29,000,000 29,000,000
Interest-bearing borrowings SEER 137,609,200 137,609,200 1,800,000 1,800,000
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the fair value of RZE—RNFRZE—RAF+=—A=+—
the liability component of the Matured Bonds is A HHESFBEISHNATEREASE
assumed to be its principal amounts. REEE o
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31 COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31
December 2016 not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements were as follows:

31 &g

(@

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

BEAREE

RIE—RF+-A=+—8  TEN4EG
EUBEHRERPBEEOHRENE AR RED
™

Contracted for EHES!
Authorised but not contracted for BIREERETL

Future minimum royalty payments
Pursuant to the Mining Agreement (Note 15(a)), the
royalties to MERSB are subject to a monthly
minimum payment of RM30,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$51,903) (2015: RM30,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$54,122)) for a
period of 20 years, unless early terminated by the
Group by giving one month’s written notice to
MERSB. The total minimum royalties amounted to
RM5,220,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$9,031,142) (2015: RM5,220,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$9,417,283)) over the 20 years
period.

(b)

13,660,426 14,244,500
13,660,426 14,244,500
ARBEEFEE

BB FERZE (T 150) @ BixE A &K
{3 4 F MERSB #) = F1|# & & 30,000 5
B(HEERH519038L) (ZE—RHF
30,000 5 ¥ (FHE R 4541228 70)) » B
BA204F + B 3E 7N & [ (M) MERSB 5 f — {E
AEMBARARL - 20FHHNRIEE
I #E B 458 55220000 5 8 (HBERY
9,031,142 7T)(ZE—HF : 5,220,000 5
B (FRE 499,417,283 7T)) °
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31 COMMITMENTS (continued)

Operating lease commitments

At 31 December 2016, the total minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable as follows:

220

(c)

(d)

31

A& )

(c)

R ERE
RIE—RF+-A=+—8 " BERTA
B2 HENENSER SRR
™

Within 1 year —F AR
After 1 year but within 5 years —FUAEERFEUARN
After 5 years AFUE

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain office
premises held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to six years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. The leases do not include a
contingent rental.

Environmental contingencies

The Group has not incurred any significant
expenditure for environment remediation and has
not accrued any amounts for environmental
remediation relating to its operations. Under existing
legislation, management believes that there are no
probable liabilities that will have a material adverse
effect on the financial position or operating results
of the Group. Laws and regulations protecting the
environment have generally become more stringent
in recent years and could become more stringent in
the future. Environmental liabilities are subject to
considerable uncertainties which affect the Group’s
ability to estimate the ultimate cost of remediation
efforts. These uncertainties include:

() the exact nature and extent of the
contamination at the mines and processing
plants;

(i) the extent of required cleanup efforts;

(i) varying costs of alternative remediation

strategies;

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED & Hfi&£ZRBERA R

(d)

257,265 578,000
1,002,355 -
93,971 -
1,353,591 578,000

AEERE THELEHENRQAERE
A ORI BH—ZRF  AAE
BREMBENA GRRRED - MERD
BreREgAES -

RESREE

AEEYRARSHMEEELERNEX
S h AR A (o] B 26 A AR R RO IR B A L
8 A AR (] B AR 3RIR » IRIBIRTTIA
B BEERETERATAY AR
BRAKKEXEEERAATENE
8o RERENAEIEROFERE L
BEBREBY BAERREEMES - R
REESRZBETHPER  AIZELRE

BAET R MR ARES - ZE T
FESDEEE

()  BUREBEBAEESRAOERIE
BMEE

@iy PARBEIIFMZE :
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31 COMMITMENTS (continued) 31 &iE#E)
(d) Environmental contingencies (continued) (d) REIREF/EHE)
(iv) changes in environmental remediation vy REHERRTEONE K&

requirements; and

(v)  the identification of new remediation sites. () AEHHRE NI TR o
The amount of such future cost is indeterminable FRPA MR HEE A g 35 A0 )5 2 2 IR E AN A] gk
due to such factors as the unknown magnitude of FE MR RRNEESEREE -
possible contamination and the unknown timing and ILEDERE R R AIBEEE LA BERAE 2
extent of the corrective actions that may be S B ATEEA B F BBRIREE
required. Accordingly, the outcome of HEBZEEENREAGE MEBEARE
environmental liabilities under proposed for future AIRENRX o

environmental legislation cannot be reasonably
estimated at present and could be material.

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32 FAREE
(a) Corporate guarantees issued (@) BBHEATER
As at 31 December 2016, the Company has issued a R-ZE—XRF+-_A=+—8 " XQ7#
corporate guarantee totalling RMNil (equivalent to CVMSB 8 B /R LAl RIAHLE R 3 A A
approximately HK$Nil) (2015: RM850,000 (equivalent EREHAZFEHESHAHNTET) (ZF
to approximately HK$1,533,000)) to a supplier in — A4 : 850,000 5 & (FH & 7 49 1,533,000
respect of the purchase of liquefied petroleum gas HBIT)) °

made by CVMSB.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has issued R-ZE—XRF+-_A=+—8 " XQ7#
corporate guarantees totalling RM133,004 CVMSBEE AEMREHERFEE L AR
(equivalent to approximately HK$230,000) (2015: &R & $£133,004 55 ¥ (48 & 7 #7230,000
RM133,004 (equivalent to approximately HIL) (CE—RF - 133,004 HE (HER
HK$240,000)) for finance lease creditors in respect #7240,000787T)) °

of the purchase of motor vehicles by CVMSB.

In respect of the Company’s corporate guarantee B8 CYMSB Ml — % /&b A h R e %
provided in relation to above other financing HE B E B 75 mh & - DA K@ CVMSB &
facilities granted to a supplier of liquefied petroleum BAERSBE s RERERREARHOE
gas made by CVMSB and the guarantee given to RMBEB ARG ARERME - AAA]
finance lease creditors of motor vehicles and EERAERRREROITESETK - B
equipment purchased by CVMSB, the directors of —E-ARERZE—RAF+=ZA=+—
the Company consider the possibility of being H AARESERAMEEHARATH
materialised is remote and immaterial. The directors R o

of the Company consider that no such liabilities are
required to be recognised as at 31 December 2016

and 2015.

The Company has not recognised any deferred HEZZT—R"FrRZFE—RF+=A
income in respect of the corporate guarantees as its =+—HIEFE  ARRWEER TR
fair value cannot be reliably measured and its REOEMRRLERA - HEEAFEEET]
transaction price was HK$Nil for the years ended 31 SEHFAERERGERRTAT
December 2016 and 2015.
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32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

222

(b) Contingent liability arising from default

of convertible bonds and loans from third
parties

As explained in Notes 2(b)(vi) and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Matured
Bonds were remained in defaulted and immediately
due for repayments as at 31 December 2016.
Pursuant to the convertible bonds agreements, at
any time after the convertible bonds have become
payable, the respective convertible bondholders
may without further notice institute such
proceedings as it may think fit to enforce payment
of the monies due.

As explained in Notes 2 (b)(vii) and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements, the loans from
third parties were defaulted and immediately due
for repayments as at 31 December 2016. Pursuant
to the loan agreements, the principal amount drawn
and for the time being outstanding under the
facilities, all interest accrued thereon and all other
monies payable under the agreements to be
forthwith due and payable, the respective lenders
may without further notice institute such
proceedings as it may think fit to enforce payment
of the monies due.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiEX£ZERERAR
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, in
addition to the transactions and balances disclosed in
Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements, the
following related party transactions took place between
the Group and related parties on terms mutually agreed
by the parties concerned.

*

Name of party
BELEH

Ho Wah Genting Berhad ("HWGB")

Ho Wah Genting Berhad ([HWGB])

Ho Wah Genting Poipet Resorts Sdn. Bhd. ("HWGP")
Ho Wah Genting Poipet Resorts Sdn. Bhd. (THWGP )
Perak State Development Corporation (“PSDC")
Perak State Development Corporation ([PSDC )
Majuperak Energy Resources Sdn. Bhd. ("MERSB")
Majuperak Energy Resources Sdn. Bhd. ([MERSB)
PT Ho Wah Genting Berhad ("PTHWG")

PT Ho Wah Genting Berhad ([PTHWG |)

HK New Huang Pu Finance Holdings Limited (“HKNHPF")

BAENEReRIEREBEERAR([EEHaEE2R])
Dato’ Lim Hui Boon*
=& Lim Hui Boon*

On 8 May 2015, Dato’ Lim Hui Boon ceased to be a related party of
the Group upon the resignation of Dato” Lim Ooi Hong as a director
of the Company.

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

33 EXBELSXRS

BHE_T-—RFR-_FT-—AF+_-_A=+—H
LEFE - REAMBHRENTBARENRS
NS  UTREN R P EAKBREET 2
4% B 75 B AR E O IRFETT ©

Relationship
2R

A shareholder of the Company

RAFRR

An associate of HWGB

HWGB # st & A 7

A shareholder of the Company

RARRE

A subsidiary of PSDC

PSDC B I E A 7]

A subsidiary of HWGB

HWGB EY T & 2 )

A company with common director of the
Company

HANRERAEEN—HRAR]

A father of a director

—HREZHRE

* RZZB-AFAANE EEMEREREARTES
% 2ELimHui Boon B AAKE Z#ES ©
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Particulars of significant transactions between the Group
and the above related parties are as follows:

(@) Recurring transactions

33 EXBELXRSZ #®)

REBR FRETETHEAZSHIBENT

Office rent payable to: AR AEES T

HWGB HWGB 89,901 95,427
Purchase of flight tickets from: MR ES B ERE

HWGP HWGP = 54,158
Maintenance fee payable to: R HEEET

MERSB MERSB = 2,351,093

(b) Amount due from a related party

(b) FEW—{IEBES KR

HKNHPF

ERHERD

The amount due from HKNHPF is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.
Fan Wei Peng is a common director of HKNHPF and
of the Company.

(c) Amount due to a director

&b = 475,426

REEENEHEROFARELRR %
SEEREEERY - ERBATENER
ERMBEARNBZHRAES -

() EN—REFHE

Leung Wai Kwan

RuE

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and has
no fixed terms of payment.

224
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 33 EXBELRRZ (&)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(d) Amounts due to related parties (d) ENBEERRE

MERSB MERSB 2,184,429 2,133,502
PTHWG PTHWG 259,490 282,897
2,443,919 2,416,399
The amounts are trade in nature, unsecured, ZEREAL MY EIKW S AE
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. Bl o
(e) Key management personnel (e) FEEBEAEMS

remuneration

Directors’ fees E= Ik 2,688,623 2,418,489
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4 - 285 R EWH|Z 3,486,600 3,100,097
Equity-settled share-based payments EREER AR BERR 7,972,426 -
Retirement scheme contributions BRIREFTEMHR 49,000 40,500

14,196,649 5,559,086
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51/1E)

34

226

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting
judgements:

(a) Going concern

As disclosed in Note 2(b), the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The appropriateness of the going concern
basis is assessed after taking into consideration all
relevant available information about the future of
the Group, including proposed measures as
described in Note 2(b) and cash flow projections for
the year ending 31 December 2017. Such forecasts
and projections about the future inherently involve
uncertainties. Actual results could differ significantly
and hence render the adoption of the going concern
basis not appropriate.

(b) Current and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The entities within the
Group recognise liabilities for potential tax
exposures based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred taxation provisions in the
financial period in which such determination is
made.

DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED SFiEX£ZERERAR

34 EEFHER MG

RARERA R KBRS - BREC LT
g4I

(a) FELE

K RE200) TR - AR B MG RKR THIR
SERERERY FERKEEEZRE
HEREREAKERRERRZAERE
AR (BB 20) At 2 B i LA
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SRETRR) AT - RFARKAH
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HRBEAER  EYTHEARMAFAELE
HAE o

(b) EMRIELBE
AEBERBNZERDEERBOMAER - R
EEMS B R AELERAE - 5T
R 5 RETEHARN B EEB BRI
HERENRIGETE - AEBERNERBREZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
(b) current and deferred taxation (continued)

(c)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and certain tax losses are recognised as
when management considers it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax and tax in the periods in
which such estimate is changed.

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives
of and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
actual useful lives of assets of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
significant technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to industry cycles. Management
will increase the depreciation charges where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T 5I{E)

34 EEFHERMEE @)

(b)

(c)

EMRIELERIR (&)
ERETEREZRRE THEAEBBRAREL
MIEEE  DNEBERR/BERAIES
HERTUR N A K 38 1 %2 B oh Bt
H TR R R E TR R R IEN E R E 5
R 75 T IARERR »

M - BERREHNTAER

EREREEME  BERRENMGEEA
REREEBITES H - IRMBF A
BRYEELEENERIRERAE
B TEAREARNERMEFHTFA
RITEBHMELNTHMBERERE
£ EARFRIVEAMANMGETFR - A
EEEMERITES G - SMEHRE
BEEHHENIMRERIFREIEEE -
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34 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(d) Impairment of property, plant and

equipment

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the
assets at the end of each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Property, plant and equipment is
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations or market valuations. These
calculations require the use of judgments and
estimates. Management judgment is required in the
area of asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i)
whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related assets values may not be
recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell or net
present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value in the impairment test and as a
result affect the Group’s financial condition and
results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to
take an impairment charge to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.
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(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(e)

Impairment of goodwill, and exploration
and evaluation assets

Determining whether exploration and evaluation
assets and goodwill (collectively referred to as “CGU
of exploration for iron ore, coal and manganese”
and “CGU of extraction and bottling of mineral
water”) are impaired require estimation of the value-
in-use of the CGUs to which these assets have been
allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise.

The carrying amounts of goodwill, and exploration
and evaluation assets at the end of reporting period
were HK$Nil and HKS$Nil (2015 HK$Nil and
HK$37,399,285), respectively, after impairment
losses of HK$Nil and HK$36,366,175 were
recognised during the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: HKS$Nil and HK$3,736,391) respectively.
Details of the impairment losses calculation are
provided in Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 511E)

34 EEFHERMEE @)

(e)

EEUARBERFEEERE

ETOWRIFGEENBE (BBER THR
HEL RKEENREELEM] R
BMEERBERKORSELEMN ) RER
BAMHZSEERIREMRRSELS
I EE - BEAMEANBETEAE
EEGTARReEABUELANARER
MEBEENITRE - UEAEHRE -
EEBRAARRASREENIERER - 7]
BEELBARMRERSE -

RBEER  BEEKERTHEENE
EESASELREATL(ZE—RHF
T 37,399,285 L)  EREE T
—ANEFEF+-A=t+—HLEEERD BN
BOREE 1B =8 T 5 36,366,175 8 0 (=&
—HRF T ITN3,736,391787T) © HIE
BEAENFBHNGAVHERENTE 14
F15 e
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T Z1E)

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Other payables and accrued expenses
Obligations under a finance lease
Amount due to a director

Convertible bonds

Interest-bearing borrowings

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Net (liabilities)/assets

HRBEE

E RN
RETBRBRRERE

REBEE

ANFR - e REMEYRIA
Re kRS FEY

RBEE
AN SR R ERTFOR
MEBERE

B —REEFA
AR B 75

FHBER

REBREFEE

REERRBAR

(BE) BEFE

230 DING HE MINING HOLDINGS LIMITED S HMEiZRAER AT

35 ADFHBMRRRE

805,247 914,668
14,306,680 64,767,641
15,111,927 65,682,309

443,010 1,389,941

74,255 11,415,167

517,265 12,805,108

47,520,386 29,337,090

= 77,342

= 347

10,000,000 29,000,000
137,609,200 1,800,000
195,129,586 60,214,779
(194,612,321) (47,409,671)
(179,500,394) 18,272,638
(179,500,394) 18,272,638
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36

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me PR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51E)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35 ARQTFMBERREE)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Capital and reserves ERRFE
Share capital A% 7K 1,367,875,301 1,367,875,301
Reserves ] (1,547,375,695) (1,349,602,663)
Total (deficit)/equity (B58), RBEE (179,500,394) 18,272,638
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of REFEN_FT—LtF-A=-t+—AILERE
directors on 31 March 2017. REFI)EE -
Du Jian Jun Leung Wai Kwan
HEE REE
Director Director
EF =

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE END 36 MEHRRIFARSH
OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

Saved as disclosed in Note 2(b) to the consolidated Brim e ISR I 7 200) PREEER SN - MIRE IR
financial statements, there are no material non-adjusting BREZRAEMBRRIDEARLL - WEREKHE
events subsequent to the end of the reporting period and AEEEIE o

up to the approval date of the consolidated financial

statements.
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e R R AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T Z1E)

37 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the approval date of the consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new
standards and amendments which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and which have not
been adopted in the consolidated financial statements.
These include the followings which may be relevant to the
Group.

37

EEMEHMREEE_FT-—A<F+=A
=t—BLEFEERNHEL - EFTR
RERBUEGTRHNTE

HEGAUBHREIERSIL  Fhetiioe
BEEAG—RINHE-_ZT—XR"F+-_A=+—H
I FEHRARERBLEEMBRERIP RN
AR RIEFTA - Erh EAEEEBOFER RS
FIARIATE o

Effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after
KT EHAREZBEBOSTHHIRER

Amendments to HKAS 7, Disclosure Initiative
BRI ERIE 7RISR HERETE

Amendments to HKAS 12, Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

FEGTERE12RMER] - RAEREEEREL
MIAEE

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
BB HRELELE 155 REAHZWA

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BB HRELERNEIR SRT A

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment:
Classification and measurement of share-based
payment transactions

BB BHmELERZE 2RISR - ARG AEER K -
IR BERNRR SN DB RETE

HKFRS 16, Leases

EEMBHRELERNE 1657 - HE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ”%mﬁ&%}% TR 28 SRS RT
REEHEBENSECE L HANEERESIIZA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these amendments and new standards are
expected to be in the period of initial application, but is
not yet in a position to state whether these amendments
and new standards would have a significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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1 January 2017
—=2—+F—H—H

1 January 2017
—F—+F—H—H
1 January 2018
—ET-NFE—H—H
1 January 2018
—ET-NFE—H—H
1 January 2018
—ET-NE—H—H
1 January 2019
—ET-NE—H—H

To be determined

wEE

AEEEAEFEZFET R EARERE
PR RMRE - HRREEREZFET R
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